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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Group Results

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Oriental
Watch Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”), | hereby present the audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2021 (the “Year”).

2020 was a challenging year for global travel and retailing
industry due to the COVID-19 outbreak and consequential
travel restriction and various social distancing measures
implemented. However, as social-distancing rules being
relaxed and the introduction of vaccination since late 2020,
domestic consumption of the Group’s business operating
regions, including Hong Kong, Macau, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) and Taiwan, has become more active,
especially for jewellery, watches, clocks and other valuables,
benefiting the Group performance in the second half of the
Year. In the second half of Year, the Group’s business has
gradually returned to pre-COVID-19 levels with the gradual
recovery of all the markets where the Group bases. During
the Year, the Group registered revenue of HK$3,504 million
(2020: HK$2,353 million), increased by 48.9% year-on-year,
mainly attributable to the significant growth in revenue in the
PRC market as consumers increased their spending locally
due to travel restrictions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic.
Gross profit increased by 49.1% to HK$962 million (2020:
HK$645 million) and gross profit margin increased to 27.5%
(2020: 27.4%). The Group’s net profit attributable to owners
of the Company has significantly increased by 133% to
HK$233 million (2020: net profit of HK$100 million).

To show our appreciation for shareholders’ continuous
support, the Board has resolved to recommend
a final dividend of 12.0 HK cents per share
(2020: 8.0 HK cents) and special final dividend of
27.0 HK cents (2020: 5.0 HK cents) for the year ended 31
March 2021.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Business Review

As at 31 March 2021, the Group operates 58 retail and
wholesale points (including associate retail stores) in the
Greater China region. Breakdown by geographic region is as
follows:

Hong Kong BB
Macau P
The PRC [
Taiwan =0
Total BET

While the global market has been facing the uncertainties
brought by the pandemic, China was the only major
economy recording positive GDP growth in 2020. As
overseas shopping trips were restricted, the Group’s target
customers splurged on high-end goods domestically. After
COVID-19 lockdowns in early 2020, the PRC’s total national
retails sales of consumers goods have rebounded since
August last year, particularly the gold, silver and jewellery
category continued to increase 93.4% for the first quarter of
2021 as the PRC Government has been promoting domestic
consumption. According to the 2020 statistics stated by the
Federation of the Swiss Watch Industry FH, China became
the leading direct destination for Swiss watch exports and
was the only market to show growth (+20.0% compared
with 2019). And from January to March 2021, Swiss watch
export value to China continued to record a remarkable
growth of 94.5% and 71.4% respectively compared to the
same period of 2020 and 2019, to CHF759.4 million. Riding
on this economic boost and improving market sentiment,
the Group’s revenue in such market surged by 150% to
HK$2,359 million (2020: HK$ 945 million). Profit contribution
of the PRC operation increased substantially, which was
principally attributable to the increased consumers’ spending
locally due to travel restrictions caused by the COVID-19
pandemic.
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Hong Kong tourism and retail sector had been hit hard in
2020 due to travel restriction and various social distancing
measures implemented. However, as social-distancing rules
being relaxed since mid-February 2021 and the introduction
of vaccination, despite the significant decrease of tourist’'s
number, local consumers have become the major growth
driver. In the first quarter of 2021, the value of Hong Kong
retail sales rebounded and expanded 7.5 per cent year-
on-year. Over that period, Hong Kong’s economy bounced
back by posting GDP growth of 7.8%, an 11-year high that
followed an all-time low registered a year ago, especially
for jewellery, watches, clocks and other valuables, which
were March’s top performers, jumping 81% year-on-year.
Impacted by the retail market sentiment in the first three
quarters of the Year, the Group’s revenue of Hong Kong
market for the Year decreased by 18.2% to HK$980 million
(2020: HK$1,198 million). However, a strong rebound in the
Hong Kong business was recorded in the fourth quarter of
Year, mainly attributable to the local consumption recovery.

To ensure a high operating efficiency, exercising stringent
control, especially on rental cost, has been the Group’s
priorities since 2014 and positive outcomes have been
reflecting. During the Year, the Group’s aggregate expenses
related to leases maintained at a stable level of HK$145
million, accounting for 22.2% of the Group’s overall
operating expenses (2020: 28.7%). In addition, regular
internal assessment on the performance of all retail stores
and closedown of high-rent yet non-performing stores are
also the Group’s strategy for better resources allocation.
The Group will continue to closely monitor the store
performance as well as the rental contracts from time to
time in order to maximise the profitability by improving our
efficiency and cost structure.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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During the Year, the Group has employed policies on
inventory management to ensure stable cashflow and
healthy financial position. Policies included monitoring
inventory level of high-ticket products and purchasing
stocks only when existing inventory depletes to a pre-
agreed level. With the hard work and determination from
all staff, the Group’s inventory level has successfully been
maintained at a reasonable level. As at 31 March 2021, the
Group’s overall inventory level amounted to HK$623 million,
decreasing by 22.0% from HK$799 million as at 31 March
2020. In parallel, the Group has also continued to step up
its efforts in adjusting and optimising its brand portfolio, in
order to stabilise the Group’s overall sales performance and
keep abreast of market trend. Oriental Watch will continue
to maintain a lower inventory level for a better cash position
and a sustainable business development in the future.

Looking forward, following the gradual settlement of the
pandemic due to vaccination rollout, as well as the launch
of policies and measures promoting domestic consumption
in both Hong Kong and the PRC, two of major markets
where the Group operates, we believe the market sentiment
and demand, especially on luxury watches, continue to be
strong, while a normalised growth would be expected due
to a larger comparison base. However, as one of the largest
watch retailers renowned of its reputation and credibility,
Oriental Watch will continuously explore opportunities from
the economic recovery in the region, while at the same time,
the Group will keep reviewing its strategies on marketing,
distribution channel, cost control and inventory management
to strengthen the productivity for a sustainable business
development.

On behalf of the Group, we would like to thank our

customers, suppliers, staff and shareholders for their
contribution, loyalty and unfailing support.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and financial resources

At 31 March 2021, the Group’s total equity reached
HK$1,991 million, compared with HK$2,083 million as at 31
March 2020. The Group had net current assets of HK$1,546
million, including bank and cash balances of HK$1,061
million as at 31 March 2021 compared with balances of
HK$1,668 million and HK$937 million respectively as at 31
March 2020. At 31 March 2021, bank loans of the Group
amounted to HK$18 million (31 March 2020: HK$6 million)
and the gearing ratio (defined as total bank loans on total
equity) was 0.009 (31 March 2020: 0.003).

Management considers that financial position of the Group
is healthy with adequate funds and unused banking facilities.

Foreign exchange exposure

The Group’s sales and purchase transactions are primarily
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The
Group did not face significant risk from exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2021, our Group employed approximately
563 employees in Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China
and Taiwan, of which approximately 63% were located in
Mainland China.

Our employees’ compensation packages include basic
salary, commission, annual bonus, medical insurance and
other common benefits. They are structured by reference
to the nature of their posts, experiences and performance,
and are reviewed annually based on the Group’s objective
performance appraisal system.
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The Group has allocated significant resources to provide
training programmes to employees to improve their
services to customers. The management team has used
results of a “Mystery Shoppers Programme” conducted
by an independent consultancy firm to tailor-made training
programmes for specific shop and at individual level.

The Group has also developed a series of training
programmes for senior executives with diverse topics
ranging from leadership, personal development and
effectiveness, task and team management. These
programmes enable our senior executives to improve their
management skills and help to bring in innovative ideas to
the Group.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme relating
to the grant of options to eligible persons including directors
and employees of the Group to subscribe for shares of the
Company. The share option scheme enables the Group
to offer valuable incentive to attract and retain quality
personnel and other persons to work to increase the value
of the shares of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. YEUNG Him Kit, Dennis, aged 52, joined the Group in
1993. He became Managing Director and Chairman of the
Company in March 2003 and February 2021 respectively.
He holds a Bachelor Degree in Commerce from the
University of Toronto, Canada. Mr. Yeung is the brother of
Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley.

Madam YEUNG Man Yee, Shirley, aged 59, joined the
Group in 1991. She received a Higher Diploma in Business
Studies and Diploma in Watch and Jewellery Management
from North Herts College in the United Kingdom and CFH
Institute in Switzerland respectively. Madam Yeung is a
sister of Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis.

Mr. LAM Hing Lun, Alain, aged 62, joined the Group in
1992. He is the Finance Director and Company Secretary
of the Company and became Director of the Company in
April 2003. He is responsible for the Group’s accounting,
financial control and secretarial matters. He has over 34
years’ experience in accounting and auditing. Mr. Lam
holds a Master Degree of Business Administration from the
University of Hull. He is a Fellow Member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and an Associate
Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is an independent non-executive director
of CN Logistics International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
2130), which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Dr. SUN Ping Hsu, Samson, M.B.E., J.P., aged 96,
has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company since September 1993. He is the Chairman of
Sun International Group of companies. He was Deputy
Chairman and a Director of Gilman & Co., Ltd. and Inchcape
Hong Kong respectively from 1967 to 1985. Dr. Sun is the
Honorary Permanent President of The Federation of Hong
Kong Watch Trades and Industries Limited. He has over
60 years’ experience in the manufacturing, marketing and
distribution of watches, and over 33 years’ experience in
the marketing and distribution of consumer and electronic
products. He has involved in the PRC trade since 1979,
and continues to be active in both trading and property
development in the PRC. Dr. Sun has chaired many
voluntary community services and charitable organisations.
He was a Member of Basic Law of HKSAR Consultative
Committee in 1980’s. He is an Independent Non-executive
Director of National Electronics Holdings Limited (stock
code: 0213), and Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited (stock
code: 0131) both of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Dr. LI Sau Hung, Eddy, G.B.S., J.P., aged 66, has over
40 years’ experience in the manufacturing business. He is
the President of Hong Kong Economic & Trade Association.
Dr. Li holds a Master Degree of Business Administration and
a PhD Degree in Economics. He was the 1991 awardee of
The Ten Outstanding Young Persons and the 1993 awardee
of Young Industrialists of Hong Kong. He has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
September 1993. He is currently an Independent Non-
executive Director of Man Yue Technology Holdings Limited
(stock code: 0894) and Chuang’s China Investments Limited
(stock code: 0298), both of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. CHOI Man Chau, Michael, aged 65, is a Fellow
Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Choi has been practising public
accountancy in Hong Kong for over 31 years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHAN Sze Wing, Kenneth, aged 56, is a director of
our PRC companies. He is overseeing the Group’s operation
in the PRC. He joined the Group in 2013 and has over 27
years’ experience in the watch business.

Mr. YEUNG Chi On, aged 61, is the General Manager
overseeing the retail operation in Hong Kong. He joined the
Group in 1980 and has over 39 years’ experience in the
watch business.

Mr. LAM Tung Hing, aged 63, is the General Manager and
overseeing the retail operation in Hong Kong. He joined the
Group in 2003 and has over 41 years’ experience in the
watch business.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

EREEE

BRILERSESE - 563% - RAKEAEFRBE A
RES BEBEASERTEAEBERE-
BR_E—=FIMALEE EF@E27F
EBRELR -

BERKE 615 BREAKE  BEBESE
TEEE - FR—ANZEFENALRES -
EBMm30FERELE -

MERERLE 635 RAKE EEERDS
TEEE - BN _ZTZE=FMALXEHEH
EEBA1 FERRER -

RAXRTEEBRLQF



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company strives to attain and maintain high standard
of corporate governance as it believes that effective
corporate governance practices are fundamental to
enhancing shareholder value and safe guarding interests
of shareholders and other stakeholders. The Company has
accordingly adopted good corporate governance principles
that emphasize a quality board of Directors (“the Board”),
effective risk management and internal control, stringent
disclosure practices and transparency and accountability to
all stakeholders. It is, in addition, committed to continuously
improving these practices and inculcating an ethical
corporate culture.

Throughout the year ended 31 March, 2021, the Company
had complied with the code provisions prescribed in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules except for the deviations
explained below in the relevant paragraphs.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Mode set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors
(“the Code”). Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors have confirmed compliance with the required
standard set out in the Code during the year under review.
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THE BOARD
Corporate Strategy

The primary objective of the Company is to enhance long-
term total return for shareholders. To achieve this objective,
the Board set strategies and directions for the Group’s
activities with a view to achieving sustainable recurring
earning growth and maintaining the Group’s strong financial
profile. The section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” contains discussion and analysis of the Group’s
performance for the year under review and strategies for
achieving its future plans.

Role of the Board

The Board, which is accountable to shareholders for
performance of the Company, is responsible for directing
the strategic objectives of the Company and overseeing
the management of the business. Directors are collectively
charged with the task of promoting the success of the
Company and making decision in the best interest of the
Company.

Board Composition

At 31 March, 2021, the Board comprised six Directors,
including the Chairman and Group Managing Director,
Group Finance Director, an Executive Director and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. Biographical details
of the Directors are set out in the “Directors and Senior
Management” section on pages 9 to 12. The composition of
the Board is well balanced with each Director having sound
knowledge, experience and/or expertise relevant to the
business of the Group.
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For a Director to be considered independent, the Board
must determine that the Director does not have any direct or
indirect material relationship with the Group. In determining
the independence of Directors, the Board follows the
requirements set out in the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive of the
Company were separated, with a clear division of
responsibilities until 5 February 2021. The Chairman is
responsible for the leadership of the Board, ensuring its
effectiveness in all aspects of its role and for setting its
agenda and taking into account any matters proposed by
other directors for inclusion in the agenda. Through the
Board, he is responsible for ensuring that good corporate
governance practices and procedures are followed by the
Group.

The Chief Executive (Group Managing Director) is
responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group’s
business.

The Board was led by the former Chairman, Dr. Yeung Ming
Biu, until he passed away on 5 February 2021. Mr. Yeung
Him Kit, Dennis, Group Managing Director, also took up
the role of Chairman on 10 February 2021 as the Board
considers that he is the most suitable person with the
necessary experience to provide leadership to the board as
well as to manage the day-to-day operations of the Group.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the Company has three Independent Non-executive
Directors, representing over one-third of the Board. One
Independent Non-executive Director has the appropriate
professional qualifications in accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company, based on such confirmation, considers Dr.
Sun Ping Hsu, Samson, Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy and Mr. Choi
Man Chau, Michael to be independent.

Non-executive Directors

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
However, the Independent Non-executive Directors were not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement
by rotation in annual general meeting of the Company at
least once every three years.

The Board considers that there is no imminent need to
add a specific term to the letters of appointment of the
Independent Non-executive Directors as they are subject to
retirement by rotation as aforementioned.
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Board Meetings and Practices

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a
year. It also meets on other occasions when a board-
level decision on a particular matter is required. Between
scheduled meetings, senior management of the Group
provides information to the Directors on a regular basis
on the activities and development in the business of the
Group. Throughout the year, Directors had participated in
the consideration and approval of routine and operational
matters of the Company by way of circulation of relevant
materials, supplemented by additional verbal/written
information or notification from the Company Secretary and
other executives as and when required. Details of material or
notable transactions of subsidiary companies are provided
to the Directors as appropriate. Whenever warranted,
additional Board meetings are held.

The Directors receive details of agenda items for decision
and draft minutes of meeting in advance of each Board
meeting. With respect to regular meetings of the Board,
the Directors receive written notice of the meetings at least
14 days in advance and agenda with supporting Board
papers no less than 3 days prior to the meetings. With
respect to the other meetings, the Directors are given as
much as notice as is reasonable and practicable in the
circumstances.

Any Director wishing to do so in the furtherance of his or
her duty may take independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense. Directors are encouraged to update
their skills, knowledge and familiarity with the Group through
their initial induction, ongoing participation at Board and
Committee meetings, and through meetings with key
members of the management.
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During the year ended 31 March, 2021, the composition of
the Board and the attendance of the Directors at meetings

held are set out below:

Executive Directors
Dr. Yeung Ming Biu (Note) - Chairman
until 5 February 2021

Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis (Note) —
Chairman since 10 February 2021,
Deputy Chairman until 10 February
2021 and Group Managing Director

Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley (Note)

Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain — Group
Finance Director

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy

Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael

HITEE
BREZEL (M) —
—E--%-HAA
RIETERE
BTG E (M) —
B-ZE-—%-H+H
RETER —T=—
F-RBt+HAETEE
B TASBEES
s

BRERL(HT)

HEBLTLE —
SEVHESR

BUHBTEF
BREBL
FHEEL

MR E

Note: Dr. Yeung Ming Biu was the father of Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis and

Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley.
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Training and Commitment

The Company provides continuous professional
development (“CPD”) training and relevant reading materials
to the Directors to help ensure that they are apprised of
the latest changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory
environment in which the Group conducts its business
and to refresh their knowledge and skills on their roles and
functions as directors of the Company. In addition, Dr.
Sun Ping Hsu, Samson, Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy and Mr.
Lam Hing Lun, Alain have attended external forums or brief
sessions (including delivery of speeches by Mr. Lam Hing
Lun, Alain) on relevant tropics. Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael
has also participated in CPD programs required by The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The Directors have provided to the Company with details of
the CPD training undertaken by them during the year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain, is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board
procedures are followed and Board activities are efficiently
and effectively conducted. These objectives are achieved
through the adherence to proper Board processes and
the timely preparation and dissemination to the Directors
and Board Committees comprehensive Board agendas
and papers. Minutes of all Board meetings and Board
Committees are prepared by and maintained by the
Company Secretary to record in sufficient details the matters
considered and decisions reached by the Board or Board
Committee, including any concerns raised or dissenting
views voiced by any Director. All minutes are sent to the
Directors and are available for inspection by any Director
upon request.
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The Company Secretary is also responsible for ensuring that
the Board is fully apprised of all legislative, regulatory and
corporate governance developments relating to the Group
and that it takes these into consideration when making
decisions for the Group. Further he is directly responsible for
the Group’s compliance with all obligations under the Listing
Rules, including publications and dissemination of annual
reports and interim reports within the periods laid down in
the Listing Rules, timely dissemination to shareholders and
the market of announcements and information relating to the
Group and assisting in the notification of Directors’ dealings
in securities of the Group.

The Company Secretary advises the Directors on their
obligations for disclosure of interests in securities,
connected transactions and price-sensitive information and
ensures that the standards and disclosures required by the
Listing Rules are observed and, where required, reflected in
the annual reports of the Company.

In relation to connected transactions, regular seminars
are conducted for executives from business units within
the Group to ensure that such transactions are handled
in compliance with the Listing Rules. Details analyses are
performed on all potential connected transactions to ensure
full compliance and for Directors’ considerations.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is
subject to Board approval in accordance with the Bye-laws
of the Company. Whilst the Company Secretary reports to
the Board through the Chairman and the Group Managing
Director, all members of the Board have access to the
advice and service of the Company Secretary. Mr. Lam Hing
Lun, Alain has been the Company Secretary of the Company
since 1992 and is also the Group’s Finance Director.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The annual and interim results of the Company are published
in a timely manner in accordance with the Listing Rules.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their
financial reporting are set out in the Auditor’s report on
pages 81 to 86.

Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparation of the financial statements of the Company
to ensure that the financial statements give a true and fair
presentation in accordance with Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable accounting standards.

Accounting Policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group applies appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently applied and makes judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group
keeps accounting records which disclose the financial
position of the Group upon which financial statements of the
Group could be prepared in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies.
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Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and
necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and
to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities within
the Group.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquires, consider
that, the Group had adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and that it is
appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparation
of the financial statements.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Board, being satisfied with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
(“Deloitte”) in respect of the audit fees they charged, the
process and effectiveness of their audit, has resolved to
recommend their reappointment as the Company’s external
auditors at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

During the financial year, the services provided by, and the
associated remuneration paid to, Deloitte were as follows:
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all Independent Non-
executive Directors who possess the appropriate business
and financial management experiences and skills to
understand financial statements and internal controls. It is
chaired by Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson with Dr. Li Sau Hung,
Eddy, and Mr. Choi Man Chau as members.

Under the term of reference of the Audit Committee, it is
required to oversee the relationship between the Company
and its external auditors, review the Group’s preliminary
results, interim results and annual financial statements,
monitor compliance with statutory and Listing Rules
requirements, review the scope, extent and effectiveness of
the activities of the Group’s internal audit functions, engage
independent legal or other advisers as it determines is
necessary and perform investigations.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee adopted by
the Board follow the guidelines set out in the CG Code and
are published on the Group’s website.

During the year ended 31 March, 2021, all members
attended the 4 meetings held by the Audit Committee
meetings.

During the year, the Audit Committee performed the duties

and responsibilities under its terms of reference and the CG
Code.
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Financial Statements

The Audit committee meets with the Group Finance Director
and other senior management of the Group from time to
time to review the interim and final results, interim and
annual reports and other financial, internal control and
risk management matters of the Group. It considers and
discusses the reports and presentations of management,
the Group’s internal and external auditors with a view of
ensuring that the Group’s consolidated financial statements
are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. It also meets with the
Group’s external auditors, Deloitte, to consider their reports
on the scope and outcome of their independent review of
the interim financial report and on their annual audit of the
consolidated financial statements.

External Auditors

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the external
auditors’ independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process. It has received representations from
Deloitte of their independence and objectivity and holds
meetings with Deloitte to consider the scope of their audit
and their fees therefor, and the scope and appropriateness
of non-audit services, if required, to be provided by them.
The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and retention of external auditors.
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The Group’s policies regarding the engagement of Deloitte
for various services are as follows:

. Audit services — Deloitte is engaged to provide services
in connection with the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the Company, which are
required to be provided by external auditors.

. Audited related services — include services that would
normally be provided by external auditors but not
generally included in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements, for example, audit of the Group’s
pension plans, due diligence and accounting advice
relating to mergers and acquisitions, internal control
reviews of systems and/or process and issuance of
special audit reports for tax purposes (if any). The
external auditors are invited to undertake these services
that they must or are best placed to undertake in their
capacity as auditors.

. Taxation related services — include all tax compliance
and tax planning services except those services
provided in connection with the audit. The Group
engages the services of the external auditors where
they are best suited. Other significant taxation related
work may be undertaken by other professional parties
as appropriate.

. Others services — include, for example audit or reviews
of third parties to assess compliance with contracts,
risk management diagnostics and assessments, and
non-financial system consultations (if any). The external
auditors are also invited to assist the management and
the Group’s internal auditors with internal investigations
and fact-finding in respect of alleged improprieties.
These services are subject to specific approval by the
Audit Committee.
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. General consulting services — the external auditors
are not eligible to provide services involving general
consulting work including accountancy services.

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control

The Audit Committee assists the Board in meeting its
responsibilities for maintaining an effective system of internal
control. It reviews the process by which the Group evaluates
its control environment and risk assessment process, and
the way in which business and control risks are managed.
In addition, it reviews with the Group’s internal auditors
the work plan for their audit together with their resources
requirements, and consider their report to the Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of internal controls in the
Group’s business operations.

These reviews and reports are taken into consideration by
the Audit Committee when it makes recommendations to the
Board for approval of the consolidated financial statements
for the year.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
including two Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson and Dr. Li Sau Hung,
Eddy and an Executive Director, being Mr. Yeung Him Kit,
Dennis during the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to
22 June 2021, who was replaced by Mr. Lam Hing Lun,
Alain. Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson is the chairman of the
Committee. The Committee meets for the determination
of the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management of the Group. In addition, the Committee
meets as and when required to consider remuneration
related matters.
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The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
assist the Board in achieving its objectives of attracting,
retaining and motivating people of the highest calibre and
experience needed to shape and execute strategies across
the Group’s substantial business operations. It assists
the Group in the administration of a fair and transparent
procedure for setting remuneration policies including
assessment of the performance of the Directors and senior
executives of the Group. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee adopted by the Board follow the
guidelines set out in the CG Code and are published on the
Group’s website.

The remuneration of Directors and senior executives
is determined with reference to the performance and
profitability of the Group as well as remuneration
benchmarks from other local and/or international companies
and prevailing market conditions. Bonus are rewarded to
Directors and employees based on the results of the Group
and the individual’s performance.

During the financial year ended 31 March, 2021, the
Remuneration Committee held two meetings, which were
attended by all member. The Remuneration Committee
has reviewed background information on market data, the
Group’s business activities and human resources issues,
headcounts and staff costs. The Remuneration Committee
has also reviewed and approved the proposed director fees,
year-end bonus and remuneration packages of Executive
Directors and senior management of the Company for the
year ended 31 March, 2021, and made recommendations
to the Board on the directors’ fees for independent non-
executive directors (except they do not participate in the
determination of their own remunerations).
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Nomination of Directors

Code provisions A5.1 to Ab.4 provide for the establishment
of a nomination committee. The Board has not established
a nomination committee as it considers that all Directors
should be involved in performing the duties set out in such
code provisions. However, Executive Directors identify
potential new directors and recommend to the Board for
decision. The Board considers potential directorship based
on the candidate’s qualifications, business experience and
suitability to the Company. During the financial year ended
31 March, 2021, no new director had been appointed.

The Board has adopted a diversity policy to achieve diversity
of board members through consideration of relevant
factors, including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity,
cultural and educational background, skill, knowledge,
or professional/business experience to ensure the Board
has an appropriate diversity of talents to contribute to the
business of the Group.

Dividend Policy

Code provision E.1.5 relates to disclosure of dividend policy.
The Company does not have a dividend policy and the
Board will decide on the declaration/ recommendation of
any future dividends after taking into consideration a number
of factors, including the prevailing market conditions, the
Group’s operating results, business plans and prospects,
financial position and working capital requirements, and
other factors that the Board considers relevant.
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Group Risk Management, Internal Control and
Corporate Governance

Role of the Board

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s systems
of risk management, internal control and legal and regulatory
compliance.

In meeting its responsibilities, the Board seeks to increase
risk awareness across the Group’s business operations
and has put in place policies and procedures, including
parameters of delegated authority, which provide a
framework for the identification and management of risks.
The Board also evaluates and determines the nature and
extent of the risks that the Company is willing to accept in
pursuit of the Group’s strategic and business objectives. It
also reviews and monitors the effectiveness of the systems
of risk management and internal control on an ongoing
basis. Reporting and reviewing activities include review
and approval by the Executive Directors and the Board of
detailed operational and financial reports, budgets and plans
of business operations provided by the management, review
by the Board of actual results against budgets, review by
the Audit Committee of the ongoing work of internal audit
and risk management functions, as well as regular business
review by the Executive Directors and the executive
management team of each core business division.

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee reviews
regularly the corporate governance structure and practices
within the Group and monitors compliance fulfillment on an
ongoing basis.
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Risk Management

The Group adopts an Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)
framework which is consistent with the COSO (Committee
of Sponsoring Organization of the Treadway Commission)
framework. The main features of the risk management and
internal control systems are to provide a clear governance
structure, policies and procedures, as well as reporting
mechanism to facilitate the Group to manage risks across
its business operations.

The Group’s risk management framework consists of the
Board, the Audit Committee and the Risk Management
Taskforce. The Board determines the nature and extent of
risks that shall be taken in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives, and has the overall responsibility for monitoring
the design, implementation and the overall effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems.

The Group has formulated and adopted risk management
policy in providing direction in identifying, evaluating and
managing significant risks. At least on an annual basis,
the Risk Management Taskforce identifies risks that would
adversely affect the achievement of the Group’s objectives,
and assesses and prioritizes the identified risks according
to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk
owners are then established for those risks considered to
be significant.

In addition, the Group has established an internal audit
function to assist the Board and the Audit Committee
in monitoring the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group on an-ongoing basis. Deficiencies
in the design and implementation of internal controls
are identified and recommendations are proposed for
improvement. Significant internal control deficiencies are
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on a timely
basis to ensure prompt remediation actions are taken.
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The Group Managing Director and the Group Finance
Director have the responsibility of developing and
implementing risk mitigation strategies including taking out
insurance policies to transfer the financial impact of risks.
The Group Finance Director is responsible for arranging
appropriate insurance coverage including Directors Liability
Insurance to protect directors of the Group against potential
legal liabilities.

Risk management report is submitted to the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors at least once a year
and internal control report is submitted half-a-year. The
Board performs annual review on the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems,
including but not limited to the Group’s ability to cope
with its business transformation and changing external
environment; the scope and quality of management’s
review on risk management and internal control systems;
result of internal audit work; the extent and frequency
of communication with the Board in relation to result
of risk and internal control review; significant failures or
weaknesses identified and their related implications; and
status of compliance with the Listing Rules.

The risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.
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Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Group complies with the requirements of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) and the Listing Rules. The
Group discloses inside information to the public as soon
as reasonably practicable unless the information falls within
any of the Safe Harbours as provided in the SFO. Before
the information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group
ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the
Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality
cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may have
been breached, the Group would immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Group is committed to ensure
that information contained in its announcements is true and
accurate, and not false or misleading.

Internal Control Environment and Systems

The Board has overall responsibility for monitoring the
operations of the Group’s business. Executive Directors are
appointed to the board of directors of all material operating
subsidiaries for monitoring of their operations, including
attendance at board meetings, review and approval of
business strategies, budgets and plans, and setting of key
business performance targets. The executive management
team of each core business division is accountable for the
conduct and performance of such division.

The Group’s internal control procedures include a system for
reporting information to the executive management teams of
each core business division and the Executive Directors.

Business plans and budgets are prepared annually by the
management of individual business division subject to the
review and approval of the Executive Directors. When setting
budgets, management identifies, evaluates and reports on
the likelihood and potential financial impact of significant
business risks.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

BERRHAAREEZEFRASESE

AEERTESLMEERI R ETRAZ
BRE EREAITHERATERALRKE
NEHE  BRIFEHBEEBESMAER
PIFTRE 2 AR 2B HRE R - BITELL
fR o NEBHERIHE BRI AR E WATRE
WE - HAKREREREIARBVEZHE
RE - TR D INR - BINEE L
RARKEHEE - AEBRNBEAS
PIBERBETRERE  MIFERIARSE
n o

AEERRERZS

EXesRERAERAREXK 2 EE-
HITESBEZEMAMBREEREBH
MBARIZESES  UERHEE 81
HFEEESE SR FHEBRE  BE
et ARBIFTEBEXRHRRAR
B4z 0 EF R 2 1T B B P (R 3 32 AR T
ZIBIFERIAER

ANEB 2z AR F B IEE PR
€ - AR S EZ L X 2T R E EK
hRRITEEERER

B EEERER RSN EERE
BERE UAKHTESEL - ERE
BER EEERTE  FALERESR
HXEKNER JRER L EEMBZE -

RAXRTEEBRLQF



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SHEABE

The Executive Directors review monthly management
reports on the financial results and key operating statistics
of each business division and hold regular meetings with
the executive management team and senior management
of business operations to discuss these reports, business
performance against budgets, forecasts, significant risk
sensitivities and strategies. In addition, the Group Finance
Director and members of his finance team review monthly
performance against budget and forecast, and address
accounting and finance related matters.

The Group Finance Director has established guidelines
and procedures for approval and control of expenditures.
Operating expenditures are subject to overall budget control
and are controlled within each business with approval level
for such expenditures being set by reference to the level of
responsibility of each executive officer. Capital expenditures
are subject to overall control within the annual budget
review and approval process, and more specific control
and approval by the Group Finance Director or Executive
Directors are required prior to commitment for unbudgeted
expenditures and material expenditures within the approved
budget. Reports of actual versus budgeted and approved
expenditures are also regularly reviewed.

The internal audit department provides to the Group
Managing Director on a regular basis, and to the Audit
Committee if necessary, independent assurance as to the
existence and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
activities and controls in its business operations. Using
risk assessment methodology and taking into account
the dynamics of the Group activities, the internal audit
department devises its yearly audit plan, which is reviewed
by the Audit Committee, and reassessed during the year as
needed to ensure that adequate resources are deployed and
the plan’s objectives are met. The internal audit department
is also responsible for assessing the Group’s internal control
system, formulating an impartial opinion on the system,
and reporting its findings to the Group Managing Director,
Group Finance Director and the Audit Committee as well
as following up on all reports to ensure that all issues have
been satisfactorily resolved. In addition, a regular dialogue is
maintained with the Group’s external auditors so that both
are aware of the significant factors which may affect their
respective scopes of work.
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Depending on the nature of business and risk exposure
of individual business units, the scope of the work
performed by the internal audit function includes financial
and operations review, recurring and surprise audits, fraud
investigation and productivity effectively reviews.

Reports from the external auditors on internal controls and
relevant financial reporting matters, if any, are presented to
the Group Finance Director and the relevant management
teams. These reports are reviewed and the appropriate
actions taken.

Corporate Governance

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility of
developing and maintaining sound and effective corporate
governance within the Group and is committed to ensuring
that an effective governance structure is in place to
continuously review and improve corporate governance
practices within the Group to keep abreast of evolving
environment and regulatory requirements.

The Board has adopted terms of reference for corporate
governance functions set out in the CG Code, and the
Audit Committee has been delegated the responsibilities to
perform the corporate governance duties set out therein.
To assist the Audit Committee in fulfilling its responsibilities,
the Company Secretary, together with representatives from
key departments of the Company, continuously examines
the corporate governance structure of the Group, provides
updates, identifies emerging matters for compliance, sets
up appropriate compliance mechanisms and monitors
compliance on an ongoing basis.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the compliance status
and is satisfied that the Company has complied with all the
applicable code provisions of the CG Code during the year
except deviations explained in various relevant paragraphs
above.
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Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems for the year ended 31 March,
2021 covering all material financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions, and is
satisfied that such systems are effective and adequate. In
the view of the Board, the systems of risk management and
internal control of the Group are sufficient to safeguard the
interests of the Group.

Communication with Shareholders and Investors

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with the shareholders of
the Company and investors. Therefore, the Board and the
Group’s senior management maintain close communications
with investors, analysts, fund managers and the media
by various channels including interviews and meetings.
The Group specifically assigns Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain,
Group Finance Director, as the contact person for investor
relationship to respond to requests for information and
queries of investors.

Annual Report 2021

B EEEERANSERERL

EEeCABBERZEERIAEEEE
—E—F=-A=1t—HLFEZRRE
BRANISEZERFKR - BIEFABEEKRM
1§ BEMA R AR BERRE B
Y EMNHERGEERETH EEER
B AEBEZRBRERERABELE RS
AREEAREE 2 F)a o

BRREREEEH

SEEERPEARBBREREERFT
B ER BB CERE - Wit - B
ZeRAKEZRREEBERSANE
wErRIAIRBEKEE HME £
CRERERERETBR - ARERH
ZREEMBEENEBTERREER
BRZBSA > NEEREEBBRINEA
ZERNEH e

TEZ-FER

35



36

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A R g
ERERRE

Shareholders’ Right

The Board is committed to providing clear and full
information of the Group required under the Listing
Rules, the SFO and other applicable laws and regulations
to the shareholders through publication of notices,
announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports. In
addition to dispatching circulars, notices, financial reports
to shareholders, additional information of the Group’s also
available to the shareholders on the Company’s website.

The Board welcomes the view of shareholders on matters
affecting the Group. Shareholders are encouraged to attend
all general meetings of the Company at which the Chairman
and Directors are available to answer questions on the
Group’s business.

Pursuant to Bye-law 58 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition, and such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may
do so in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

IR R AEF

EEZSEATIRBE A BER - FH
MEERE RO ARRRE ETAHL
BHREERG R EMERERE AR
BRZEMREZAZAEEER - BRERK
BEEFEEE - BERTEREIN A&
ARRD B PUMBSASEELZER -

SRR RBERFENARB ZEHL
R REBSBBCRHEARBFAK

RAE ETFRMEFHHFEERRAE - A
REBBAARBEER 2 RM -
RIBEAR QR A AR 58 5 - MIFEK

ERHBETNPORMBERAGREREE
ERIZARNBBRERN D2 —ZBRE
EEMEEEERNEESRNAR A WER
HEEBK  FRESEERAREERK
CRETZAERERERANEMNSIERZAKR
GARNKEFRKEEMEAANRIT - RE
EERENEXEBFRKE-_T—RRNETAE
FAZAE B XKATAUNBTREERE
—NWN\—FREVEFE T4Q) G2 IEXBR °

RAXRTEEBRLQF



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RR - HERERHRE

In accordance with Appendix 27 — Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide of the Main Board Listing
Rules issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Oriental
Watch Holdings Limited (the “Company”, “We”, and “Our”)
presents this Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Report for the year ended 31 March 2021 (the “Reporting
Period”, or “FY2021”).

REPORTING SCOPE

We are principally engaged in the trading business of luxury
watches. This report presents, aligned with the reporting
scope of the last year, our ESG policies, programmes
and performance in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland
China during the Reporting Period which are the principal
operating locations of the Company.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The Company strictly follows the four Reporting Principles
during the preparation of the ESG Report.

Materiality: Our Company conducted the annual
stakeholder engagement and identified the
material ESG issues during the Reporting
Period. The final ESG issues have been
confirmed by the management and the
Board of the Company.

Quantitative: Our Company monitored various Key
Performance Indicators (“KPI”) during the
Reporting Period, which are presented
in this Report, to keep track of the
progress of our ESG initiatives. In this
way, the effectiveness of ESG policies and
management system can be evaluated
and validated. For all standards and
methods adopted for calculating the KPI
(if applicable), please refer to the relevant
sections in the Report.

Balance: The Report presents an unbiased picture
of the Company’s ESG performance during
the Reporting Period.
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Consistency: The Company adopted consistent
methodologies in the data calculation
as compared to prior years to show

comparable ESG data over time.
OUR ESG GOVERNANCE

We believe a well-developed corporate governance
structure is the key to success of our ESG strategy.
Therefore, we have established an ESG taskforce, which
includes senior management as well as department heads
of different functions while the Board of Directors has the
overall responsibility for the Company’s ESG reporting and
strategy in order to achieve green operations for sustainable
development. The key responsibilities of the ESG taskforce
include the following:

Establishing the long-term ESG goals and missions of
the Company;

o Monitoring and managing ESG-related risks;

° Evaluating the effectiveness of the Company’s ESG
management systems; and

° Reporting the ESG objectives achieved to the Board on
a regular basis.

The ESG taskforce is authorised by the Board to carry out
its tasks including stakeholder engagement and materiality
assessment. External professional advices could be sought
at the expense of the Company when the ESG risks are
assessed to be material.

We are committed to complying with the latest laws and
regulations as well as the industry standards in our ESG
practice. Our ESG initiatives are revised and communicated
timely with staff members in order to enhance the efficiency
of the ESG tasks.
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We review our risk management process on a regular
basis. Material risks will be assessed and discussed by the
abovementioned ESG taskforce and the Board. Internal
control measures will be designed and implemented
to mitigate the ESG risks. Please refer to the “RISK
MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL” section of the
Company’s “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT” for
details of the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We understand that stakeholders’ comments are crucial
to our decision-making process as well as our long-term
success in the future. Therefore we engage our stakeholders
by active communication and interaction. We have adopted
the following engagement methods for our stakeholders:

# Stakeholders

BRFEBHRTEREIREF o il ESG/)N
AR ESeF A RERNERRR - A
BB TRET RIT - AAFEZESG
BB o R EIE R AIBELIEH E M 2 ¥
B BRERRAICEERRSE 2R
BB IE R N EBEEYE | — 5 o

M EEES A

HAPIRRAE - M AREE B RERMAR
ZRREFREEKINEBRIER - F
it - HRAPIFERR SRR K B B R E Az AR R
E2HEEE - RPEHRMAT N EAREE
SETE

Engagement Methods

AR E BT
1 Suppliers and Business Partners ° Meetings
HER KRR e
° Daily email communications
AEE B
° Regular evaluations
E BT
2 Customers e  Company website
B NSIEER
° Communication in retailing points
° Customer service hotline
B R 2 AR
o Enquiry emails
B BH
3 Employees o Internal trainings
== e
e  Staff notices and announcements
EI@ &/—\ﬁt
e  Annual performance appraisal
FERRTZ
o Internal meetings
REEES

Annual Report 2021
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# Stakeholders
Fz=iErEE

4 Investors and Shareholders

BREE MR

Engagement Methods
BT %

General meetings

RERE

Annual and interim reports
FRERFHERE

Circulars and announcements
5\_ I_l&/‘\/_t

Company website

AN

5 Government and Supervising Authorities

BT Ko B B HE R

Email communications

EH®A

Meetings

Gy

= R

Government websites regarding regulations

B A8 UG A BER

6 Social Groups and Public

Charitable activities

HEBEBRAR BREEY
° PuinC consultation emails
NBEREE
7 Media ° Press releases
e A

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

For the identification and assessment of material ESG
issues, we have conducted a materiality assessment with
regard to the ESG Reporting Guide. Our approach to the

EEMFE

R BN ERESGHE - HFIEH
ESGHREHESIETEEMNE - RfIZE
ZUEFHETERFEAT

materiality assessment includes the following:

|dentification of ESG issues
%R ESG A

Assessment of the ESG issues
THESGEE

Prioritisation of material ESG issues

BREERBEANESGEE

Annual Report 2021

Prior to the internal meetings with our business functions and
questionnaires to both internal and external stakeholders to
identify potential ESG issues of the Company, we also took
reference to our peers’ ESG disclosed issues.
BAPIAZER B RITAEE R - W MNP K W EB 7 53 AR & Ik 35
H ABAARAINELEESGREZH - TE2ERENCEKE
ESG#&E °

We discussed, assessed and prioritised our ESG issues by
considering the social, environmental and economic impact
towards the Company.
BP#EZRERNRRZHE  RELKBEZERRS - MG REE
ESGE M B E X -

We concluded our material ESG issues to our management and
the Board, and decided the ESG issues to be summarised and
presented in this ESG Report.
BMMEKRESGHEERNEREREFTGIES - WAEKNARESGH
EREENZ25 2 ESGHERA °

TEZ-FFR
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After the materiality assessment performed, we identified RNETEEME (% RPEERATR
the following material ESG issues of the Company which are ~ ARBERE 2 A AR EAESGHE -
covered in this Report:

oadE O COO
o 6 o ® 00
®

BARSENRERE cE21E

Importance to the Stakeholders of the Group

Materiality to the Business of the Group
HAREERBEEN

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited RAEXRITEBEERAQA
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# ESG Issues

General
—REE

1 Compliance
B
Environmental
RIE
2 | Air emissions and greenhouse gas emissions
REBBER R = REBHEN

3 |[Non-hazardous waste

BmEREREY)

4 |Energy consumption

e

5 |Water consumption

IKEIRIA

6 |Use of packaging materials

ERABEME

7 | Noise pollution

IR )5

8 |Environmental Impacts from Investments
REHRRNTE

Social

HE
9 |Recruitment, promotion and dismissal

B - BT MR E

10 |Employee compensation and benefits

& B 2 il A8 A

11 |Employee working hours and rest periods
& B TIER B N R A

12 |Equal opportunity

TEKS

13 |Workplace health and safety
TESRERER S

14 |Employee training and development

BB H RERE

15 | Anti-child and anti-forced labour

By 1E & T Ry 1k5& il 55 T

16 | Supply chain relationship management
HIEGERRE IR

17 |Product responsibility

Ematt

Annual Report 2021 =
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# ESG Issues
ESG =2

18 |Service quality
RIBGE =

19 |Advertising and labelling
BEMZE

20 |Data privacy and protection
BRILEE R R

21 | Anti-corruption and anti-money laundering
&SRB ISR RE

22 |Community Investment
HERE

23 |Climate Resilience
RIRIVELE i

In this Report, we have combined ESG Issue #17 Product
responsibility and #18 Service quality into one part named
Product responsibility and service quality below. ESG Issue
#7 Noise pollution is also described inside the Renovation
works part below. Lastly, the relevant regulations and rules
have been mentioned in the corresponding sections to
address the compliance concerns from the stakeholders.

Based on the above analysis, this Report will cover the
following major ESG related issues, and describe them in
order according to the importance of the ESG issues to our
stakeholders.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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Social, Employment and Labour Practices

HE ERERFIESR

ESG aspects ESG aspects
as set out in Material ESG issues as set out in Material ESG issues
ESG Guide for the Company ESG Guide Area for the Company
ESG 155 H fi# ESG 155 H Fi#
ZESGEH AAFZEKRESGEE ZESGEH gk AARZEKRESGEE
B6 Product — Product B1 Employment —  Employee
Responsibility responsibility and EE compensation and
EmET service quality benefits
EmBEERBBER EEFIRET
— Data privacy and — Recruitment,
protection promotion and
BEILE RiRE dismissal
B BTt RRE
— Advertising and
labelling — Equal opportunity
BERTE TEke
— Employee working
hours and rest
periods
EEIERZRERS
B2 Health and — Workplace health B3 Development — Employee training
Safety and safety and Training and development
BEHEZ T TiEGMEERE ZFRRIE EBEEIRER
g
B7 Anti-corruption | —  Anti-corruption B8 Community — Social responsibility
RES and anti-money Investment HERME
laundering HtERE
REF KB
FERE
B5 Supply Chain — Supply chain B4 Labour — Anti-child and anti-
Management relationship Standards forced labour
HEHRERE management LTIZE BEET R
HERBERER w5 T
Annual Report 2021 —EZ—FFH
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Environmental

ESG aspects

ﬁﬂ:

ESG aspects

as set out in Material ESG issues as set out in Material ESG issues
ESG Guide for the Company ESG Guide for the Company
ESG 3| % & ESG 3| % s
ZESGEH AARZEKRESGEE ZESGEH AARAZEKRESGEE
A2 Use of — Energy A3 Environmental — External lighting
Resources consumption Impacts from PANE R
BFRAH e Investments
KELEERE |— Renovation works
—  Use of packaging Z REIRE
materials
ERBRME
Al Emissions — Non-hazardous A4 Climate Change |— Climate Resilience
235474 waste SAEEE RIENEHEHE
BEEEY
— Air emissions
REHEM
— Greenhouse Gas
Emissions
mEREHR
Oriental Watch Holdings Limited RAEXRITEBEERAQA
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SOCIAL, EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES

Product Responsibility
Product responsibility and service quality

Being one of the largest watch retailers in Hong Kong, the
Company has joined the “Hong Kong Q-Mark Scheme”
of the Hong Kong Q-Mark Council to attest the quality of
its products and services. To achieve high product and
service quality, the Company only imports watches from
manufacturers who use environmentally friendly and safe raw
materials for production. This ensures the products we sell
to our customers are safe. During the Reporting Period, the
Company is not aware of any product recall due to safety
and health reasons. Moreover, the Company uses marketing
materials provided by the suppliers to ensure consistency
between actual product specification and information on the
marketing materials. It guarantees the compliance with the
Trade Description Ordinance in Hong Kong, Commercial
Code in Macau and Advertisement Laws in Mainland China.
During the Reporting Period, we have not identified any
material non-compliance with the abovementioned laws and
regulations.

The Company’s retail shops are all located at prime
locations to allow customers to enjoy convenient and
comfortable shopping experience. The Company has
established a specially designed VIP lounge at the flagship
stores to provide a private, nice and leisure environment
for customers to exchange professional knowledge and
insights of timepieces with our staff. Our professional sales
team are well-trained and strive to provide comprehensive
and knowledgeable advice accompanied with sincere and
premium services to each customer.

Customer feedback can be communicated through various
channels such as designated customer service hotline, email
address and social media platforms. Reports of enquiries
and complaints are recorded and reviewed regularly by
the management team for improvements on products
and services. During the Reporting Period, the Company
is not aware of any serious products and service related
complaints due to safety and health reasons.

Annual Report 2021
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With our persistent sincerity and valuable relationship with
customers, the Company has been awarded the “Service
Industry Leader — Silver Award” by the Hong Kong Retail
Management Association.

Data privacy and protection

The Company respects the data privacy of our prestigious
customers, business partners and staff. It strives to protect
the privacy in the collection, processing and use of personal
data. The Company strictly follows the data protection
regulations in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China.
Furthermore, the Company has deployed appropriate
technical measures in place, such as firewall and anti-virus
software, to protect personal data against unauthorised use
or access. The Company guarantees that the personal data
is securely kept and processed only for the purpose for
which it has been collected.

We devote our efforts in compliance with the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance, Sale of Goods Ordinance,
Trade Description Ordinance, Supply of Services (Implied
Terms) Ordinance in Hong Kong, Commercial Code and
Personal Data Protection Act in Macau, and Product Quality
Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and
Advertisement Laws in Mainland China. During the Reporting
Period, we have not identified any material non-compliance
with the abovementioned laws and regulations.

Advertising and labelling

We execute our marketing strategy with the principle of
integrity as it is our responsibility to treat our customers fairly
and truthfully. Therefore, our marketing, advertising, and
sales related materials and services must always be genuine
and precise with the aim to meet the customer needs. We
never misrepresent any untruthful statements that would as
a result mislead our customers. Our advertisements are all
factually correct to the real product. Our products are only
offered to meet the customers’ needs and we are prohibited
to sell unsuitable product.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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Health and Safety
Workplace health and safety

The Company is committed to providing a safe, healthy,
pleasant and efficient work environment for its staff. In
order to ensure the work environment is healthy and safe,
various administrative measures such as workplace safety
posters, training courses and practical guidelines have been
implemented to communicate such a concept to all staff in
its extensive retail network. Regardless of seriousness and
locations, all cases of injury are required to be reported to
the head office for further assessment under the internal
policies and procedures so as to ensure proper handling of
the cases and execution of preventive measures. In FY2021,
we have not identified any number of lost days by the
Company’s employees due to work-related injuries and any
case of work-related fatalities.

As a responsible employer, all staff are entitled to the
Company’s medical insurance and other competitive fringe
benefits to enable them to have easier access to preventive
and emergency health care services and affordable
treatment.

We realise the laws and regulations about workplace health
and safety have been tightened and more aware by the
local authorities. We have spent efforts in compliance with
the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance and Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance in Hong Kong, safety laws in
Macau (i.e. Section 2/83/M), and Work Safety Law of the
PRC in Mainland China. During the Reporting Period, we
have not identified any material non-compliance with the
aforesaid workplace health and safety-related laws and
regulations.

Annual Report 2021
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Anti-corruption
Anti-corruption and anti-money laundering

We believe that honesty, integrity and fairness are of vital
importance to our business operations. The Company
has incorporated a strict code of conduct in its staff
manual for all employees to specify that solicitation and
acceptance of advantages are prohibited and breaches of
the code of conduct would result in disciplinary actions.
Regular declaration of interest is compulsory for certain
staff depending on grades and positions. Reminders are
sent to employees regularly, and our business partners,
suppliers and contractors are also informed of our policy
on declaration of interests. Employees have been given
induction briefing organised by the Company or seminars
on anti-corruption regularly organised by the Independent
Commission Against Corruption of the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. The Company
also maintains a set of whistleblowing procedures and
periodically reviews the effectiveness of its internal control
systems.

We adhere to the applicable laws and regulations in
relation to the bribery, corruption and money laundering,
for example, the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, and
Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
Ordinance in Hong Kong, Prevention and Suppression of
Bribery in the Private Sector in Macau, and Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the PRC, Interim Provisions on Banning
Commercial Bribery and Criminal Law of the PRC in
Mainland China. During the Reporting Period, we have not
identified any material non-compliance with the aforesaid
laws and regulations.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

k&S
REZR 1L RE

HAFIRRIE - BUE - BRRERDTFHHMES
LEERER - ARREREBTFMA
FIERTATE  HE2BEEET &
FHEABRERMEKZ M - B ERTT
RTAERLRED - R TFRA LM
FTEIWATHBERMNE - AAREH
REEREE  MEBBH - HERIARS
NESHBBBRMNG CHEK - BEDE
RARRBRZ ANBEHRE  HFEEE
R RITT R BT BRI A & 5E B &t 2 B 1E
BISHBE - ARBINRERHIEF > UE
Ef e ot L B B 12 I 2 BROAK

BABTHEEBR  BESRAREZER
ERNOER - BIaNEE 2 B LR RO K
TERELRND FTESESEK0 - R
Z TP Ko s@ kAL BB P B RDE 2 A K B
Az FER A IEEHFE - BRELRE
EHBROTRNETRERPEAE - 2
IR AR RBIR EAUR R MR BE
MEXRERIFR

RAXRTEEBRLQF



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RR - HERERHRE

Supply Chain Management
Supply chain relationship management

Since its establishment in 1961, we have established and
maintained strong relationships with various well-known
luxury European watch brands. Many of these brands
are accredited for their supreme quality and excellent
craftsmanship. Furthermore, their products are required to
comply with high production standards and pass through
various testing procedures to ensure quality. Apart from
product quality, we also consider the reputation, as well
as the environmental and social performance of the watch
manufacturers before establishing business relationship with
them. Our Company purchases well-known luxury watches
from their brand regional offices. The following table shows
the total number of suppliers in FY2021 across different
regions:

Hong Kong
B8

Supply chain management
e E IR

HEgEE
REBEEFEEE

ARB B —NNR—FRILIAK > —HE—
R % B BOMN S 5K an R S R R R R
BiE - ZEmETNVEESRELR T
BREZER - W BEZERANSE
SEERENBBTRBS - AR
BH-RERMENIN  HEFEEREY
EHBEER - ROAMEEEBERIRER
HETEZRE - ARBIARE 2o &
HMEREBNANBEER - TRER
—T - —METRMEAHER R

Mainland
Macau China

-4 PE Rt

No. of suppliers FY 2021 |Supplier 100 60 13 173
—E-UFEHEREE |HED
No. of suppliers FY 2020 |Supplier 100 60 20 180
— T THFEHEREAE |[HER

Employment

Considering human resources as the most important asset
of the Company, the Company has established employment
policies and guidelines based on the local employment laws
in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China.

Employee compensation and benefits

The Company takes reference from local industrial average
to determine staff remuneration and other fringe benefits.
Experience and qualifications of staff are also taken into
account. Key performance indices, depending on staff
position, have been adopted to measure staff performance
in determining staff salary packages.

Annual Report 2021
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Recruitment, promotion and dismissal e EHREE

The Company hires and promotes staff who share and RAREBAEKRRBARBIL X AN FFE
support the Company’s missions, values and work ethics. & - BEEKBXBEEZET - ARQAIERE
The Company treasures those who demonstrate diligence, RIRHE T8 FELARSEZ B
initiative, responsibility and integrity. Hiring and promotion T ARBIAKRBRINEABERMEFAEZ
are based on performance and merit. pi: )

Total workforce in FY2021: TEC—UFZETHRY

Mainland

Hong Kong Macau China
g8 P PEIA

Total workforce

BT
Full-time employee Employee 186 22 355 563
THRES (==

Total workforce by gender
RMRI8 Dz B THE

Male Employee 113 10 82 205
St (==
Female Employee 73 12 273 358
g (==

Total workforce by age group
RERE D ZBETHEH

Below 30 Employee 8 3 39 50
30mMA T ’EE
30-50 Employee 117 13 297 427
80 & 50 5% (=]
Over 50 Employee 61 6 19 86
503 A (==

Total workforce by employee category
RESRREI D 2 ETHE

General level Employee 114 16 297 427
— R AR ’®E
Middle management level |Employee 46 5 50 101
PAREIRE (==
Senior management level |Employee 26 1 8 35
= ARE TR E (=
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Dismissal is considered for underperformance, misconduct B I XI|RKXE - TALEE R K TILHK
and/or fraud. All dismissal cases will be carried out in  3F ' AR T E@EZEKERE - T8 RERE
accordance with the Employment Laws in Hong Kong, REWES B NPE R 2 B IE LA
Macau and Mainland China. T ©

Employee turnover rate' in FY2021: R MFEZREBRKE

Mainland
Hong Kong Macau China

Bt -4 RER

Employee resigned/terminated

BT/ HBES

Total Employee 11 0 54 65
st BB

Turnover rate Percentage 591% — 15.21% 11.55%
MR K [EiNsd

Employee resigned/terminated by gender

RIUERIED < BHE/BRIESR

Male Total Employee 5 0 14 19
Sk G B8
Turnover rate Percentage 4.42% — 17.07% 9.27%
MK E B
Female Total Employee 6 0 40 46
g BF B8
Turnover rate Percentage 8.22% — 14.65% 12.85%
TR E [EiNsd

Employee resigned/terminated by age group

BEREND BT/ BRES

Below 30 Total Employee 1 0 11 12
0B A T EEll E&
Turnover rate Percentage 12.5% - 28.21% 24%
K BA
Between 30-50 Total Employee 7 0 40 47
30 £ 50 5% &7 8
Turnover rate Percentage 5.98% — 13.47% 11.01%
MR [EbiNsd
Over 50 Total Employee 3 0 3 6
50m A £ =5l E&
Turnover rate Percentage 4.92% - 15.79% 6.98%
MR E Bt
' Employee turnover rate (percentage) = Number of employee departure ' RERAR(BOL)=ZERIREHBAR 2
of the category/Total employees at the end of the Reporting Period x WMAIRBE B8 x 100%
100%

A
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Equal opportunity

The Company is an equal opportunity employer. The
Company emphasises human capital diversity, and is
against any kind of discrimination. The Company ensures
equal opportunity in all of its human resources processes,
regardless of gender, pregnancy, marital status, disability,
family status, and race of the staff.

Employee working hours and rest periods

Working hours, rest periods and other benefits and
welfare are determined based on local industrial averages.
Experience, qualifications and seniority of staff are taken into
account as well.

We have put great emphasis to the compliance with the
labour-related laws and regulations such as the Employment
Ordinance and Minimum Wage Ordinance in Hong Kong,
Labour Relations Law, and Framework Law on Employment
Policy and Worker’s Rights in Macau as well as Labour
Law of the PRC and Labour Contract Law of the PRC in
Mainland China. During the Reporting Period, we have not
identified any material non-compliance with the aforesaid
employment laws and regulations.

Development and Training
Employee training and development

The Company considers human resources as vitally
important to the success of its business. Therefore,
the Company has developed a comprehensive training
programme consisting of product knowledge, service and
selling skills, complaints handling techniques and managerial
competences. These training courses are provided for
different levels of staff based on their job responsibilities.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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The Company also offers induction training courses for
communicating corporate values, service standards and
code of conduct to new joiners. In addition, leadership
programmes organised by external professional institutions
have been provided to management personnel so as to
equip them with proper professional management skills.
Furthermore, the Company has engaged external service
providers to perform independent evaluation on the
performance of frontline staff. It helps identify potential
improvement areas to enhance customer service skills of the

staff.

The percentage of employees trained” in FY2021:

Hong Kong

Number of employee trained by gender

RURE D 2 ZIIEB AR

&E B

AR B IR F A B E B 52 1 ABUE DIER
2 BERFTHEREE RERERT
AT AN KRR EREEABR
HHRINSEXBRES I 2 RMaTE - BR
ERRABEEREEREE - 1IN AAF
EREINERGHERB LI ZATRE T
ZRE - BREBREREZR  REE
T2 EP RG]

T HETIREZBS R

Mainland
Macau China

I E A it

Male
B

Total trained Employee
workforce ==
XHIE T A

88 1 69 158

Employees —
training rate
1B BRI

- 77.07%

Female

g3

Total trained Employee
workforce ==
X B TEAE

45 0 246 291

Employees —
training rate
B Bl

- 81.24%

2

Employee training rate (percentage) = Number of trained workforce
of the category/Total workforce of the category at the end of the

Reporting Period x 100%
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Mainland
Hong Kong Macau China

gH A T A it
Total workforce and number of employee trained by employee category

RREEERED ZBABEZIEE AK

General level Total workforce Employee 114 16 297 427
— AR BTHAR (=]
Total trained Employee 69 1 308 378
workforce (==
THIB THAE
Employees — — 88.52%

training rate

EEFIIE

Middle Total workforce Employee 46 5 50 101
management level |8 T4 A £ ==
PREEE
Total trained Employee 46 0 7 53
workforce ==
XHIB THAE
Employees - - 52.48%

training rate

B EEIE

Senior management | Total workforce Employee 26 1 8 35
level BT#AH ==
aSRERE
Total trained Employee 18 0 0 18
workforce ==
B THBAZ
Employees — — 51.43%

training rate

(S SEEUES
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The average training hours completed per employee® in —E - —HMEGLES =K FHIEIE
FY2021: 28

Mainland
Hong Kong Macau China

& B! FE At

Total training hours by gender
IR El 5 2 4855 21

Male Training hours Hour 443.5 7 3,450 3,900.5
Sk 5B 28 /NE
Average training | Hour - 19.03
hours /N
TGI8
Female Training hours Hour 242 0 12,300 12,542
pegid 55 911 B 8K N
Average training | Hour — 35.03
hours N
IR B

Total training hours by employee category
1R B RIEI 5 2 #8557 B

General level Training hours Hour 378.5 7 15330 15,715.5
— R =ElLEE /N
Average training | Hour — 36.80
hours INF
955 385 B
Middle Training hours Hour 223 0 420 643
management level | 5 3l £ /N
hREEE
Average training | Hour — 6.37
hours N3
FI5E IR 2
Senior management| Training hours Hour 84 0 0 84
level 5 21 2K /NI
Average training |Hour — 2.4
hours AN
I I 2

®  Average training hours = Total number of training hours for employees ¢ FEIEE = ZAREEMNEIEIIRSE 2

of the category/ Number of employees of the category at the end of wAIRZEREE AE
the Reporting Period
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Community Investment
Social responsibility

The Company demonstrates its care for society by giving
back to the community. We are committed to enhancing
the community’s well-being and social services. During
the reporting period, the Company as a whole, as well as
individual senior management personnel have been actively
donating to various charitable organisations with a lump sum
of HKD$7,500 equivalent. On one hand, it provides funding
to support charity activities. On the other hand, it motivates
the staff to join the charity activities, thereby magnifying the
effect.

During FY2021, the Company sponsored the Hong Kong
Children In Need Foundation, including activities named
“Make the Time, Share the Joy — Koftball” and “Make the
Time, Share the Joy — Make your Own STEM Robot car”.

“Make the Time, Share the Joy — Koftball” aims at
discovering youngsters’ interests and talents, instilling them
with sportsmanship, discipline and positive thinking and
“Make the Time, Share the Joy — Make your Own STEM
Robot car” aims at flourishing and unleash the students’
potential in creativity and improving their communication
and problem solving skills.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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Labour Standards
Anti-child and anti-forced labour

All of the Company’s offices and retail stores strictly comply
with the local law’s requirements, with no tolerance on child
and forced labour. During our hiring process, we check and
verify the personal data of the potential candidates in order
to prevent from hiring child or forced labour.

We have noted the requirements about child or forced
labour in the local laws and regulations of our operating
locations. Therefore we strictly adhere to these laws and
regulations such as Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong,
Labour Relations Law in Macau and Labour Law of the PRC
in Mainland China. During the Reporting Period, we have not
identified any material non-compliance with the aforesaid
employment laws and regulations.

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Company exerts its best efforts in protecting the
environment from its business activities and workplace. The
Company is committed to promoting the green concept
by introducing environmentally friendly business practices
and educating its employees to raise their awareness on
environmental protection.

Multiple measures have been adopted to reduce energy
and other resource use, minimise waste, increase recycling
and promote environmentally friendly practices in its supply
chain and retail network operations. During FY2021, owing
to the recovery after the outbreak of COVID-19, this has
resulted in an increase of our overall sales revenue. Along
with the cancellation of flexible work arrangements, the
overall consumption of energy consumption of FY2021
increased as compared to that of FY2020 while the use of
other resources (including packaging materials) of FY2021
decreased as compared to that of FY2020.

Annual Report 2021

HIR%E
BrIt ET R By IEiE 7% T

ARBREMAERTEERIEETILS
ERRE  BTIRXEIRBHBT - &
LZFEABRET  RAREUXEEER
BEZBEAER  EEMHILERETHR
HIET

BAEERRRMIEX M 2 EHEER
ERBREETIRFISE T ZRE - Bt
BFIBTUTERIOER  WEBEBZER
firf) ~ R 2 SBRERARFEAMZ F
BEEE - 2HMMA - HAIHARERE Lt
BIBERLERBEMERERBR

B

ARRBEE2NRERRE  FRERIE
BRBR TSP E - ARBRNIHEE
REBT  SIARRBREN  LHERE

BIRFHEREH -

RAREERMZEERE  UWREHEHEKR
TEEREERPRDEAEREEME
R RERLEREY - REW - UEE
BEBRR RITZ_—MF #2019
BARESRBEENER  BHRMOE
BEHEERALA BREUBEENTIELR
B —T-MFNREREFEEER_F
“THFEMEEEMER M_TZ—0F
MNEMER(BESEME) BERREHE—
ST FAELLRI B TEE -

TEZ-FER

59



60

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE-HERERBHRE

During our daily operations, we are subject to the Product
Eco-responsibility Ordinance and Motor Vehicle Idling
(Fixed Penalty) Ordinance in Hong Kong, environmental
laws in Macau (i.e. Section 2/91/M), and Law of the PRC
on Prevention and Control of Pollution from Environmental
Noise and Environmental Protection Law of the PRC
in Mainland China. We strictly adhere to all applicable
environmental laws and regulations and we have not
identified any material non-compliance with the aforesaid
laws and regulations during the Reporting Period.

We established a Group-wide five years reduction target
for the Scope 1, 2 & 3 emissions of our core business
by approximately 13% in total. The estimated reduction
target was established by using the data of FY2021 as the
baseline year. Employees will continue to be reminded to
minimise unnecessary consumption of resources, and shall
continue to implement green efforts in reducing resource
consumption from its source. Relevant emission figures will
be monitored periodically to ensure the Group is on track to
achieve the reduction target.

Use of Resources

Owing to the nature of our retail business, our operations
do not involve significant water consumption and no issue
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose was noted during
the Reporting Period. Fuels, electricity and packaging bags
are the major resources we use in our luxury watch retail
business.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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Energy consumption

During the Reporting Period, the types and amount of
energy consumed were as follows:

FY2021

— = —

—_——

Energy Type Unit Amount
BRER By
Electricity E kWh

F R/ 2,842,179
Diesel 4238 Liter AFF 11,656
Petrol i Liter AFF 23,127

To minimise energy consumption in its retail stores and
offices, the Company advocates the efficient use of energy
by adopting green technologies and close monitoring
on operations. As a retailer of luxury watches, the most
significant use of energy has arisen from the electricity
consumption in retail stores for air conditioning and lighting.
The Company monitors technology advancements in
lighting systems and upgrades the systems accordingly so
as to increase overall operating efficiency. For instance,
the Company has replaced many of the traditional light
bulbs with LED ones, which are more energy efficient. In
addition, the Company measures and records the energy
consumption on an on-going basis to analyse its energy
consumption efficiency.

Annual Report 2021

FERE
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FY2020

—BE T -TEF
Intensity Intensity
(Per square (Per square
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locations) Amount locations)
BE(BYH REETH
UN-E 3.8 ) BE REXMH)

50.4 2,661,487 44.69
0.21 11,326 0.20
0.41 22,503 0.39
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Use of packaging materials

We consume packaging bags and materials in our business.
During the Reporting Period, the packaging materials
consumed were as follows:

RFEaENH

BMALHERORESRME - 288
A PR MBI -

FY2021 FY2020

—E-—BE B _TEF

Unit Amount Amount

By EfE 28

Packaging materials BB kg F= 2,200 13,357

Our data collection system for our packaging materials
include both normal packaging materials and all kinds of
shopping bags including recycled shopping bags.

All of the packaging bags distributed to customers are made
of Forest Stewardship Council (“FSC”) accredited paper
which are more environmentally friendly. Furthermore, the
packaging bags are designed to fit the product size in order
to avoid excessive packaging. Packaging bags will only
be distributed upon customers’ request. The consumption
of the packaging materials in FY2021 is lower than that
in FY2020 because of the Company’s encouragement for
using reusable eco bags.

Emissions
Owing to the nature of our retail business, the Company has
no production activities or facilities. Therefore, there were no

sewage discharge to the environment during the Reporting
Period.
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Non-hazardous waste

Owing to the Company’s retail business nature, no
hazardous waste was produced during the Reporting
Period. For non-hazardous wastes, the major type was the
paper used for administrative work and the details of non-
hazardous wastes created were as follows:

FY2021
—RC-ME

Type Unit Quantity
il By

Non-hazardous waste EEREZEY) tonnes M 21.52

As compared to FY2020, the reduction of non-hazardous
waste was mainly caused by a lower usage of paper and
our effective paper recycling initiatives.

To reduce office waste paper, the Company has been
creating a paperless working environment through increasing
the use of internet system gradually. On one hand, it
reduces environmental damage; on the other hand, it fits
commercial goals, as this saves office space used for storing
hardcopies and facilitates efficient information sharing via
office network. Furthermore, double-sided printing and
copying has become compulsory in the Company except
for special circumstances with approval obtained. Only used
paper can be used as draft paper by staff. Collection boxes
have been put in place to collect single-side used paper for
reuse and other scrap paper for recycling. These can help
reduce paper consumption and save costs substantially. To
monitor the paper usage efficiency, consumption records of
paper and printing have been regularly collected, assessed
and monitored.
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Air emissions FTEHH

We maintain vehicles for our executives and customers, as  HFIATHRAEBREFRERE RIERE
well as for delivery purposes. Such vehicles are the major it - B SE ARBHRZ T EJRE -
source of our air emissions. During the Reporting Period, Z2%WmEAA @ B2 B2 BEOT -

our air emissions details were as follows:

FY2021 FY2020

—E--HBF —E-FHF

Source of emission* Unit Amount Amount
HEROR * B EfE 218
Nitrogen oxides (“NOXx”) RA/t¥(INOx]) tonnes M 0.14 0.13
Sulphur oxides (“SOx”) RE ¥ (1SOx]) tonnes M 0.00053 0.00051
Particular matter (“PM”) BIFRF([PM]) tonnes M@ 0.012 0.012

We are aware of the air emissions generated from our use HPREINFERGEELE 2 REHER
of vehicles so that we have established internal procedures HHEME RTINS EFREABmSE - I
to reduce the negative impact and ensure the compliance BIRETEAEZRITLEHEMH &+
with the Air Pollution Control Ordinance in Hong Kong and IRIBREE o Blan - B E B ES$ /R EE AR
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC. For example, e WLHEREZEEMWHEAIEFERA -
we monitored the vehicle conditions on a regular basis and

arranged the vehicles for annual test by the local authority.

4

The calculation of air emissions was based on the “Reporting Guidance Y ORBEREDNEREBBARSIERARZ
on Environmental KPIs” of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. [R5 R BRI ZEERIES| J5TH -
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Greenhouse gas emissions

The Company’s major business is luxury watches retailing in
different geographical areas of the Greater China region, the
major direct greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 emission)
of the Company came from the use of vehicles. Our major
indirect greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 2 emission) and
other indirect greenhouse emissions (Scope 3 emission)
came from the electricity consumption and paper use of
offices and retail stores respectively. The details of the
greenhouse gas emission (“CO,e”) were as follows:

—E=

BERBHH

ARB 2 EBEH RN AP ER TR
BREREERTE  HARRZERER
EREBHR(EBE ) T ERBER
AE - BHMAZCEEAERBHR(EE—
RO REMEZEEEREHER(EE=
BR)TERERLAERTEERERLA
o RERBHM(ICO)FHBWT ¢

FY2021 FY2020
~8 —ToFHE
Intensity Intensity
(Per square (Per square
foot of foot of
operating operating
Source of emission® Unit Quantity locations) Quantity locations)
BRE(BYA RE(BYH
BEHOR® By BE WEXEWH) BE WEEME)
Scope 1° EE—° tonne CO,e
1 CO.e 95.07 0.0017 91.58 0.0016
Scope 2’ BgE—' tonne CO,e
18 CO,e 1,886.43 0.030 1,667.42 0.030
Scope 3° #HE="° tonne CO,e
1 CO,e 44.77 0.00079 51.86 0.00090
Total st tonne CO,e
[ COLe 2,026.27 0.032 1,810.86 0.032

The calculation of greenhouse gas emissions was based on the
“Greenhouse Gas Protocol” published by World Resources Institute
and World Business Council on Sustainable Development, “Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, “Guidelines to Account for and Report on
Greenhouse Gas Emission and Removals for Buildings (Commercial,
Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong” by Hong Kong
Environmental Protection Department and Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department, “CLP Sustainability Report 2020” by CLP
Holdings Limited, “HONG KONG Electric Sustainability Report 2020”
by Hongkong Electric Company Limited, “CEM Sustainability Report
2019” by Companhia de Electricidade de Macau, “FE F3@ERH D
BEREHIZE 5 AEREEMA(FTT)” published by the National
Development and Reform Commission of the PRC, and “20194 %
SHEETE B R B s A E LR HE A T published by the Ministry of
Ecology and Environment of the PRC.

Scope 1 emission, which include carbon emission from vehicles.
Scope 2 emission, which include carbon emission from electricity
consumption by the company.

Scope 3 emission, which include carbon emission from paper usage
by the company.
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We are cautious about the environment and the carbon
footprints in our operations. We have put into practice
certain environmentally friendly initiatives in reducing the
greenhouse gas emission. Please refer to Use of Resources
for details.

Environmental Impacts from Investments

As most of our retail stores are located at central business
areas, the Company endeavours to minimise its impacts
on the environment by identifying, assessing and managing
environmental impacts resulting from its various operational
activities regularly. For any significant impacts identified,
the Company will immediately formulate and execute
the corresponding mitigation measures and monitor its
effectiveness continuously to ensure the impacts have been
resolved.

External lighting

As a luxury watch retailer, the Company uses standout
advertising signs to attract customers, which may create
certain level of light. In view of that, the Company has
signed up to the “Charter on External Lighting” launched
by the Environment Bureau of the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administration Region such that all advertising
signs of the retails stores will be switched off between
11 p.m. and 7 a.m. on the following day.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

I E 2 RE MR R EMRIFE
MEERE TREBBIEEE
Mo FIEHLEEREA -

B3
i

mASHE

REHBRENEE

HRAFDTEEFEURTREER - A
b RRARHAOREEHREZZE &
HER - HERERESREELRHHIR
BERZTE - ERERFE KRR
AR BB HE R MITHEE 2 EEE
M WIEERERY  WBRABTE
BRIfRR -

FIME

IRBEERTER  ARAERESE
WEIEE > AR L —EiREZRE A
BN - ARRIERZFBFIITHRER
FRRERBELZIFPINERNE]  TFTE
ERERSEEN TF+—REE2A £
FALRFIERE

RAXRTEEBRLQF



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RR - HERERHRE

Renovation works

Renovation works are carried out regularly to ensure our
retail shops offer pleasant environment to customers and to
increase our bargaining power when negotiating rental terms
with landlords. As such, noise and dust will be resulted
from the renovation works and affect the neighbourhood.
Although all renovation works are outsourced to third party
contractors which the Company has no direct control, we
require our contractors to execute all possible measures in
mitigating the negative impacts on the neighbourhood, for
example, requiring renovation works to be carried out during
non-peak hours and installing barriers to prevent dust and
noise from spreading out.

Climate Change
Climate Resilience

The management of the Company has a controlling interest
and will take adequate steps to build its resilience to climate
change by identifying and managing climate change risks
and opportunities and by developing strategies which are in
line with global best practices to adapt to and mitigate the
impact of climate change on its operations.

In order to mitigate the impact of climate change, we
reduced the carbon footprint through the establishment and
implementation of long-term carbon emissions reduction
targets. We encourage employees, suppliers and customers
to reduce carbon emissions in their daily operations
wherever practicable. We will adopt industry best practices
to improve energy efficiency in our operations.

Annual Report 2021

RIELE

ARG EHEETEL  UBRRSEHA
BEREHRTFEERE  EEIEFHEBEERX
BEORAI IS INGRERE ) - Atk - EETEE
EXRIEAME FERAEEREH - &
EREIREZMINATE=ZFFREEHE
17 NATWEmBEREITEGE - A - B
ESOREEERI— A 1THE b - R AR
ﬁ%aZ%ﬁ%; mm EREFETE
R IEE TR I & BRI LE D EE
AR o

RIRZE
RIR T EIE e

$ AlcEREAAERER - WK
Hit  BREERLEEREE(CER
&%Q AR FERERIREET R — D
REANERFERIRZ(CHEZE LR
£ R ENERRE(CZ5ENE

REFERRIRZE(CAB 2T E  RfBBR

VW BTRERDRBEMBE - B E
By e B EEE  HEEEREFPEAT

BIL IR AR & B R AR o AP
ROEAZKERHR E2EPREERR

.
# o

TEZ-FER

67



68

DIRECTORS' REPORT
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company as
well as engaged in watch trading. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Company and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 87 to 88.

An interim dividend of 2.8 Hong Kong cents per share and
a special dividend of 9.2 Hong Kong cents per share were
declared and paid to the shareholders during the year. A
final dividend of 12.0 Hong Kong cents per share and a
special dividend of 27.0 Hong Kong cents per share being
proposed by the directors are subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

RESERVES

As at 31 March 2021, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution consisted of contributed surplus of
HK$122,183,000, dividend reserve of HK$190,070,000 and
retained profits of HK$41,567,000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus account of the Company is available
for distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(@) to do so would render the Company unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than its liabilities.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group incurred approximately HK$24.3
million on the purchase of property, plant and equipment.
Details of these and other movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note
15 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Dr. Yeung Ming Biu (passed away on 5 February 2021)
Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis

Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley

Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain

Independent non-executive directors:

Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain and Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the directors has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Details of the remuneration paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company and the senior management of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 are set out in note
11 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests of the directors of
the Company in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company, as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQO”), or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
were as follows:

EEHACRSEERAR

RIFEEEF LB RO ([ 7#F 5 KB R
Bl1)ZE 352 IEMERE 2 Bl ATaC 8% -
R-ZE-_—F=A=+—H AQAzE
ERARB 2B RABBRND T HE 2
wm HRBEETRARESETERRIN
ZEESHBNE AN RESHAELSH
ERAR([BRPT]) 2T -

Number of shares held

frsRH#E
Percentage of
Total  issued share
Personal Family Corporate number  capital of the
interest interest interest of shares Company
BARAEET
Name of director Esng BARE FikER PGl Reag REBAL
Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis BiTREE 5,524,000 - (note (a)) 5,524,000 1.13%
(li()
Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shiley ~ B&lE&L 2,640,000 221,161 (note (b)) 2,861,161 0.59%
(i)
Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain HEBLE 3,600,000 - - 3,600,000 0.74%
Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson FEEEL - - 3,200,000 3,200,000 0.66%
(note (c))
(H()
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Notes:

Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis and his wife are the beneficial owners of
an aggregate of about 16.7% of the issued share capital of Realtower
Holdings Limited, the beneficial owner of 10% of the issued share
capital of Furama Investments Limited, which in turn is the beneficial
owner of 80% of the issued share capital of Datsun Holdings
Limited. He is also the beneficial owner of about 14.3% of the
issued share capital of Real Champ Limited, the beneficial owner of
20% of the issued share capital of Datsun Holdings Limited. Datsun
Holdings Limited is the beneficial owner of 127,776,000 shares in
the Company. He is also the beneficial owner of 2.5% of the issued
share capital of Y.H. Chan Limited, which is the beneficial owner of
25% of the issued share capital of Furama Investments Limited. Y.H.
Chan Limited also directly holds 388,561 shares in the Company.

Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley is the beneficial owner of about
13.3% of the issued share capital of Realtower Holdings Limited.

Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson and his family members are the beneficial
owners of the entire issued share capital of Sun International Limited,
which is the beneficial owner of 3,200,000 shares in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the
directors of the Company had any interest or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

(@) 2003 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
Company’s special general meeting held on 3
November 2003, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “2003 Share Option Scheme”).
The 2003 Share Option Scheme was valid for a period
of ten years commencing on the adoption date on 3
November 20083.
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Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, options might
be granted to any director, employee, consultant,
customer, supplier or advisor of the Group or a
company in which the Company holds an interest or a
subsidiary of such company, the trustee of the eligible
persons or a company beneficially owned by the
eligible persons. The purpose of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme was to attract and retain quality personnel
and other persons to provide incentive to them to
contribute to the business and operation of the Group.
No eligible persons should be granted an option in any
12-month period for such number of shares (issued
and to be issued) which in aggregate would exceed
1% of the share capital of the Company in issue on the
last day of such 12-month period unless approval of
the shareholders of the Company had been obtained
in accordance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
The exercisable period was determined by the directors
of the Company, which should not be more than 10
years from the date of grant, and might include a
minimum period for which the options must be held
before it could be exercised. The exercise price per
share payable on the exercise of an option equaled to
the highest of:

(@) the nominal value of one share;

(b) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant; and

(c) the average closing price per share as quoted in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for
the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant.

The 2003 Share Option Scheme expired on 2
November 2013. The options could be exercised by the
participants at any time during the option period and
notwithstanding that the 2003 Share Option Scheme
had expired.
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The following table discloses movements of the options TREEEE  ETEENERRSF
granted under the 2003 Share Option Scheme to NIRE —_ T = FRERET2IERE
directors, certain employees and consultants during the A% ¥ 2 SE) -
year:
Original  Adjusted Number of shares under
exercise  exercise options at
Name of category Date of grant price price 1.4.2019, 31.3.2020 and
of participant of options per share per share Exercisable period 31.3.2021
R=Z-NFNA-B-
“B-EFZR=1-HR
BRE FESR L “B--%=ZA=1-H
SREERER Rt A8 TEE BRORE FIEHH BRESRROHA
HK$ HK$
AT AT
(note a) (note a)
(Wi#a)  (Wita)
Directors
Bz
Dr. Yeung Ming Biu 06.04.2011 413 3.44  06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021 1,440,000
BARELT
Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis 06.04.2011 413 3.44  06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021 1,440,000
BT
Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley ~ 06.04.2011 413 3.44  06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021 1,440,000
BRETT
Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain 06.04.2011 413 3.44  06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021 3,600,000
WEBLE
Mr. Choi Kwok Yum
(resigned on 1 June 2020) 06.04.2011 413 3.44  06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021 3,600,000
(R-E-FEXF—AFHE)
11,520,000
Other employees
Hitfg g
Type A (note b) 06.04.2011 413 3.44  06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021 14,400,000
AE(HHD)
Type B (note c) 29.08.2011 4.80 N/A 29.08.2011 — 28.08.2021 18,000,000
BE(Miitc) TER
Consultants
il
Type A (note b) 06.04.2011 413 3.44  06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021 2,640,000
AE(Hiztb)
Type B (note ¢) 29.08.2011 4.80 N/A~ 29.08.2011 — 28.08.2021 5,000,000
BE(Hitc) ki
Total 51,560,000
- H

A
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(b)

Notes:

(a) An ordinary resolution was passed by the shareholders at
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 28 July
2011 approving a bonus issue of shares to shareholders of
the Company on the basis of one new ordinary share for every
five ordinary shares held. The number of shares under the
outstanding options and the exercise price per share of the
outstanding options were adjusted accordingly pursuant to the
terms of the 2003 Share Option Scheme.

(b)  Type A represented share options were granted on 6 April
2011.

(c) Type B represented share options were granted on 29 August
2011.

As at the date of this report, all the above options have
expired and no shares are available for issue under the
20083 Share Option Scheme.

2013 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 13 August
2013, a new share option scheme was adopted with
effect on 3 November 2013 (the “2013 Share Option
Scheme”) after the expiry of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme.

Under the 2013 Share Option Scheme, options may
be granted to (i) any director, employee or consultant
of the Group or a company in which the Company
holds an equity interest or a subsidiary of such
company (“Affiliate”); or (ii) any discretionary trust
whose discretionary objects include any director,
employee or consultant of the Group or an Affiliate;
or (i) a company beneficially owned by any director,
employee or consultant of the Group or an Affiliate; or
(iv) any customer, supplier or adviser whose service to
the Group or business with the Group contributes or
is expected to contribute to the business or operation
of the Group. The purpose of the 2013 Share Option
Scheme is to attract and retain quality personnel
and other persons to provide incentive to them to
contribute to the business and operation of the Group.
The total number of shares available for issue under
the 2013 Share Option Scheme as at the date of this
report is 57,061,022 shares, representing about 11.7%
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of the issued share capital of the Company on such
date. No eligible persons shall be granted an option in
any 12-month period for such number of shares (issued
and to be issued) which in aggregate would exceed
1% of the share capital of the Company in issue on the
last day of such 12-month period unless approval of
the shareholders of the Company has been obtained
in accordance with the Listing Rules. The exercisable
period is determined by the directors of the Company,
which shall not be more than 10 years from the date of
grant, and may include a minimum period for which the
options must be held before it can be exercised. The
exercise price per share payable on the exercise of an
option equals to the highest of:

(@) the nominal value of one share;

(b) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant; and

(c) the average closing price per share as quoted in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for
the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant.

The 2013 Share Option Scheme will remain in force
until 2 November 2023.

No option has been granted, exercised or lapsed under
the 2013 Share Option Scheme since its effective date
on 3 November 2013 and there was no outstanding
share option under such scheme as at 31 March 2021.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2021, according to the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, the
following persons (not being a director or chief executive
of the Company) had interests in the share capital of the
Company:

Name of shareholder

FERR

RAFIRIEEFH R HE KD 5 336 KR T
FEZEEZMAT RZTE=—F=H
=t+t—B ' UTAT(XFEEARAZE
ERHRRITBRAB)RARAIBRATHES
R

Percentage of
issued share

Number of capital of the

shares held Company
REREZ B EARATE#IT
FriERH & E RAEET DL
Yeung Ming Biu 15 AR 155,754,144 31.96%
Datsun Holdings Limited Datsun Holdings Limited 127,776,000 26.22%
Furama Investments Limited Furama Investments Limited
(Note 1) (Hiat 1) 127,776,000 26.22%
Realtower Holdings Limited Realtower Holdings Limited
(Note 1) (Baz1) 127,776,000 26.22%
FMR LLC FMR LLC 40,338,851 8.28%
Pandanus Associates Inc. Pandanus Associates Inc. 34,975,647 7.18%
Pandanus Partners L.P. Pandanus Partners L.P.
(Notes 2 and 3) (Hiat2 % 3) 34,975,647 7.18%
483A Bay Street Holdings LP 483A Bay Street Holdings LP
(Note 3) (H#3) 34,077,647 6.99%
483A Bay Street Holdings 483A Bay Street Holdings
Management LLC Management LLC 34,077,647 6.99%
Fidelity Canada Investors LLC  Fidelity Canada Investors LLC
(Note 3) (K17 3) 34,077,647 6.99%
FIL Limited (Note 3) FIL Limited (#752 3) 34,975,647 7.18%
Ntasian Discovery Master Fund Ntasian Discovery Master Fund 29,164,000 5.11% (Note 4)
(Ki7F4)
TIG Advisors LLC TIG Advisors LLC 16,134,000 5.05% (Note 5)
(K17t 5)
Notes: W15t -
1. Realtower Holdings Limited holds 55% of the issued share capital of 1. Realtower Holdings Limited#§% Furama

Furama Investments Limited, which holds 80% of the issued share
capital of Datsun Holdings Limited. Accordingly, both Realtower
Holdings Limited and Furama Investments Limited are deemed under
the SFO to be interested in the 127,776,000 shares in the Company
held by Datsun Holdings Limited.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

Investments Limited B3 1TARZN55% + Furama
Investments Limited Bl 5 £ Datsun Holdings
Limited B 478N 80% ° HIt » RIEES K&
E 154 - Realtower Holdings Limited } Furama
Investments Limited¥3 # % /& # & Datsun
Holdings Limited FT¥% 2 127,776,000 i A& A 7]
Min s -

RAXRTEEBRLQF



DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEHE

2. Pandanus Partners L.P. was 100% owned by Pandanus Associates
Inc.

3 These companies were related. FIL Limited was 37.51% controlled
by Pandanus Partners L.P.

4. This percentage is according to the latest notice filed under the SFO
on 10 June 2016 on the basis of 570,610,224 shares then in issue.

5. This percentage is according to the latest notice filed under the SFO
on 15 January 2008 on the basis of 319,253,000 shares then in
issue.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2021, there was
no person who had any interests or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company according to
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent.

INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There were no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director or a connected entity of
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisting at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

There is no contract of significance between the Group and
a controlling shareholder of the Company (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries, including for the
provision of services to the Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers comprised approximately
99% of the Group’s total purchases while the purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier was
approximately 92% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder,
which to the knowledge of the directors owned more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest
in the share capital of any of the five largest customers or
suppliers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

On 20 November 2020, the Company bought back a total
of 83,000,000 shares of the Company at HK$3.00 per
share. Save as aforesaid, during the year ended 31 March
2021, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations totalling
HK$7,500.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Group are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 13 to 36.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had a total of about 563
employees.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set

by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.
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The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to
the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as an
incentive to directors and employees of the Group, details
of the schemes are set out in the paragraph headed “Share
option schemes and directors’ rights to acquire shares
or debentures” above and in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Details of the Group’s Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 23 to 27.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital
of the Company are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report, the percentage of the Company’s shares in the
hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s total
number of issued shares.
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AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting
of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Yeung Him Kit, Dennis
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 23 June 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZRBERE

Deloitte

To the Shareholders of
Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Oriental Watch Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 87 to 234, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Annual Report 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT

R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and

FERETEE

RETFHEERERMNERHE - R
REAPGAVBREANBARSEEN
FH - GUSRRERMETEBRESY
BRI MO ARRFETREDN - ZMAF
SHELEHERERENER

in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BRETEE

Net realisable value assessment of watches
Fik 2 o] B 5 FE TG

We identified net realisable value assessment of
watches included in inventories as a key audit
matter due to the significance of amount of
watches to the consolidated statement of financial
position as at the end of the reporting period,
and significant judgements and estimate by
management in determining the net realisable value
for watches.

AR FHEREBRMRNGE MR REFEREKN - B

EEENEE T A ERFERELERA M RMA
At Bt BRI ATFEZ TR AT RFER G

REARETSIE -

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group
identifies slow-moving watches with reference to
the ageing analysis. The net realisable value of
the watches are determined by considering the
saleability of watches based on current market
conditions, pricing policies and strategies, as well
as the historical/latest available sales information
of similar watches. As at 31 March 2021, the
carrying amount of watches (net of allowance) is
HK$603,763,000. Details of the allowance for slow-
moving watches charged during the year and the
carrying amount of watches (net of allowance) at
31 March 2021 are set out in notes 10 and 22 to
the consolidated financial statements, respectively.
BARE M BHRERMT4AEE X BEEEEEER
EZRRE DT BRFHEFE - FERASHRFEDEKER
IR - EEBREERE  ARBUFEMNATE &
MEEENZEEFERNAFHEREMETE - R_F
T—F=ZA=+—H FHOKASBEHRES) A
603,763,000/ 7T ° A BF AN 2 % 5 F 5k K
RZTEZ—F=A=+—AFHRZEABEGNRER)
DRNERERE M ImRM T 10 & 22 -

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ETNAHEARETSRETER

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of
watches included:

BAERETFREENEF B

e  Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s
allowance policy on watches and evaluating
management’s process in identifying slow-
moving watches and determining the
allowance for watches;

TR BEEENFERBERCK TEBTEER
AESHF R R EE FRBEHENET

o Evaluating the allowance policy adopted by
the management with reference to current
market conditions, historical and current sales
information, pricing policy and strategies,
inventory realisation plan, ageing and
conditions of inventories;
AEERELLERTMA  BERKFHEE
B EEBERNMREE FEZHTE - R
RIFEMRMERAH BB IBUR

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the
estimation of the net realisable value of
watches with reference to sales subsequent to
the end of the reporting period, on a sample
basis.

AEL2EZAMEEEZEN 2 RARENHE
EHRMETE FRAIZR FETENEBIE -

RAXRTEEBRLQF



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B2 HET RS

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Annual Report 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT
R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B2 HET RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

Annual Report 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT
R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’'s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Tsang Yiu Chung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 June 2021

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEEkEMSEIRER

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_E_—F=F=1—HIFE

Revenue
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit
Other income
Other gains and losses
Impairment losses under
expected credit loss model,
net of reversal
Distribution and selling
expenses
— Expenses related to
leases
— Other distribution and
selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Finance costs
Share of results of associates
Share of result of a joint
venture

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

(expense)

Item that will not be
reclassified to profit or
loss:

Change in fair value of
equity instruments at
fair value through other
comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”)

ltems that may be
reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:

Exchange difference arising
on translation of foreign
operations

Change in fair value of debt
instruments at FVTOCI

Release on redemption
of debt instruments at
FVTOCI

Other comprehensive income
(expense) for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year
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Notes

g3

16

10
12

2020
—_E_FF
HK$’'000
FET
3,504,022 2,352,683
(2,541,906) (1,707,356)
962,116 645,327
34,573 28,360
5,250 (32,160)
(1,712) (15,461)
(145,490) (144,836)
(285,960) (189,579)
(211,994) (155,328)
(10,203) (14,210)
9,193 5,379
(37) (59)
355,736 127,433
(123,112) (28,324)
232,624 99,109
1,323 (696)
59,366 (40,056)
598 (448)
1 (6)
61,288 (41,206)
293,912 57,903
—E--EFH§



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEEEkEMESEIRER

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

2021 2020
—E-—F S adi
No;‘e HK$’000 HK$’000
Hiat FET FHETT
Profit (loss) for the year AT AT EIEFERRF
attributable to: (E18) :+
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIEZ N 233,256 100,301
Non-controlling interests FEIERR = (632) (1,192)
232,624 99,109
Total comprehensive income AN AL EmEUK
(expense) attributable to: (RIS #a%
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETEF SN 294,533 59,096
Non-controlling interests FEIE R = (621) (1,193)
293,912 57,903
Earnings per share BRAT
Basic and diluted BERE#E 43.17 17.59

14 HK cents &1l HK cents /&1Ll

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited REXRITEBERARDA



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R

At 31 March 2021
R_F—_F=F=1—H

2021 2020
—EB--F —EETF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
e FET FET
Non-current assets EMENEE
Property, plant and I - e R
equipment 15 208,112 213,034
Right-of-use assets FRAREEE 16 334,082 287,779
Deposits for acquisition WHEMZE - #EBE R
of property, plant and wEES
equipment 9,261 3,591
Interests in associates ey RN ol e 17 66,362 63,981
Interest in a joint venture H—HeE AR ZER 18 26,256 24,239
Equity instruments at FVTOCI & A FE A EAM
FHREZRATE 19 4,525 3,211
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BEAFEAEAMm
ZHKRZEBIA 20 8,645 9,680
Loans receivables e E K 23 41,957 —
Deferred tax assets RETTEE B 29 4,015 5,153
Property rental deposits MERSES 25,539 24,186
728,754 634,854
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 22 622,768 798,693
Loans receivables e E K 23 17,095 —
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H A e R 3K 24 286,023 112,755
Equity investments at fair EATFEFABRZ
value through profit or loss RAZE
(“FVTPL”) 21 6,036 15,871
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BB AEA
zEHKEZEEIA 20 - 7,486
Taxation recoverable AR B F 18 5,534 7,330
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 25 1,061,320 936,632
1,998,776 1,878,767
Current liabilities nEasE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMRER 26 287,370 86,774
Contract liabilities EHEE 26 4,502 4,366
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 85,651 101,663
Derivative financial BERFEFABRLZ
instruments at FVTPL PTEESMIA 17 14,000 —
Taxation payable AN 43,425 12,237
Bank loans RITER 28 17,525 5,667
452,473 210,707
Annual Report 2021 —EZ—FFR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE BRI R
At 31 March 2021
R —F=FH=1—H

2021 2020
—E-—F . S
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
HaF FET FET
Net current assets mMENEEFE 1,546,303 1,668,060
Total assets less current BEBLBERREBAG
liabilities 2,275,057 2,302,914
Non-current liabilities EMEBBE
Deferred tax liabilities REFRIEE E 29 18,797 2,864
Lease liabilities HEEBE 27 265,711 205,773
Derivative financial BAFEFABZZ
instruments at FVTPL MTESmT A 17 - 10,991
284,508 219,628
Net assets BEFE 1,990,549 2,083,286
Capital and reserves BARR#RE
Share capital g A 30 48,736 57,036
Reserves (e 1,942,759 2,026,575
Equity attributable to owners ~ AR GIHEA AEIEHEZS
of the Company 1,991,495 2,083,611
Non-controlling interests IR R (946) (325)
Total equity ey okl 1,990,549 2,083,286

The consolidated financial statements on pages 87 to 234
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 23 June 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

HNFEQTEEF 2 B IRAMBRERK
BEEeRN _E-_—FAAA-+T=BHER
RETZ  THETNESKRARSE

Yeung Him Kit, Dennis Yeung Man Yee, Shirley

BITER B &
CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
FIERE FHAEHE HITER

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited RAEAXTEBERRA A



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

= 32 4
MEERBER
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-—E-—F=ZH=1—HULFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRR AR
Share Capital Asset Non-
Share ~ Share  option Statutory redemption  Capital revaluation  Special Translation Retained Dividend controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits  reserve Sub-total interests Total
&x &
Re  ROEE ERERE GRRE RERE SrEE EMEE RORE AERE REEN REEE 0 FEREE &
HKS000  HK'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000
AT TAT FAT TAr  TET  FAr  TAr  TEr  FAT TAr TET TEr TAr AT
(note c) (note b) (note g)
(i) (ko) (Wita)
At 1 April 2019 57036 548969 79,388 = 42 840 1949 5180 39162 1,367,157 12267 2212733 868 2,213,601
Proft foss) for the year = = = = = = = = - 100301 - 00301 (119 99109
Change in fair value of equity &2 :
instruments at FVTOCI MIEZ TERS - - - - - - (6%) - - - - (696) = (6%)
Exchange difference arising BEBISRAERL
on translation of foreign EiZ8
operations - - - - - - - - (40,059 - - (40,035 (1) (40,056)
Change in far value of deb BAVEALH2ENE,
instruments at FYTOCI BEIE/ATERY - - - - - - (48) - - - - (t48) - (i49)
Release on redempton of debt & .k’ﬂ EETARB2ERE
instruments at FYTOC LEBIAREE - - = = = = (6 = = = = (6 - (0
Total comprehensive (expense)  ERZE(FR hEE
income for the year = — — = = - (1150) - [40055) 100301 - 5906 (1193 57,903
2019 final divicend paid = = = = = = = = = - B89 (45629 - Y
2019 special diicend paid = = = = = = = = = - (%98 (169 - (16999
2020 fnerim dividend paid = = = = = = = = - (t597) — {15970 - [t5970)
2020 interim special dlvidend
paid = = = = = = = = - (962 - [49,621) - (4962)
2020 final dividend proposed - - - - - - - - - (45629 45629 - - -
2020 special divicdend proposed - - - - - - - - - (28518 28518 - - -
Trangler = = - 168 = = = = — (1688 = = = =
At 31 March 2020 57,036 548,069 79388 16,883 42 840 99 5,180 (893) 1,300,837 74,147 2,083,611 (325) 2,083,286
Profit loss) for the year - - - - - - - - - 233,25 - 233,25 (632) 282,604
Change in fair value of equity
instruments at FVTOCI M\Iﬂzmﬁx@ - - - - - - 1 - - - -1 -1
Exchange difference arising i ;g%ﬂ fELY
on translation of foreign ERZE
operations - - - - - - - - 5935 - - 59,355 1 59,366
Change In fair value of debt RAFEFAZ 02 AN
instruments at FVTOCI ERTAZATERY - - - - - - 508 - - - - 508 - 508
Release on redemption of debt ~ BERATEFAL2ENS
intruments at FVTOCI LERTARER - - - - = o 1 - - - - 1 - 1
Total comprehensive (expense)  ER2T(FR)fELE
income for the year - - - - - - 1,922 - 59355 233,256 - 2945% (621) 293,912
2020 final dividend paid - - - - - - - - - - (45620) (45,629) - (45629)
2020 special dividend paid o = o o o = o o = - (28518 (2851 - [8519)
2021 interim dividend paid - - - - - - - - - (13,646) - (13,646) - (13,646)
2021 interim special dividend
pdd ] S - S S - o S S - - ) - (w8
2021 final dividgnd proposed e 3 33 - - - - - - - - - (38483 58483 - - -
2021 specil dividend proposed  BRE-T--ERFIRE - - - - - - - - - (181,587) 131,587 - - -
Transfer E = = - 25501 - - - - - (25501 - - - -
Repurchase and cancellaion of B JiE &
shares (8,300)  (240,700) - - - - - - - - - (249,000) - (249,000)
Transacton costs afirbutableto ~ BER:EHRIELE
repurchase and cancelation RERE
of shares - (5019 - - - - - - - - - (5019 - (5019
At 31 March 2021 WE=-=f=1-H 48736 303250 79388 42,384 425 840 2,11 5180 58462 1260039 190,010 1,991,495 (946) 1,990,549
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

Notes:

(a)

The special reserve of the Group comprises the difference between
the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company and
the nominal amount of the issued share capital and special reserves
of those companies which were acquired by the Company pursuant
to a group reorganisation in 1993. The special reserves of these
acquired subsidiaries represent the credit arising on reduction of their
paid up share capital under the group reorganisation.

Subsequent to NEBIREZRKRHER A A (‘Li Loong”) becoming
a subsidiary of the Company in May 2013, the Group further
subscribed 6,000,000 shares of Li Loong in September 2013, for
a cash consideration of New Taiwan Dollar (“NT$”) 60,000,000
(equivalent to HK$15,698,000). The Group’s equity interest in Li
Loong increased from 90% to 96%. This is accounted for as a
deemed acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary and has
been recognised as capital reserve.

In accordance with relevant laws and regulations for foreign
investment enterprises in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
the PRC subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of their profit
after taxation applicable to enterprises established in the PRC to the
statutory reserve.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

MaE -

AEEZ BRI RFERFBEARRAMETRAEE
EARBRB-NAN=FETEESEMKE
ZRABEBETRAREZZRMAKREARZ
BBl o a2 TP IREB IR & B 2 1 Bl e
RIFEEEHEIRZF QR EGRRAMmESE
ZHERR ©

RARBERESENERAR(THEDES
T=FRARARRBZHBRAE K=

T—=FNA ' NEE#E— R 6,000,000
BAOERD  BeRERFTAE(IHAK])
60,000,000 7t (#8 % 7 15,698,000 7T ) ° A&
EBR N8 2R H 0% I ZE 6% ° It I
BEABRYIER B R — MK B AR 25 INE
o WEHERBEARE -

REHEARKMBE([HEDIMIREREL
HEDEREOER - PEIKME AR ARSENER
MRIER BRSSP 3 2 10% FRBi & A B s 2= 0%
TEEE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHEZ_E_—F=F=1—HILFE

2021
—B_—F
HK$’000
FET
Operating activities RS TS
Profit before taxation B 5% A1 i A 355,736
Adjustments for: MATEHBELFE :
Depreciation of property, plant Y - WS RERBE 2T
and equipment o 29,767
Depreciation of right-of-use CREEEZITE
assets 112,121
Impairment loss, net of reversal BEE R (HBREEE)
— property, plant and equipment — M MR REE -
— right-of-use assets — FEREEE -
— deposits for acquisition — MR - e R
of property, plant and W iEe
equipment =
— financial assets under — EHEEEBEBEERT
expected credit loss model ZEMEE 1,712
Loss arising from termination of RIFREEE CEE
leases 4
Loss (gain) on redemption of R R A FEat AHAD
debt instruments at FVTOCI FEREZEHTA
Z BB (e ) 1
Net loss on derivative financial BAVEABRZ
instruments at FVTPL PTESMIT A EE
,%%E 212
(Reversal of) allowance on FE(BERED)BE
inventories, net (2,491)
Interest expense FERX 10,203
Interest income F S A (12,268)
Loss on disposal/written off of e METE - HES
property, plant and equipment Mt BB 658
Fair value (gain) loss on equity BAVEFAEBEZ
investments at FVTPL BARE 2 RFE
(s ) B 18 (3,016)
Fair value loss on derivative BATEGFABRZ
financial instrument at FVTPL TESBMTAY
NTEEE 3,009
Share of results of associates JE(REE & R A2 AR (9,193)
Share of result of a joint venture BE—HAaERAZ
E¥ 37

2020
—E-FE

— =< =

HK$’000
FET

127,433

33,253
132,227
4,123
12,479
4,000
15,461

43

(6)

2,179
19,005
14,210

(16,794)

7,431

2,123

(5,37_9)

59
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEHRERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021

REZ® —F-J=f—HIFFEF

Operating cash flows before LEECEH KL
movements in working capital RERE

(Increase) decrease in rental Meke (gmms
deposits

Decrease (increase) in inventories FERA(EM)

(Increase) decrease in trade and ‘%35';)32 L & L BR 3K
other receivables ( 2 hn) R

Increase (decrease) in trade and B 5 N H b JE A BR B A0
other payables (/E 9)

Increase (decrease) in contract BHEEEMCRD)
liabilities

Cash generated from operations REXGMEL RS

Income taxes paid in Hong Kong AR %EZHZ?)?H?R

Income taxes paid in the PRC A AR B S A 2 FT S AR

Income taxes paid in other E’\/Hﬁﬁ AEEERN 2
jurisdictions PS5t

Net cash from operating activities REXBMESX ZIREFE

BRERD
ﬁéﬁ TEFRERRKE

Investing activities
Advance to third parties as loans

receivables EN

Purchase of property, plant and BEME - WS NEE
equipment

Purchase of equity investments at BERAVESABRZ
FVTPL BRI E

HEZRAFEFABTZZ
f& ARG E 2 TS FIE
HKE%WJ% Ty

Proceeds from disposal of equity
investments at FVTPL
Deposits paid for acquisition of

property, plant and equipment EfEe
Net settlement of derivative bio /N $TE[#)\TE S ZHTHE
financial instruments at FVTPL TRMTAREEEFRE
Interest received 2 B

SN )
Hj’i*f*@% MR

Dividends received from associates
Proceeds from disposal of

property, plant and equipment Fr s 51
Purchase of debt instruments at Hﬁlﬁﬁfﬂzﬁﬁ ST AHAD
FVTOCI PEHWEEHIE

FRElR A FEar ARAD
EHPEZEHFTAZ
PS5

YRR B o 2 R

Proceeds from redemption of debt
instruments at FVTOCI

Acquisition of interests in

associates

Net refund of rental deposits REBRSKRESFRE

Net cash used in investing activities K& EZFFAFEZE S FEE

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

2021 2020
—EB-—F T E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
486,492 351,847
(1,649) 8,261
197,465 (6,470)
(161,134) 9,550
196,504 (27,945)
63 (2,984)
717,741 332,259
(22,863) (15,925)
(46,686) (8,358)
(4,694) (1,540)
643,498 306,436
(57,224) —
(20,714) (37,538)
(12,580) (43,347)
25,431 40,335
(9,261) (3,591)
(212) (2,179)
9,032 15,392
7,985 2,002

402 380
— (14,650)

9,148 3,856
= (12,000)
— 2,921
(47,993) (48,419)
BEEEATEBEBRAT



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHEZ_E_—F=F=1—HILFE

Financing activities

Dividends paid

Repayment of lease liabilities

Repayment of bank loans

New bank loan raised

Interest paid on lease liabilities

Interest paid on bank loans

Payment on repurchase and
cancellation of shares

Transaction costs attributable to
repurchase and cancellation of
shares

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and

cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the year, represented by:
bank balances and cash

Annual Report 2021

BEED
TR &
(BT A
EERTER
SERTER
ENEESERS
EATRITE R &
B T AR 3
B0 % 5k SR 15 A4
X BRA
BEEHFEL RS T

ReRERASIER 2
(R ) 7388
T IS P EPS T

0B R E) > 2
FRB/ERFRBAS

EH - BMRTTHEER R
Be

2021 2020
—E-—f Sl o 2 A
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(132,630) (188,218)
(112,995) (121,552)
(4,000) (57,860)
15,962 —
(10,033) (13,254)
(170) (956)
(249,000) —
(5,019) —
(497,885) (381,840)
97,620 (123,823)
936,632 1,084,911
27,068 (24,456)
1,061,320 936,632
—E—FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B A% R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

96

GENERAL INFORMATION

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability and acts as an investment holding
company as well as engaged in watch trading. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 38. The shares of the Company are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are
detailed in the corporate information section of the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
Group’s annual period beginning on 1 April 2020 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Definition of Material
HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

—REHR

RARTEBERAR(TARE )
ARBREGTMA L ERRERA
Al REER AR YREEBRE
2 AT ZMBRARIZ EEEBEHN
HIFE38 - AARBRMNRNEBHAR S
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AR R N B R 2 A
BERER ARER—H

e BmRIOAETIAET 2
5 BB ANRB 2R -

ERFTEBMEHREERR
EHIE:S

REFEBHERZEBYBREE
BB RT 2

RAFE » REBRGRES P BR
RECERERT LS ASME
2 BB IR & BRI 2 BLRHERTE
GIZBEATRAEER — T - TFA
— BB FRBESEHERZ T
FEMBRE LR ZER] K

BREGHENE1RE  BALEER
BB e ER S8R
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(B47%)

BBUHREEHEOR - MRERNF
BREIERERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_E_—F=F=1—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

Application on Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS
8 “Definition of Material”

The Group has applied the Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8 for the first time in the current year. The
amendments provide a new definition of material that
states “information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements, which provide financial information
about a specific reporting entity.” The amendments
also clarify that materiality depends on the nature
or magnitude of information, either individually or in
combination with other information, in the context of
the financial statements taken as a whole.

The application of the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and
the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments’
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework’
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7, Phase 2°
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and ~ Sale or Contribution of Assets between

HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions'
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021°
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or

Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies’
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction’

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use*

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfiling a
Contract’

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual IAmprovements to HKFRSs 2018 —
2020

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

lI\Ii\

BB R KM

For the year ended 31 March 2021

BE—F=

2.

—F=—H=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of above new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

Amendment To HKFRS 16 “Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions”/“Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021”

These amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020 and 2021
respectively.

The amendments introduce a new practical expedient
for lessees to elect not to assess whether a COVID-
19-related rent concession is a lease modification. The
practical expedient only applies to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
that meets all of the following conditions:

e the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;

Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

2/

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendment To HKFRS 16 “Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions”/“Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021” (Continued)

° any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022; and

e there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for the
changes applying HKFRS 16 “Leases” if the changes
are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease
payments.

The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the
amounts forgiven or waived with a corresponding
adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in the period
in which the event occurs.

The application is not expected to have impact on

the Group’s financial position and performance as the
Group opts not to apply the practical expedient.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_E_—F=F=1—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the
term “significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of
the related transactions, other events or conditions,
even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not
all accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself
material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial
accounting policy information, such information must
not obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also amended
to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step
materiality process” to accounting policy disclosures
and to judge whether information about an accounting
policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance
and examples are added to the Practice Statement to
help entities.

Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

2/

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”
(Continued)

The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group but may affect the
disclosures of the Group’s significant accounting
policies. The impacts of application, if any, will be
disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 “Definition of Accounting
Estimates”

The amendments define accounting estimates as
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty”. An accounting
policy may require items in financial statements to
be measured in a way that involves measurement
uncertainty — that is, the accounting policy may require
such items to be measured at monetary amounts
that cannot be observed directly and must instead
be estimated. In such a case, an entity develops an
accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by
the accounting policy. Developing accounting estimates
involves the use of judgements or assumptions based
on the latest available, reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting
estimates in HKAS 8 is retained with additional
clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to

have significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_E_—F=F=1—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction”

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax
assets in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 so that
it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial
recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

As disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, for leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities, the
Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to the relevant
assets and liabilities as a whole. Temporary differences
relating to relevant assets and liabilities are assessed
on a net basis.

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group
will recognise a deferred tax asset (to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary difference can be
utilised) and a deferred tax liability for all deductible and
taxable temporary differences associated with the right-
of-use assets and the lease liabilities.

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities of lease transactions
which the tax deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, are HK$27,922,000 and HK$29,800,000,
respectively. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023,
with early application permitted. The application of the
amendments is not expected to have significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements as
the net temporary differences relating to relevant assets
and liabilities are insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B A% R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary
user. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of the reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of

the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_E_—F=F=1—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing
transactions that accounted for in accordance with
of HKFRS 16 “Leases”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or
value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair
value and a valuation technique that unobservable
inputs is to be used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so that at
initial recognition the result of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.
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AR B A% R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented,
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution
of relevant reserves between the Group and the non-
controlling interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in OCI in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.
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BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance
with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19
“Employee Benefits” respectively; and

° lease liabilities are recognised and measured at
the present value of the remaining lease payments
(as defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases
were new leases at the acquisition date, except
for leases for which the lease term ends within
12 months of the acquisition date. Right-of-use
assets are recognised and measured at the same
amount as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted
to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the Group
identifies and recognises the individual identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating the
purchase price first to the financial assets and financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining
balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the
other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of
their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such
a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition

of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
which represent the lowest level at which goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any
of the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-
generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of associates and a joint venture is
described below.

Investments in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture
(Continued)

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and
a joint venture are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of associates and
a joint venture used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and OCI of the associate or
joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate or joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate or joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate or joint venture.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date
on which the investee becomes an associate or a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost
of the investment over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective that
the interest in an associates or a joint venture may
be impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is
not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_E_—F=F=1—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture
(Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of entire interest in the
investee with resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in
the former associate or joint venture and the retained
interest is a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS
9, the Group measures the retained interest at fair value
at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture at the
date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of the relevant interest in the associate or
joint venture is included in the determination of the gain
or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in OCI in relation to that associate or joint
venture on the same basis as would be required if that
associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial
disposal of the relevant associate or joint venture.

When the Group increases its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture and the Group continues
to use the equity method, the consideration transferred
to acquire the additional interest are added to the
existing carrying amount of the investment without
remeasurement of the previously held interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B A% R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture
(Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a
joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to the
Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct
or a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an

asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or
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3.

—F=—H=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

° the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those
costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a
customer that it would not have incurred if the contract
had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions)
as an asset if it expects to recover these costs. The
asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to profit
or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to
which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing
all incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs
would otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or
loss within one year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
1 April 2019 or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains
a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, or modification date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease

component and are accounted for by applying other
applicable standards.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
(Continued)

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date. Lease
payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic
basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and

adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including

in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are not included in the measurement
of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are
recognised as expense in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes
a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
use assets) whenever the lease term has changed or
there is a change in the assessment of exercise of
a purchase option, in which case the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the date of
reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as
a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability, less any lease incentive receivables, based on
the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of
lease liabilities from lessor by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset. When
the modified contract contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company (i.e. HK$) using
exchange rate prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rate fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in OCI and accumulated
in equity under the heading of translation reserve.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a partial
disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All the Group’s borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income”.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes, including Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
and state-managed retirement benefit schemes, are
recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits and other long-
term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled shared-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).
At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant
non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the
share options granted is expensed immediately to profit
or loss.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to retained profits.
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HE_E_—F=F=1—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the
fair values of the goods or services received, unless
that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which
case the goods or services received are measured by
reference to the fair value of the share options granted.
The fair values of the goods or services received are
recognised as expenses unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary differences arises from initial recognition of
goodwill, or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interest in a joint
venture, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

REMBEREREERTE
BRTBE(E)

ETREHBERE)
HHE(E)

BB RE M B RERCEENR
BERAENGERRBG A ATER
MEREMRE 2 G ZRMER B
ERBRERTEIAMERRARNE R
EFMER o BEHABEEAIREHR
F] )RR I 07 s 2 SRR 2 JE R
i M I 5L P AT 0B B E R AR o
HELELRZME BRECHEREE
REENSHR - I - HERAY
FTHABELEARN TG ERRDE
MEEFHRM 2R Z P ML HER(R
EBEMBRINEMEERBEMS
BERER AT ERRBELEHREA
BfE-

EFETHIR B o3t B B 2 7
ERAZEE - ARIE— WQ%QT
DA ERT TR E AR

HE 11 75 5% [ RE 5945 1 B B 2 HE 2 k]
RERZENARBRAETSHED
AIBRIN - EZFRE RiEm AR A
IBEREEEE ZECHREERE
R AT BEE 2 S8 SR A 7] 2 R B iy
Z 2 N an &ﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁﬁTﬁ%
;Kﬁéﬁ E] HTI ﬁ@ A

RAXRTEEBRLQF
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” requirements to the leasing
transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed
on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use
assets over the lease payments for the principal portion
of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary
differences.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable entity
by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in OCI or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
OCI or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax
or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets
that are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes.
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial
recognition.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease
term on a straight-line basis. When the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease building
elements and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as
property, plant and equipment.

If a property becomes an investment property because
its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying
amount and the fair value of that item (including
the relevant leasehold land classified as right-of-
use assets) at the date of transfer is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
asset revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of the property, the relevant revaluation
reserve will be transferred directly to retained profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of assets less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method or
reducing balance method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of the reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be established, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount
of the relevant cash generating unit or group of cash-
generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with
the recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating
units. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or a group of cash-generated
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or a group of
cash-generated units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generated units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generated
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories, which are finished goods held for sale, are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated on a specific identification basis for
watches. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less costs necessary to
make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Group will be required
to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount
recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where
the effect of the time value of money is material).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers”. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at the date of initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in OCI if that equity investment is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.

Annual Report 2021

REMBEREREERTE
BETBR(E)

ETREHBERE)
EMTRE)
EMEE

ETRMEEZDBNERIE

m AT R 2 R & E KR IR # i
XARETE -

. SREEH-—MASEAGERE
ELMDAHR SRR £
XFHEE - R

s AUKRFRFEBRMELZRS
MEBARRNARE MABER

TLZHNE

iﬁﬁEL‘ATfmﬁFZi\%ﬂﬁFE?&%%@#ﬁ
NHEFARMEEKEFE

e TREEAR—FULERKIRE
YR MERER BIE KR
XA &

o AHKFNEBTHEHEAZRS
REARASTNAE RAEER
S ZFE

ARG REAEREEBRATE
HAERHE  BRVBERS R
AEZE  MRBARAEIERE
BE  NHEENBREEAEIR
[E A0 IR 2 2B A D
ﬁmZiﬁﬁF 24 4 B 7 7 8

R IER E A2 EMS 25 R AR A
ZEé AT EEE -

TEZ—FER

137



138

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term;

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

REMBEREREERTE
BRTBE(E)

FESHBEE)
SHETAE)
TEEEE)

TREEZDBNERIEE)

R TIER - A BMEESFE

oD Es .
BH -

e WEIZTIEANRNEHIELE
R

¢+ RUMBREBRAREAHE
BB WA AL 2~
5 - B R
=0 5

o WIEAKEERBMEHATAZ
PTHETH -

SN - 2 S B R] S AR E] 3 5 — TR 2R
R R AT EHIR A FEFAEM
2HPE s EREERESERAFE
FFABZETAFE - ARABRIETE
AHER SRR R D & 5T R ©

RAXRTEBEBRQA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

lIVi\

BB R KM

For the year ended 31 March 2021

BE—F=

3.

—F=—H=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments subsequently measured at FVTOCI.
Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i)  Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value with
gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value recognised in OCI and accumulated in the
asset revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or
loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on
disposal of the equity investments, and will be
transferred to retained profits.

Dividends on these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income” line
item in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_E_—F=F=1—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i)

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts
for debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI as
a result of interest income calculated using the
effective interest method, and foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss. All other changes in the carrying amount
of these debt instruments are recognised in OCI
and accumulated under the heading of asset
revaluation reserve. Impairment allowances are
recognised in profit or loss with corresponding
adjustment to OCI without reducing the carrying
amounts of these debt instruments. The amounts
that are recognised in profit or loss are the same
as the amounts that would have been recognised
in profit or loss if these debt instruments had been
measured at amortised cost. When these debt
instruments are derecognised, the cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI nor
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B A% R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021

BE—E—

3.

—FZF=1+—HULEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(iv) Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss included any dividend or interest earned
on the financial asset and is included in the “other
gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit losses (“ECL”) model on financial
assets (including trade receivables, loans receivables,
other receivables, refundable rental and other deposits,
debt instruments at FVTOCI and bank balances) and
financial guarantee contracts, which are subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

lI\Ii\

BB R KM

For the year ended 31 March 2021

BE—F=

3.

—F=—H=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, and factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts (Continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021

BE—F=

—F=—H=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

° existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B A% R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts (Continued)

(if)

Definition of default

(i)

The Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021

HE—FI—F= = —HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts (Continued)

(ii)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries
are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B A% R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts (Continued)

V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly,
the ECL is the present value of the expected
payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss
that it incurs less any amounts that the Group
expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or
any other party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021

HE-F=

3.

—FZA=t—AILFEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts (Continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which
the effective interest rate cannot be determined,
the Group will apply a discount rate that reflects
the current market assessment of the time value of
money and the risks that are specific to the cash
flows but only if, and to the extent that, the risks
are taken into account by adjusting the discount
rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being
discounted.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial assets unless the
financial assets are credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B A% R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts (Continued)

V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Except for investments in debt instruments that
are measured at FVTOCI and financial guarantee
contracts, the Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount,
with the exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through
a loss allowance account. For investments in debt
instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, the loss
allowance is recognised in OCl and accumulated
in the asset revaluation reserve without reducing
the carrying amount of these debt instruments.
Such amount represents the changes in the asset
revaluation reserve in relation to accumulated loss
allowance.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_E_—F=F=1—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the asset revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition
to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the asset revaluation reserve
is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
retained profits.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B A% R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Equity instruments (Continued)

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments

is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain

or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables

and bank loans are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

A financial liability is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term;

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a

financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_E_—F=F=1—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured
initially at their fair values. It is subsequently measured
at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and

° the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
over the guarantee period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
directors of the Company have made in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.

Determination on lease term of contracts with
extension options

The Group applies judgment to determine the lease
term for lease contracts in which it is a lessee that
include extension option, specifically, the leases relating
to retail shops. The assessment of whether the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise extension options
impacts the lease term, which significantly affects
the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BB R KM

For the year ended 31 March 2021

BE—F=

4.

—F=—H=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Determination on lease term of contracts with
extension options (Continued)

When assessing reasonable certainty, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances including
economic incentives/penalties for exercising or not
exercising the options. Factors considered include:

e contractual terms and conditions for the optional
periods compared with market rates (e.g. whether
the amount of payments in the optional periods is
below the market rates);

° the extent of leasehold improvements undertaken
by Group; and

° costs relating to termination of the lease (e.g.
relocation costs, costs of identifying another
underlying asset suitable for the Group’s needs).

The details of the lease with extension option is set out
in note 16.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following is the key assumption concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B A% R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021

HE=®=—

4.

F=ZH=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Net realisable value assessment of watches

Watches are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The management of the Group
reviews regularly the suitability of allowance policy and
estimates the amount of allowance for inventories. The
Group identifies slow-moving watches with reference
to the ageing analysis. The net realisable value of the
watches are determined by considering the salability
of watches based on current market conditions,
pricing policies and strategies, as well as historical/
latest available sales information of similar watches. If
conditions which have an impact on the net realisable
value of inventories deteriorate/improve, additional
allowances/reversal of allowances may be required.
Details of the allowance (reversal of allowance) for
slow-moving watches charged (credited) during the
year and the carrying amount of watches (net of
allowance) as at 31 March 2021 are set out in notes 10
and 22, respectively.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operation is principally sales of watches.
The Group’s revenue represents consideration received
or receivable from sales of watches.

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM?”), for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance is analysed based
on the geographical markets of the goods sold.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_E_—F=F=1—HIFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Specifically, the Group has four operating segments,
being (a) Hong Kong, (b) the PRC, (c) Macau and
(d) Taiwan, which is also the basis of organisation of
the Group for managing the business operations. No
operating segments identified by the chief operating
decision maker have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

Sales of watches (revenue recognised at a point
in time)

For sales of watches, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being at the
point the customer purchases the goods at the retail
shop, including those sales through department stores.
Payment of the transaction price is due immediately
at the point the customer purchases the goods. A
credit period of not more than 30 days is granted to
department stores who receive the payment on behalf
of the Group at the point the customer purchases the
goods.

All sales contracts are for periods of one year or
less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B A% R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WERDEHER(EZ)

(Continued)
Sales of watches (revenue recognised at a point HESRWBENE—BSHH®EA)
in time) (Continued) (&)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s segment AT AREFEIRLEDIED 2D
revenue and results by operating segments: Wzt REEDIT -
Segment revenue —
recognised at
a point in time Segment profit (loss)
DEWE — REERR P E R (EE)
2021 2020 2021 2020
== s —TCFTF eaemess T CTF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Hong Kong BB 979,837 1,198,061 67,589 59,212
The PRC s 2,359,018 944,759 353,589 104,589
Macau JRPY 164,796 204,385 10,660 23,377
Taiwan =] 371 5,478 (3,723) (27,986)
3,504,022 2,352,683 428,115 159,192
Unallocated other &% Fd & W A
income 10,964 15,604
Unallocated RAOBLEERT
corporate
expenses (99,035) (31,511)
Unallocated other K% Bt & b U 25
gains and losses N &8 6,706 (20,216)
Interest on bank  $RITERF A
loans (170) (956)
Share of results of FE{HEEZE N A2
associates E 9,193 5,379
Share of result of EH—EAZAQ
a joint venture Al EE (37) (59)
Profit before B 5% Bl A
taxation 355,736 127,433
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_E_—F=F=1—HIFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Sales of watches (revenue recognised at a point
in time) (Continued)

The accounting policies used to determine segment
revenue and results are the same as the accounting
policies adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements described in note 3. Segment profit
represents the profit before taxation earned by each
segment without allocation of interest on bank loans,
share of results of associates and a joint venture,
unallocated other income, unallocated other gains
and losses and unallocated corporate expenses.
Unallocated corporate expenses include auditor’s
remuneration, directors’ emoluments and operating
expenses of inactive companies. This is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision maker of the
Group for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

The Group has no customer who contributed over 10%

of the total revenue of the Group for any of the two
years ended 31 March 2021.

All segment revenue is generated from external
customers for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B A% R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WERDEHER(EZ)

(Continued)
Sales of watches (revenue recognised at a point HESRWBENE—BSHH®EA)
in time) (Continued) (&)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and UTAEREEIREESSE D 2EE
liabilities by operating segments. HEFEH -
Segment assets Segment liabilities
DEEE PHEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
=Sl T CTHF e dmiaas T CTF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Hong Kong BB 904,781 977,166 388,913 311,958
The PRC H 530,241 351,958 176,017 51,049
Macau P 30,376 85,570 5,717 24,431
Taiwan = 19,972 24,984 131 668
Segment total vaksiis iy 1,485,370 1,439,678 570,778 388,106
Unallocated KA 1,242,160 1,073,943 166,203 42,229
Group’s total REBEBE5T 2,727,530 2,513,621 736,981 430,335
The segment assets by location of assets are the same REEMEME D 2D EEMRIRE
as by location of markets of the goods sold. EERTEZMEZIDERR -
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HE_E_—F=F=1—HIFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Sales of watches (revenue recognised at a point
in time) (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than equity instruments at FVTOCI, debt
instruments at FVTOCI, equity investments
at FVTPL, deferred tax assets, interests in
associates, interest in a joint venture, loans
receivables, taxation recoverable, bank balances
and cash and unallocated corporate assets; and

— all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than taxation payable, deferred tax liabilities,
derivative financial instruments at FVTPL and bank
loans. Bank loans are classified as unallocated
corporate liabilities because they are managed
centrally by the treasury function of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B A% R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WERDEHER(EZ)

(Continued)

Other segment information Hith 5 I E R

Amounts included in the measure of segment results or ESMEENNEEERBE LS
segment assets:  :

Impairment loss

Additions of Depreciation of Loss on disposal of recognised on Impairment loss
property, plant Additions of property, plant Depreciation of property, plant property, plant recognised on Impairment loss
and equipment right-of-use assets and equipment right-of-use assets and equipment and equipment* right-of-use assets  under ECL model
HENE VESY H HEn%  BER % BER HERREERD  BECEEEEAT
HERRE RERREEE RRERE BRERENE REEE RERDZAERE ZHEEE ZHEEE
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020
R ROEE CT0RE R RoEE CT0RE ROEE T0RE
HK8 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK8 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
Tér Fén Fér 74T FAT A1 7hr 7AT
HongKong &7 17,768 36353 144709 39487 19,057 20041 81,665 102528 658 592 - 6918 - 12419 - 1618
ThePRC  #E 6462 7689 14198 17248 10,414 10314 12502 9561 - - - 1,150 - - 1,712 (671)
Macaw & 7 122 - - 56 2611 17964 1857 - - - - - - - -
Taiwan fE - = - - - 287 - 1,601 - 1510 - - - - - -
Segment total A 545t 2305 44174 158907 56735 29767 33253 11242 132207 658 7431 - 818 - 12419 12 1546
Unallocated  KAE - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Group's fotal RS U305 44174 158907 56735 29767 33253 112421 132,007 658 7431 - 83 - 1419 AT 15460
* The amount includes the impairment loss on deposits for * CHEOFBECEBWEY R  HERERE

acquisition of property, plant and equipment in Hong Kong.

The amounts of interest in associates and share of results
of associates, and the interest in a joint venture and share
of result of a joint venture, are presented to the CODM as a
whole but not include in the measure of segment profit or loss
or segment assets.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

Information about the Group’s non-current assets
(excluding equity instruments at FVTOCI, debt
instruments at FVTOCI, loans receivables, deferred
tax assets, interests in associates and interest in a
joint venture) by geographical location of the assets is

detailed below:

Wak 2 AT A -

T

Hitvn BER ()

REEMELRE D
BEMBREAFEFARLMLEER
BN FERT AR
g Zﬁ%lﬂ ERER &
EFIAEE - 1Al s
—HAeZERAE R

Wk o EER(E)

ZAKEERE

Az fE s Kb
) 2 B R an

Carrying amount of
non-current assets

Hong Kong
The PRC
Macau
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ERBEEZREE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
BB 524,326 454 511
s 49,805 48,213
SRS 2,863 25,866
576,994 528,590
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

6. OTHER INCOME

Interest income from bank RIT A BUA

Interest income from loan BEHKAGTEZ
receivable at amortised cost JE W E R B A

Interest income from rental MeizeHEKWA
deposits

Government subsidies (note a) BB (B it a)
Government subsidies in respect 2019 T A % = 7%t

of COVID-19 (note b) BB (Mt b)
Others Hi
Notes:

(@)

Government subsidies mainly comprised of unconditional
subsidies received for subsidising the Group’s business in the
PRC.

During the current year, the Group recognised government
grants in respect of COVID-19-related subsidies, including
subsidies from the Employment Support Scheme provided by
the Hong Kong Government of HK$10,243,000.
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H A A
2021 2020
—EB=-—-F —TFF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FHET
9,032 15,392
1,628 —
1,304 1,402
7,363 8,311
11,143 -
4,103 3,255
34,573 28,360

@ BREWBDEIZEFERMBAEEFEE
BURE) 2 EARIEHE B

b) RAFEE ANEBH2019TRFESHAE
AR ERBAE RSB BFM
R 2 [REEZ |51 81#88) 10,243,000 7%
77: o
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

= s = H = e o
7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HitsmREE
2021 2020
—B-—F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Gain (loss) from changes in fair  EAFETABRZ
value of equity investments at BAEE 2 A TFE
FVTPL gz (BE) 3,016 (2,123)
(Loss) gain on redemption of debt FEEIZAFEFAHMEE
instruments at FVTOCI WamzEBBIAZ(EE)
Wz (1) 6
Impairment loss on deposits for UM% « HEREREZ
acquisition of property, plant and &4 REERE
equipment — (4,000)
Impairment loss recognised in Y - IS NEREER
respect of property, plant and ZREEE
equipment — (4,123)
Impairment loss recognised in NEREEERR L
respect of right-of-use assets VEREY i — (12,479)
Loss arising from termination of & IFTHEEA ~ Ei8
leases (4) (43)
Loss on disposal/written off of REMEE - #ER
property, plant and equipment Rz EE (658) (7,431)
Net loss on derivative financial BATEGFABREITE
instruments at FVTPL TRIAZERER (3,221) (2,179)
Net exchange gains b 5, Uk 5 5 RE 6,118 212
5,250 (32,160)
Annual Report 2021 —EZ—FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B A% R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—E_—F=F=1-—HILFE

8.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED 8.

RHAEEEERER N ZRES

CREDIT LOSSES MODEL, NET OF 1B (HIBREEE)
REVERSAL
2021 2020
—EB-—-F —ETFF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Impairment losses recognised TN BFEER(EE) 2
(reversed) on: BEEE :
— trade receivables — BHEKERR 1,712 (671)
— other receivables — HMEWERK - 16,132
1,712 15,461
Details of impairment assessment are set out in note BB B NMIFEST ©
37,
FINANCE COSTS 9. EERA
2021 2020
—EB-—-F —TFF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest on bank loans RITERZHE 170 956
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEZNE 10,033 13,254
10,203 14,210

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar B3 R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHEZ_E_—F=F=1—HILFE

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 10. BRF AR F

2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

Profit before taxation has been Br AR AT A 2 HIBR
arrived at after charging:

Directors’ remuneration (note 11) ZEZ=@& (HiL11) 93,796 27,740
Other staff costs N A= YN 136,100 103,066
Other staff’s retirement benefits  E{th 5§k 8 7 R KE 5t &l

scheme contributions = 4,942 6,066
Total staff costs BB ARzE 234,838 136,872
Auditor’s remuneration Z BT BN 3,320 3,480

Cost of inventories recognised BRBAX ZIFEKA
as expense (including reversal (BREEHEFHRBEE

of allowance for slow-moving $5[@ 2,491,000 % 7T

watches of HK$2,491,000 —ETF OFHTFR

(2020: allowance for #1519,005,0007%8 7))

slow-moving watches of

HK$19,005,000)) 2,541,906 1,707,356
Depreciation of property, plant Y EBERREBZITE

and equipment 29,767 3,263
Depreciation of right-of-use FRAEEEZTE

assets 112,121 132,227
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—E_—F=F=1-—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing
Rules and Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight (2020:
eight) directors were as follows:

Retirement Performance-

Salaries henefits related

and other scheme incentive

Fees henefits  contributions honus

Bk ERAEN  RRAR

fe  AbEA  HEfR RN
HK$000  HKS000  HKSO000  HK$(000
fér fér fér Tt

11. EEREEZ#ME

EERTBAEZAFEHMIIRE
ERLEMRAREBBRBGRPIHKE
BENSENNR(ZE_ZF : \&)

BEEZAZHERT -
2020
C5%%
Retirement  Performance-
Selaries Denefits related
and other scheme incentive
Fegs benefits  contributions bonus Total

gk EKEN  RRAE
fe  EfEN  REER 2R i
HKS 000 HKS 000 HK8 000 S 000 HK8 000
Tt Tér 7T 7L Tt

(note) (note)
Wa) )
Execufive drectors 5783
Dr. Yeung Ming FHESL
B - 1,367 17 2,862 4,266 - 2,120 18 5,766 8,504
Mr. Yeng Him Kt Bfrges
Dennis' - 3,469 42 47,522 51,416 - 3,400 42 3,843 7,668
Madam Yeung Man &%
Yee, Shirley - 796 110 16,161 17,067 - 97 10 1,921 2,828
Mr.Lam HngLun, ~ #EEEE
Alain - 1,803 242 16,161 18,206 - 1.967 212 1,921 4,160
M. Chol Kiwok BEdtt
Yum* - 1,190 60 961 2,211 - 1,877 42 1,921 4,040
Independentnon-  BUHHAES
executive directors
Dr.SunPingHsu,  FREEL
Samson 180 - - - 180 180 - - = 180
OrnliSahng, — ZFEEL
Eddy 180 - - - 180 180 - - - 180
Mr. Choi Man Eyilrs
Chau, Michael 180 - - - 180 180 - - - 180
540 8,715 854 83,687 93,796 540 10,761 1,067 15,372 21,740

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2021, the performance related
incentive bonus payments are determined with reference
to the operating results and individual performance (2020:
The performance-related incentive bonus is determined as a
percentage of the profit for the year before bonus charge).
Passed away on 5 February 2021

Appointed as chairman on 10 February 2021

* Resigned on 1 June 2020

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

Wit BE_E-_—F=A=+—HIFE "
KRB ILANR2EREEER
BAARREE( 24 : RIIEEE
BhTEAT IR N BR FEAT 2 H A 8 R A1) 2 32
—BOLLEFE) °

! N-TE-——F= ARt

! R-TB——&E_F+AREFEATRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_E_—F=F=1—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 11. EEREEZME(E)

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

All the five highest paid employees of the Group were
executive directors of the Company. Details of their
emoluments are disclosed above.

Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis is also the managing
director of the Company and his emoluments disclosed
above include those for services rendered by him as
the chief executive.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group. The emoluments of independent non-executive
directors shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors and five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors has waived any emoluments during the year.

Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

12. FIBHIRAX

Current tax: ANEABIIE -
Hong Kong BE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R ATIEH
Other jurisdictions Hih el xR
Withholding tax on dividend s R AR BWA Z
income from associates A
Withholding tax on dividend MEARREWAZ
income from subsidiaries A
Overprovision in prior years: BEFEBEREE -

Hong Kong BB
Other jurisdictions Eh R EER

Deferred taxation charge (credit) EZERHIBEX L (E %)
(note 29) (H1aE29)

Hong Kong Profits Tax for both years is calculated
at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profits for the
year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is
a qualifying corporation under the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. For this subsidiary, the first HK$2
million of assessable profits are taxed at 8.25% and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%
for both years, after setting off of tax losses brought
forward, if any.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
8,503 13,598
88,657 15,348
2,717 3,469
1,677 420
6,043 —
107,597 32,835
(1,178) (166)
(453) (60)
(1,631) (226)
17,146 (4,285)
123,112 28,324

MIEFE 2 BB NEHIRFAMGEE
AR N 2 16.5%ET E - lEAREE
—ENRERR(RMEHMAH T Z
BEBRRRI - ZWBRRIZHE
2,000,000 7 JT & SR Bt 4 A1/ 42 8.25%
RGN - fr N ERTR A R
1216.5% 2 B R BUATHIA

RECHBREEMRFBREIEEME
BOE D) R(EERBRIZEIIED)
REBEHGEE HEBEBRERINE)
RAMEFETEMNBARZRER
25% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHEZ_E_—F=F=1—HILFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 12. FRSBiBAX (&)
Taxation in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates HibRAMER 2 BB IR IE A B A0
prevailing pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations. FMOERRIBITIMERGTE -
The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the FAMBERAZTEBEGE B RE
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement fth 2 E U &8 2% 2 BR A A A A 5 BR 40
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as T &
follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FET

Profit before taxation R F54 Bl i A1) 355,736 127,433

Tax at the applicable income tax 1REEAASEHZ16.5%

rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) _7_7¢ 16.5% )
g7 F1E 58,696 21,026

Tax effect of share of results of J'E1£ EERNRIZERZ

associates MBS 2 (1,517) (888)
Tax effect of share of result of a EH—R&L AT Z

joint venture XECHBRE 6 10
Tax effect of expenses not A HRAY 2

deductible for tax purposes M E 1,540 4,488
Tax effect of income not taxable HEZRFHWAZ

for tax purposes METE (4,856) (2,540)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERUIGEEZ

recognised MG 18,526 5,300
Tax effect of temporary LN R—EEeE AR

differences attributable ﬂi 5K g A B G 2

to undistributed profits of TR BB E

associates and a joint venture 1,894 1,127
Tax effect of temporary B 8 A B R 0 Ik V4 I FE A

differences attributable LERERIBBRE

to undistributed profits of

subsidiaries 15,872 —
Effect of different tax rates of REMBERERLE 2

subsidiaries operating in other M A |l priE A A

jurisdictions ME2ZE 28,761 3,990
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE (1,631) (226)
Utilisation of tax losses previously /A Z BRI AR Z

not recognised M EE (8) (3,871)
Income tax at concessionary rate TEEH?-FJ’T S (165) (1695)
Withholding tax on distribution MEBARDIKZ

from subsidiaries ?E?Dﬁ 6,043 —
Others HAt (49) 73
Tax expense for the year FARIBZ 123,112 28,324
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

13. DIVIDENDS

Dividends recognised as distribution during

the year:

Interim dividend for financial year ended
31 March 2021 of 2.8 HK cents
(2020: 2.8 HK cents) per share on
487,358,224 (2020: 570,358,224)
shares

Interim special dividend for financial

year ended 31 March 2021 of 9.2 HK

cents (2020: 8.7 HK cents) per share
on 487,358,224 (2020: 570,358,224)
shares

Final dividend for financial year ended 31

March 2020 of 8.0 HK cents (2019:

8.0 HK cent) per share on 570,358,224

(2019: 570,358,224) shares

Special dividend for financial year ended

31 March 2020 of 5.0 HK cents
(2019: 13.5 HK cents) per share on
570,358,224 (2019: 570,358,224)
shares

Dividends proposed after year end (note):
Proposed final dividend for financial
year ended 31 March 2021 of 12 HK
cents (2020: 8.0 HK cents) per share
on 487,358,224 (2020: 570,358,224)
shares

ENCRARD

1% 487,358,224 Hx
12487,358,224 1k (=
)

12570,358,224 R (ZZ— N,
g

13. RE

¥4

(@]
-
O
W ¢

(&3]
oo
™ T

no

~

=z

<A
S
=
ED
=
iﬂﬂiw
N -HY

ﬂ£+
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&irqﬂﬁ;ﬁﬁ&%i&
B(ZE=2F 28%

—ZF
570,358,224 ik H% #5@12
BE-F-—fF-f=f—
awirq:aﬁﬁ%u&%iﬁ&g.
/%m-l(—?—?i 87/%“&)
570,358,224 1% ) Bk 3 =t ”Z.
HE-F-BE-A=T-AL
MREE skﬁsﬁﬁxﬁtﬁxz)soﬁém

(ZZ—N& : 8.0

12570,358,224 R (ZE—NF :

570,358,224 ) Rzt E 2
HZ2-Z-ZF=A=+-HIt
BB RIS B A% 5.0
(ZZE—NF : 13.5)

FREBRRRB (M) -
15 487,358,224 [f (ZE=F 4

570,358,224 1% ) Rk (A5t E 2
@Z‘é_g:—i A=+—Hit
Eﬁﬁﬁziﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁ%%iﬂ&m

Proposed special dividend for financial 1% 487,358, 224Hx(_ T_ZF:
year ended 31 March 2021 of 27 HK 570,358,224 it )& 1n uﬂatz
cents (2020: 5.0 HK cents) per share B2-T--#=A=f-Al
on 487,358,224 (2020: 570,358,224) MR RIKERIRE SR 27

shares B ZZE=2F : 5.0/(l)

Note: Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
and a special dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021
have been proposed by the directors of the Company and are
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

2020
- 2
HK$'000
FET
13,646 15,970
44,837 49,621
45,629 45,629
28,518 76,998
132,630 188,218
58,483 45,629
131,587 28,518
190,070 74,147
M 2| % - ARAEERERE =
T-—F-A-+—RILEEIRER

SRERRE
FREEHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R 2R B

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHEZ_E_—F=F=1—HILFE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per

share attributable to owners of the Company is based
on the following data:

&7
AEERERK

Earnings

Earnings for the purposes of
basic and diluted earnings
per share (profit for the year
attributable to owners of the
Company)

ignip 4]
AAEERERK

Number of shares

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose
of basic and diluted earnings
per share

FHH

The diluted earnings per share for both years has not
included the effect from the Company’s share options
because the exercise prices of the share options are
higher than the average market price of the shares of
the Company.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the purpose of basic earnings per share has been
adjusted for the repurchase of shares on 20 November
2020.

Annual Report 2021

14.

BEBN 2B (KRAF
BB ANRIEFRRF)

BEERM 2 TR nE

BRER

ARBEBARBERERRETR

FIRIFA TN BIRFTH

2021 2020
-5 —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FEIT
233,256 100,301
2021 2020
—E-—fF ZETF
’000 ‘000

T TR
540,342 570,358

MEFE 2 SREER ML EBEAR
NEBERECZZE
ZITEESRARRBRD 2 FHHE

PEK

AAEERELRRN
BER—_FE_TF+-A-_THED
Pty A% o

A

Z—FEER

It 75 FR X B s

BB InE 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B A% R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y3 ~ HIERRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold and Motor
buildings improvements equipment vehicles Total
e BE R
THRETF NEEE  RERRG - ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET &L FET FET FET
COST R
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NEEA-H 189,927 164,778 94,707 4,245 453,657
Exchange adjustment A% (1,588) (3,686) (1,522) - (6,796)
Additions RE - 39,266 4,599 309 44174
Disposals/written off e /s - (33,767) (8,247) - (42,014)
At 31 March 2020 RZEZFFE=A=1-H 188,339 166,501 89,537 4,554 449,021
Exchange adjustment AR 1,914 4,841 1,837 - 8,592
Additions HE - 20,843 3,103 359 24,305
Disposals/written off e/ W - (14,124) (2,615) (607) (17,346)
At 31 March 2021 RZF--%=A=1—-H 190,253 178,151 91,862 4,306 464,572
DEPRECIATION AND WEREE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NENA-A 44,149 120,080 71,746 2,238 238,213
Exchange adjustment AR (973) (3,291) (1,135) - (5,399)
Provided for the year REERE 4,085 23,717 5,028 423 33,253
Impairment loss recognised ~ PMERBR 2 HEEE
in profit or loss = 4,123 = = 4,123
Eliminated on disposals/ HE /B
written off - (27,942) (6,261) - (84,203)
At 31 March 2020 RZZ-FE=A=1-H 47,261 116,687 69,378 2,661 235,987
Exchange adjustment AR 1,271 4,087 1,434 - 6,992
Provided for the year REERRE 4,114 21,787 3,506 360 29,767
Eliminated on disposals/ HE /s
written off - (13,812) (1,966) (508) (16,286)
At 31 March 2021 R-F--%=A=1+—-AH 52,646 128,949 72,352 2,513 256,460
CARRYING VALUES REfE
At 31 March 2021 RZE--%=A=1—-H 137,607 49,202 19,510 1,798 208,112
At 31 March 2020 RZZ-EF=A=1-H 141,078 49,904 20,159 1,898 213,034

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHEZ_E_—F=F=1—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, using straight-line
method or reducing balance method at the following
rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over 20 years for those located
and buildings in the PRC or 50 years for
those located in Hong Kong
Leasehold 20% — 33'/,% or over the
improvements lease terms, if shorter

Furniture, fixtures 10 — 20%
and equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

Owner-occupied leasehold land located in Hong
Kong and the PRC is included in property, plant and
equipment because the allocation between the land
portion and building portion cannot be made reliably.

The carrying value of property Y REBERE

comprises:

Properties located in: R T E 2 W%
Hong Kong B
PRC =all

During the years end 31 March 2021 and 2020, certain
retail shops in Hong Kong and the PRC incurred
operating losses. The management of the Group
concluded there was an indication for impairment and
conducted impairment assessment on recoverable
amounts of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets of relevant retail shops. The Group
estimates the recoverable amount of these retail shops,
each represents an individual CGU.

Annual Report 2021

15. Y13 - WBRRE(E)

T ERRERELRERBEAT
FRIERMED R - BB MRBEEZ
PR

HELHE URFESEE205F

BF FUREBR 50 F
THEMERE 20% — 33"/,% 3K
EHB(AREE
AAE)
Bl EER 10 — 20%
B
/‘L$ 20%

HRAUREERTBEZEETERAEE
iz LA D MABFHB Y TRE R 52
WwED - MEETARBEELHIIEA
E R I G

2021 2020
—EB=--F —T_FF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET

130,106 133,057
7,501 8,021
137,607 141,078

HE_T_—FRk_ZT_ZTF=FH
=t+—BIFE  BERPHEETE
EEELEERE ASBEERER
RIBBATEEZME - BBERRER
@)ﬂ%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁjﬁlﬁ—f”&@
TRETRER G - ~AEBAERT
}TE_(%EZ% l)?'JﬁfEEE%LL)Z—MQ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B A% R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The recoverable amount of CGUs has been determined
based on a value in use calculation.

Based on the result of the assessment, the
management of the Group determined that the
recoverable amount of those CGUs with impairment
indication is higher than the respective carrying amount
and no impairment loss has been recognised for the
year ended 31 March 2021.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the
management of the Group determined that the
recoverable amount of a CGU with impairment
indication is lower than the respective carrying amount
and as a result, an impairment loss of HK$4,123,000
and HK$12,479,000 has been recognised in full against
the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

As at 31 March 2021
Carrying amount

fRmEE

As at 31 March 2020
Carrying amount

fRmEE

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

15. Y13 - WBRRRE(E)

ReEL BN 2 RE S B REE
REEFEETE -

REBFEER  AEEEEEETE X
FERETR cACELEM 2 AT
EEeRaNEBZKEE  BREE
—E—F=-A=+—HILFELE
MR B R 1E

HE _ T _ZHF=RA=+—HIF
B AEBEEEBHETE @G RED
KB eEEEM 2] RESEER
ZEEZEREE Bt S - #
REXBRERAEEEZREESD 5
2 HIERBEEE4,123,0008 T &
12,479,000,8 7T °

16. FAEEE

Leased
properties
HEYE
HK$’000
FET

R-ZEBE-_—-F=H=+—H

334,082

R-ZEB-2F=A=1+—8H

287,779
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R 2R B

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHEZ_E_—F=F=1—HILFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 16. FRAEEE(£Z)

Expenses related to leases HEZHBER
Expenses relating to leases with  EEFABfRW14A FE FH &5 81

lease terms end within 12 BRELERFE 165K E B
months of the date of initial BEr12E A REER 2 M
application of HKFRS 16 EBMBzRAX
Expenses relating to short-term  ERASHIFAEAE X
leases
Variable lease payments not FEREABRITESTA

included in the measurement of 2 A] B & 18
lease liabilities
Depreciation for the year FAME

Additions to right-of-use assets  {# & E 1 N

B

Total cash outflow for leases HERSRLEE

\

For both years, the Group leases various retail shops
and offices for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 1 year to 8 years but may
have extension options as described below. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

Annual Report 2021

2021 2020
—B-—F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

- 1,788
10,597 6,960
22,772 3,861

112,121 132,227
145,490 144,836
158,907 56,735
156,397 147,772

RREFE  AEEREZSERES
BEEEERRAE - HEAKARBEE
M- \Filx EABTHE
THE 2R - HERFIZEREER
& EGERRGEEE TRERE
FAK o EETE TH & 53X M A7 T A 8iH
HRER  AKEEBEHZIEER -
AR TE AR BIETT & 4.2 HAR

A

Z—FEER
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16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
entered into new lease agreements for the use of
leased properties for 3 years (2020: 2 — 3 years).
On the lease commencement, the Group recognised
additions of right-of-use asset and related lease liability
of HK$8,398,000 (2020: HK$3,311,000) upon entered
into new lease agreements, which constitutes non-
cash transactions. In addition, lease terms of certain
leases were extended through modification and the
Group recognised additions to right-of-use assets
and related lease liabilities of HK$142,010,000 (2020:
HK$53,058,000) at the effective date of modification.

The Group regularly entered into short-term lease for
retails shops in the PRC. As at 31 March 2021 and
2020, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the
portfolio of short-term leases to which the expenses
relating to short-term leases disclosed above and the
increase in expenses relating to short-term leases is
due to more retails shops leased in the PRC during the
year.

Variable lease payments

Leases of retail shops are either with only fixed lease
payments or contain variable lease payment that are
based on certain percentage of sales. The payment
terms are common in retail shops in Hong Kong and
the PRC where Group operates.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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16. EFAREEE(ZF)

HE_T-_—F=ZA=+—HLHF
B AEEFERAEWET I HA
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EZF) - RETUFAERREE - K
SERHEERRNERRNEFEHE
BEKEBAEEAES,398,000% T
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RIFRERH - o ATFHLHOES
BIERMER X MAEERMERAER
E%Eﬁw?m&%%éﬁﬁmﬁﬁ
g A E142,010,0008 T(Z T - =
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_E_—F=F=1—HIFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Variable lease payments (Continued)

For leases of retail shops that contain both fixed lease
payments and variable lease payment that are based
on 2% to 14% (2020: 2% to 13%) sales, the amount
of fixed and variable lease payments paid/payable to

relevant lessors for the years are as below:

For the year ended 31 March 2021

Retail shops without AEBEENRZ
variable lease g’%ﬁé
payments

Retail shops with REAEHEENRZ
variable lease TEIE

payments

For the year ended 31 March 2020

Retail shops without AEHERNKZ
variable lease 2’%%
payments

Retail shops with REAEHEENRZ
variable lease TEIE

payments

Annual Report 2021

16. EAREE(E)
AREENRE)
REREEHENT LB ERH
BERZ2%ZE14%(ZE_FF : 2%
113%)27“ﬁ SNH2EEENR

CRUTFEER BN T HEE L
?EAZIIE&T“ HEMNRESBEN
T

BE-Z-—F=A=+—HLFE

Number Fixed Variable Total

of shops payments payments payments

EHEE & 7 14 ™K CIE-INEN NRBE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$ 000

FET FET FET

4 2,142 — 2,142

S 19,570 22,772 42,342

9 21,712 22,772 44,484
HE_Z-ZF=-_A=1+—RILFE

Number Fixed Variable Total

of shops payments payments payments

EHEE EEMNR AENR AREHE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET FET

3 16,462 — 16,462

4 6,612 3,861 10,473

7 23,074 3,861 26,935

—EZ—FFRH
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16.

BB HRRM

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE—ZE

—FZF=1+—HULEE
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)
Variable lease payments (Continued)

The overall financial effect of using variable payment
terms is that higher rental costs are incurred by shops
with higher sales. Variable rent expenses are expected
to continue to represent a similar proportion of shops
sales in future years.

Extension options

The Group has extension options for certain leases
of retail shops. This is used to maximise operational
flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in
the Group’s operations. The extension option held
is exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.

The Group assesses at lease commencement date
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
extension options. The directors of the Company
concluded the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
all leases with extension options considering all
relevant facts and circumstances including economic
incentives for exercising the options. As at 31 March
2021, the carrying amount of lease liability over the
periods of extension option is HK$82,667,000 (2020:
HK$121,040,000).

The Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain
to exercise an extension option, upon the occurrence
of either a significant event or a significant change in
circumstances that is within the control of the lessee.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, before the
commencement of the extension period of the lease,
the Group has entered into a renewal agreement with
the term of years longer than the term of years per
extension option. Accordingly, the Group recognised
addition to right-of-use asset as the lease was
considered modified with the non-cancellable lease
term of 5 years (2020: Nil).

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

16. EFAREEE(ZF)

TEBAENRE)

ERAENKIER BBV BEER
HERKS I EHMEEZHEAA
Re - AHRRKZF AJEZHEDSH
XBEERERNERHEER I AEL
& o

mARER
AEERETEEECHETREE

HERZE  ARSEEAKEZEN
REETHAZEEBEREEERK
FIsA B EERENAAKET
& - HELBEANSITE -

AEBRHEERGBE %ﬁé%é
BESTEEHREEE ZEI—
ﬁ@$ﬁﬁﬁﬂ@%ﬂﬁ\&%z
KELEFA)  ARBIESERE ' A
SEEESTETHREHREREE -
—T-—F=ZR=+—H EHE
ERMEEBEKRMAEAS82667,000
Bo(ZZE ZZFF 1 121,040,0007%
JL) ©

EEEBREMHIABAZHSBER
ZIBNBLEBREBE  AEBEH
A ERAEEEITEEREEE -
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e B IS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_E_—F=F=1—HIFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 16. FRAEEE(£Z)

Restriction on assets

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$351,362,000
(2020: HK$307,436,000) are recognised with related
right-of-use assets of HK$334,082,000 (2020:
HK$287,779,000) as at 31 March 2021. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held
by the lessor and the relevant leased assets may not
be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Details of the lease maturity analysis of lease liabilities
are set out in notes 27 and 37.

Details of the impairment assessment on right-of-use
assets are set out in note 15.

Rent concessions

During the year ended 31 March 2021, lessors of
various retail shops provided rent concessions to the
Group through reductions ranging from 10% to 50%
over one to three months (2020: ranging from 10% to
100% over one to seven months).

The Group concluded the changes in lease payments
constitute lease modifications. The relevant rent
concessions resulted in the addition of the Group’s
carrying amount of right-of-use assets and related lease
liabilities of HK$7,169,000 with the combined effect
of revised lease payments from the rent concessions
and the reduction in the revised incremental borrowing
rates determined upon the date of modification (2020:
reduction of carrying amount of right-of-use assets
and related lease liabilities of HK$4,731,000 with the
combined effect of revised lease payments from the
rent concessions and the increment in the revised
incremental borrowing rates determined upon the date
of modification).
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e e T e St s RS R e
A 2 18 #8{F F # & & 334,082,000 7
T(ZZT T4 : 287,779,000 7T )
R E &8 &351,362,000 (=
T — T £ :307,436,000/8 7T ) M
ERETERTTMARE  HEHE
EEHREEARE) 2ERMER
miERAFA & & E T ] AME R B EIR
e

HEEBE2HERHESMHBIHR
Mizr 27 37 o

£ AEEERENE ZF BRI E
15

HERE

RBE-_ZT-_—F=A=1+—HIF
B ZEZEENEHEARAREERR
HESRE - FIEBHEI10%ZE50% T
L RE—ZEZ=@EA(ZZE=_Z=F:
HIBR10% E100% 5% © A —=
+@A) -

REBEBREBRENKEXNBEEE -
HERSREERAEBFERAEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

BE—E—

—FZf=t—HLFE

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Cost of investments in unlisted

associates

Exchange adjustments
Share of post-acquisition profits,
net of dividends received

R E_E T H
DN

BE 3 R

FE(E W E A -
R B WALE

17. (hE QT 2R

LBRAIZHE

Included in the interests of investments are goodwill
of HK$26,076,000 (2020: HK$25,734,000) arising on
acquisition of associates.

Details of the Group’s associates at 31 March 2021
and 2020 are as follows:

Name of
associate

Bg

k)
all

CE-T

HFBERNERAT

(T3 1)

KEEER N ERA

(Tox%])

s EER N AR A

([&%])

182

Place of
incorporation
and operation
At A 3L I

a] Taiwan

Y
=y

7] Taiwan

AN =3
=

7] Taiwan

A ]
=

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

Proportion

of ownership

interest
FrER
R Ll

2020
“E-EF

60% 60%
60% 60%

60% 60%

2021 2020
=EB-—F —T-TfF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
53,192 53,192
615 (558)
12,555 11,347
66,362 63,981

REEDTEEEKEREQRMmE

& 2 7% 26,076,000 7T (=

E-F

£ : 25,734,000/ 7T) ©

AEBBE QRN
H

Gl
—EF=A=1+—

Proportion of

voting power held

BRZ
RERELH

_7_

EIZﬁI L

Principal
activity

ETRER

2020

B4

(note)

(Hfit)

40% 40% Watch trading
FIREH
40% 40% Watch trading
F R
40% 40% Watch trading
F IR
RAXRTEBEBERAF

= — =<



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar B3 R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHEZ_E_—F=F=1—HILFE

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Aggregate information of associates that are not
individually material

The Group’s share of profit and 7% B E(5% Fll &
total comprehensive income FEHRRERE

Aggregate carrying amount of

AR B RS

the Group’s interests in these e BREBE
associates
Note: On 22 January 2020, the Group acquired additional 20%

interest (“Interest”) over 1 %7, Jk %7 and z ¥7 together
with a call option exercisable by the seller with aggregate
cash consideration of HK$12,000,000. Pursuant to the
agreement, the seller has the right to buy back the Interest,
exercisable between 22 January 2022 to 21 February
2022, at exercisable price of HK$12,000,000 plus interest
of 4% per annum. Upon completion of the transaction, the
Group recognised the call option derivative at fair value
of HK$10,991,000 and consideration of the additional
interests of HK$22,991,000, respectively. The Group holds
60% of the issued share capital in each of the associate
after the acquisitions are completed. However, under the
shareholders’ agreement, other shareholders have the right
to appoint three out of five directors to the board of these
associates and since the critical business decision of these
associates are determined by the simple majority in the
board, the directors of the Company considers that the
Group does not have control over of these associates and
they are therefore continued to be classified as associates
of the Group. As at 31 March 2021, the fair value of the
call option derivative is approximately HK$14,000,000
and fair value loss on derivative financial instruments of
HK$3,009,000 has been recognised to profit or loss during
the year (2020: Nil).
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17. (G E N F 2R (F)

WIERER 2B ERB AT ER

LRAZ

2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
9,193 5,379
55,371 52,990

wiiz -

R-BE_ZF—F=+=—H AEEI
4838 4 K8 12,000,000 7 7T Ue BE 1 5 -
XET R FBIN0% RE S ([RZ = )
BRIE A A FITE 2 REEE - BRIZWH
FOBAUR-_ZE_—_F—A=+=
AE-—T-_—F#-_A=-+—HHHEED
ZHERS 0 171F (8 A12,000,0007% 7T hn
FHEA% - RPHTKE - AEED
BREBEAFEFEZRBHETET
£.10,991,000/8 7t R 8B IME 5 2 R E
22,991,000 T » NEBRUKEETTA %
REESBENREHITRAB0% ° A
m: BERRGE  EMRREERE
ZEBENRARESEHZ=F " MH
REZEWER R ZAREGRRHES
CHBEARZERTE  ARREBERALK
EEWEBE R 2GR RS
BENBAAEBEZHERR - RZF
——H¥=ZA=+—B ABHEOLT
B 72 AF{EHX A 14,000,000 7T © LT
ARl T Az A F{EE18 3,009,000
TERFAEEZER (T _TF :
) o

A

Z—FEER
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e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

18. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

Cost of investment in an unlisted

joint venture
Exchange adjustments
Share of post-acquisitio

BERAK
BE 3 R

n profit  E(EUEER R R

Details of the Group’s joint venture at 31 March 2021

and 2020 are as follows:

Name of joint
venture

BELAFEH

BREXERGR AR
(“Huimei”) ([EE3E |)

Proportion of

Place of ownership

incorporation interest

and operation 2021 & 2020

e

Rz pl

& i AR 3L B —EBE-FR

EEM R ot et

The PRC 40%
a3

Note: The Group holds 40% of the paid-in capital of Huimei. Huimei

is jointed controlled by
equity owner by virtue

the Group and the other significant
of contractual arrangements among

equity owners. Therefore, Huimei is classified as a joint venture

of the Group.

Included in the interest of investments is goodwill
of HK$4,147,000 (2020: HK$3,749,000) arising on
acquisition of Huimei during the year ended 31 March

2012.

Oriental Watch

Holdings Limited

18. iE—EEE QA 2R

R—REZFLETEERALZ

2021 2020
—E-—F —TEoEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FiEx FET
21,793 21,793
(601) (2,655)
5,064 5,101
26,256 24,239
REEBGERFN_ZE_—FR=_F
—EF=A=tT—RZFHBWOT :
Proportion
of voting
power held
2021 & 2020 Principal activity
BEZ
RERELSH
—E--FR
—ECEF FEER
40% Watch trading
(note) FEASH
(H1at)

Hiat AEBFAEEXEHRAZ40% © B
ExREREE AZHTL 26 DR
RAEBES —BERREEA ALRZE

H o Fit  EXDBEAAEEZAZER

Al e

KERRPREAREBE-ZE—=F
A=+t HULEFEAKBEZMmE
EZEEBALA147,0008 L (ZE=F
4 : 3,749,000/ 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar B3 R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHEZ_E_—F=F=1—HILFE

18.

19.

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 18. E— RSB NGz ER(E)
(Continued)
Information of the joint venture that is not WHBREAZEE QAT ZER

individually material

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETTF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FEIT

The Group’s share of loss and AEEEGEEERER
total comprehensive expense S 458 (37) (59)

Carrying amount of the Group’s AEB{EZAZERAZ

interest in the joint venture w2 BREE 26,256 24,239
EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 19. BAFEFARMEZEKE 2
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE RATHA
INCOME

2021 2020
—B—F —E_FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
Listed investments FHRE
Equity securities listed in REB LT ZRAE S
Hong Kong 27 36
Unlisted investments FELTIRE 4,498 3,175
4,525 3,211
Note: BT -
The directors of the Company have elected to designate these Eﬁﬁé\$@a§$i*ﬁfg  ERRSFRERBEER
investments as at FVTOCI as they believe that recognising short-term B2 AP B2 58 AR B B SR B 5 R B A0
fluctuations in these investments’ fair value in profit or loss would not ?%ﬁé%%&ﬁZjﬁ?fﬁfﬁ\ﬁﬁ?%ﬁz%rﬂ%j?ﬁ '
be consistent with the Group’s strategy of holding these investments &tE%EH%a%%%ﬁﬁ}%i%ﬁi@fﬁﬁﬁ)\ﬁ
for long-term purposes and realising their performance in the long fih 2 E M o
run.
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e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

(6 !

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZE2-F

HK$’°000 HK$’000

FET F&ET

20. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 20. RAFEFAHMEZEKEZ
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
Listed investments EmKRE
Debt securities listed in & E FHMENF2.89%
overseas with fixed interests £325%(ZE=F
ranging from 2.89% to 3.25% F:1.80% E4.25%)
(2020: 1.80% to 4.25%) per ENFR=ZFT==
annum and maturity dates NA=ZRE=-ZT==
ranging from 3 August 2022 F— ﬂ 71 EI (ZZE=F
to 9 January 2023 (2020: 6 F:ZF-_FFRA
June 2020 to 15 June 2023) NAEZZZ=FX
A+HHB)EE 285
THEHRES
Unlisted investments FELEMIRE
Debt securities issued in Iiiﬂﬁfﬁ 30% (=
overseas with fixed interests T-TF :2.00% %
of 5.30% (2020: 2.00% 5.30%) RN _E_Hh
to 5.30%) per annum and FN\A —HiEI(_?_
maturity date is 15 August TFE: T _FFH
2025 (2020: 6 May 2020 to AR Eli_ T-HF
15 August 2025) NA+ER)IHZE
INEITRIEE
Analysed as: R
Current portion B ERER 5
Non-current portion FEBNHAER

At 31 March 2021, debt instruments at FVTOCI are
stated at fair values, which have been determined with
reference to the quoted bid prices available and quoted
market prices provided by brokers which are financial
institutions.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

7,330 10,926
1,315 6,240
8,645 17,166

- 7,486
8,645 9,680
8,645 17,166

RZZEZ—F=A=+—8  &A¥F
Epﬁr)\ﬁ@iﬁﬂﬁ S EB I AR
RFEBEAER - Hh2ER B 2R
ZERAEL(BESREB) TR
TR miGERMERT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar B3 R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE_E_—F=F=+—HILFE

20. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 20. RAFEFAHMEEKEZ
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EEIEE)
INCOME (Continued)
The amount of the Group’s debt instruments at FVTOCI AREBRAFEFAEMEERKRZEZ
denominated in currencies other than functional BEIAEZSBUATXAEAEER
currencies of the relevant group’s entities is set out ERNEEEINZ EWETE -
below:

2021 2020

—EB=-—F —T_FF

HK$°000 HK$ 000

FET FHET

United States Dollars (“US$”) EAEViRD) 8,645 17,166
Details of impairment assessment of debt instruments BEEAFEEFAEMEE WG ZE
at FVTOCI are set out in note 37. B LERBEN G ZFEEHNMIEIT

21. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 21, BAFEFABRZRZRAEARKRE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2021 2020
—EB=-—F —T_FF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Listed investments KA
Equity securities listed in REB LT 2 BRARS
Hong Kong 2,902 4,230
Equity securities listed in RAEIN LT 2 RAE &
overseas 3,134 11,641
6,036 15,871
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e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—E_—F=F=1-—HILFE

21. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

The amount of the Group’s equity investments at
FVTPL denominated in currencies other than functional
currencies of the relevant group’s entities is set out
below:

Us$ E7T

22. INVENTORIES

Watches F k&
Accessories and parts fid 14 K B4

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

21. RAFVEFABRBZRAEARE

(&)

AEEZEAFHEFABRZBARE
ZERATXEEBEREERGE

BN EETHE -
2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
3,134 11,641

22, 78

2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
603,763 780,556
19,005 18,137
622,768 798,693
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar B3 R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021

HE-¥=

—FZA=t—AILFEE

23. LOANS RECEIVABLES

Loan receivable at amortised cost 1Z# 5K AT & 2 FEUE X
(note a)
Loan receivable at FVTPL (note b) 12 AF{Ezt ABRZ EWE

(Htita)

(Mt b)

The following is the maturity profile of the loans
receivables at the end of the reporting period:

Repayable after one year (note a) WN—E%1EE(Kita)
Repayable within one year (note b) N —E RNEE (K71 b)

Notes:

(@)

On 13 November 2020, the Group entered into a loan
facility agreement (“Facility”) with an independent third party
(“Borrower A”) with an amount not exceeding US$5,200,000,
to fund the Borrower A’s obligation in lending to another party
(“Project Borrower”) who has beneficial interest in certain
properties in Indonesia (“Properties A”). The loan carries
interest at a fixed rate of 10% per annum and is repayable after
18 months and 5 business days from the date of drawn down.
As at 31 March 2021, Borrower A has drawn down the facility
in full. Pursuant to the Facility, the Group is entitled to take
assignment of the beneficial interest in Properties A by way of
security in the event of default by Borrower A and a personal
guarantee. Based on the relevant terms in the Facility and the
personal guarantee provided, the directors of the Company
consider that the loan has contractual right to cash flow that
represent contractual cash flow that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding, and is
accounted for as amortised cost.

Annual Report 2021

23. EWE

2021 2020
—EB=-—F —T-FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
41,957 —
17,095 —
59,052 —

AT HRRE2RPRERE KD

i
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
41,957 —
17,095 —
59,052 —

wiiz -

(a)

R-_ZE_ZTF+—A+=H AEEHR
—BBUE=F([ERAR DT —H
£ E 838 5,200,000% T2 EREE
HE((ZRE])  BEFAREXRTS
—H([BEEHA]l EREEZETY
X¥(MERDTHEEEEER)ZER
REES - ZEFIZEEFHE10% 5t
B ERREDBEHE TN \BAAZHEE
¥AREE - R T-_—F=ZA=+—
A EBERAFRE2ERIZRE - BE
ZRE - WERARRBEAERELD
AEEBEEAERFAESEZYER
ZE=ER o RIBZE B BRI EG XA
REZEAAER  ARFAEERAZE
BEREMRIERS KM REERSHF]
BERFHNANBEERENRERERS
LREF) - B AR VEE AR A o

A

Z—FEER

189



190

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B A% R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021

HE=®=

—FZf=t—HLFE

23. LOANS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

On 23 December 2020, the Group, together with other lenders
(collectively referred to as the “Lenders”), entered into a loan
facility agreement with an independent third party (“Borrower
B”) who was seeking to acquire a piece of land located in
United Kingdom (“Property B”) from a bank. The bank has
beneficial interest over the Property pursuant to a pledged
loan arrangement, which is currently in default by the existing
borrower (“Existing Borrower”). The loan amount provided by
the Group is British Pound (“GBP”) 1,600,000 with a fixed
interest rate 10% per annum. The loan is repayable either at
the date when the Existing Borrower repays the loan originally
owed to the bank or the completion of the sale of the Property
B by the administrator appointed by Borrower B, whichever
is earlier. The Property was subsequently taken over by a
company beneficially owned by Borrower B (“Borrower C”) on
10 March 2021 and the loan and accrued interest are then fully
repaid.

On the same date, the Lenders have entered into another loan
facility agreement with Borrower C to finance the acquisition
of the Property B. The Property B and the outstanding loans,
together with the accrued interest, was assigned to Borrower
C. The loan is repayable on 22 December 2021 with fixed
interest rate of 10% per annum. The Property B was pledged
to the Lenders through the share charge over the Borrower C.

These loans receivables are accounted for as FVTPL as the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s only
recourse over the loans are through Property B in the event
of default by the borrowers, resulting in the contractual right
to cash flow that do not represent contractual cash flow that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding.

Details of impairment assessment of loans receivables
are set out in note 37.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

23. BWER(#E)
EXNC)

(o)

R-ZB-ZTF+-_A=-+=0 " ~x&=F
EREMBERAFRBIERADE—F
BYFE=HERAZDIII—MHER
BEWE  ZBUE=HERESKA
—FEERITWEE — R A RBR 2 T ([
X2 ZRTBE—MHEBERERE
RHEYX Lz EBESER  MBEEER
ATBREERANDBRIEEDN - AEE
RHEZEHRE %5 41,600,000 % & ([ =
1) REEEFNE10%TE - ZEE
HERBEERABERERNRITZ
ERZAFERAZEETZEEATK
HEYELZBASREBE)EE -
MEZEBER-_TE-_—F=A+HHE
RALEZBEEZ —RAAI(ERA
ADNEE  ZZERREFAFEREED
EHEE -

FH BRABEBERART LS —HE
HEbE g BREMELREES -
MELRMABEZEFEREFE
EEETERAR ZEERENR=-Z
——F+-_A-+-HEE KETFE
FIEA0% B c MELAERARZK
DHRERRLERA °

ZERRER LD FEFABREALR
AARARZEERBMERNELY KK
EEERMELHERRELER &
BB WA RS R W REEASH
MNENFNENRSRENRERES
B HIRER -

R E SR 2 BE R (A S BN
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHEZ_E_—F=F=1—HILFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables B S EIWEER
Less: Allowance for credit losses & - 1= BB

Property rental and other deposits ¥ %M & &k EMiZ &

PRC value added tax (“VAT”) AI [ 7 AR B I (B A
recoverable (MEEH ]

Advances to suppliers ) L FE P B 3K

Other receivables H A FE W BR K

As at 1 April 2019, trade receivables from contract with
customers amounted to HK$86,046,000.

The Group maintains a general credit policy of not
more than 30 days for its retails sales in department
store and wholesales customers. Sales made to retail
customers are mainly made on a cash basis. The
following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for credit losses based on the invoice date
at the end of the reporting period:

Age IR

0 to 30 days 0&E30H

31 to 60 days 31£60H
61 to 90 days 61290 H
Over 90 days #8390 A

Annual Report 2021

24. 5 R HALEW AR

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
265,217 83,835
(4,690) (2,959)
260,527 80,876
16,368 17,566
129 2,528
4,716 6,790
4,283 4,995
286,023 112,755

R=E-NFMA—A  REEFA
#) 2 B 5 & W iR 5K 7% 86,046,000 /8
7‘[]0

AEBEHERERARITEHE R
EFE{TTHBBI0A 2 —REER
R TERPHEURSET - AT
REZRBERF (TR EREERE)
RERPRIZERBRZRE DT -

2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

219,729 61,106
30,882 19,770
5,688 =
4,228 =
260,527 80,876
—EC--FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B A% R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

24,

25.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

As at 31 March 2021, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$40,798,000 (2020: HK$19,770,000)
which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of
the past due balances, HK$4,228,000 (2020: Nil) has
been past due 90 days or more and is not considered
as in default. These balances are not considered as
in default because historical experience indicated that
such receivables could be recoverable from the relevant
debtors. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

Details of the impairment assessment of trade and
other receivables are stated in note 37.

SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS, BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the
Group and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less at prevailing market
rates ranging from 0.01% to 2.45% (2020: 0.01% to
2.03%) per annum.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

24.

25.

B REMEBWERR(E)

| e e S S =
ZEBESRWEREHRBIEESARE
4215 40,798,000 BL( T -T4F :
19,770,000 #7T) 2 EUWER - Mz
LRIV EFRBC B - BEL
gRA - 4,228,000 TT(ZT T F :
E)DBEOOETIA L TR AEE
B ZER/BTHERBEDN WA
RIBE L5 T % U EBR K A] B 48
BESAME - NEBWERZELE
BIFETMEER -

B 5 LAWK B ER G
FROMIFEST -

BHRITER
Be

RITHEERR

BITHRBEASBEASEMBFRS
NRENHB A=A KA TWIRIRTT
MBEFRNF0.01EE2.45FE(=
T-FF 001EE203E)FTEZ
RRHERIRITIF K ©
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Trade payables Z SRR
Payroll and welfare payables B TEREF
Commission payables ERAE
Renovation work payables FEH BT TARAR XK
PRC VAT and other taxes FEAT R Bl AT K&
payables H A HiIE
Property rental fee payables e ERE
Other payables H M T BR 3K
Accrued expenses EETE R

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

Age IR R

0 to 60 days 0zZ60H

61 to 90 days 61290 H
Over 90 days Q0 HM £

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30
days.

Annual Report 2021

26. ESREMENERRAREN
8E

ESREMEMSERER
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
112,064 26,168
87,499 15,648
30,553 25,886
2,506 1,430
28,133 1,230
6,173 1,916
17,741 11,496
2,701 3,000
287,370 86,774

AT REZEMNERN2HRHRIZE
ZEMZ5 2 BREDT

2021 2020
—E-—F —E T
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

110,976 25,088
17 52
1,071 1,028
112,064 26,168

BEEmFAEEHR/30AH -

A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities on sales of HEFH®ZEHMEE
watches

During the year ended 31 March 2021, revenue
recognised in current year of HK$4,366,000 (2020:
HK$7,476,000) was included in the contract liability
balance at the beginning of the year.

Contract liabilities represent receipts in advance for
sales of watches, giving rise to contract liabilities until

revenue is recognised.

As at 1 April 2019, contract liabilities amounted to
HK$7,476,000.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

26. ESREMENERRUAREN

a8R(E)

BHEE

2021 2020
=EB-—F bt
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FET

4,502 4,366

BHE T - F#=A=+—H8HI#F
[ RARFE R 2 W 4,366,000
BIL(ZFE=_FF : 7,476,000 T)
B ARFVIZEHNEBEHRT -

EHABEEHEEER ZAWHE &
EEANBEEERRWERBIE

RZZE—NFWUWA—H ' aHEEAE
7,476,000 78 T °
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

= s = H = e o
27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HERE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Lease liabilities payable: ERNEEAE
Within one year —FR 85,651 101,663
Within a period of more than one #RiE—FETBBME
year but not more than two Z A A
years 70,185 70,777
Within a period of more than two HBREMFEBTBBRE
years but not more than five < HARE A
years 177,952 90,675
Within a period of more than five i@ E 2B A
years 17,574 44,321
351,362 307,436
Less: Amount due for settlement J&f - RBIBE TFT/R121@
with 12 months shown RAREIH&E 2 50A
under current liabilities (85,651) (101,663)
Amount due for settlement after FERBEBET ﬁ/T\121ﬂ
12 months shown under & B HAAEE 2 B8
non-current liabilities 265,711 205,773

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate
applied to lease liabilities range from 2.17% to 5.00%
(2020: from 2.67% to 4.85%). £E

Annual Report 2021

A

Z—FEER

BRAREEABZIMNEFEIESER
RENF217EE5.00E(=
NF2.67EE485F) -

E-F

= — =
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

28. BANK LOANS

The bank loans are repayable

as follows (based on the

scheduled repayment dates set

out in the loan agreements):

Within one year

Within a period of more than
one year but not exceeding
two years

Comprising:

Amount due within one year
shown under current liabilities

Amount that contains a
repayment on demand
clause (shown under current
liabilities) but repayable:
Within one year
Within a period of more than

one year

Total amount shown under
current liabilities

Analysed as:
Secured
Unsecured

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

28. RITER

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
RITERAN AT HIM
1;3@(1125”% R 17
FrEizBEERE) :
—F R 17,525 4,000
—FEERFER
— 1,667
17,525 5,667
(2R
R—F AR 2 kI8
(B EREEaE) 15,858 —
BERERERERZ
HEGIARHEE)
MEZER A T HAfEIEE -
—F R 1,667 4,000
fBid—F
— 1,667
PR RENEE KIBEEE
... Ans2s 5,667
DA
A 1,667 5,667
£ 15,858 =
17,525 5,667
BARTEBMERAA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHEZ_E_—F=F=1—HILFE

28. BANK LOANS (Continued) 28. |RITER(E)
At 31 March 2021, the Group pledged certain leasehold R—ZE-_—F=A=+—H" K
land and buildings with an aggregate carrying value of EECRBETEHRAREDEN A
approximately HK$82,100,000 (2020: HK$84,400,000) 82,100,000/ 7tw(= T = T F:
to banks to secure bank loan facilities granted to the 84,400,000 L) v HE THELH K
Group. BT  WEAASEEERIRITERR
BZHEA -
All bank loans carrying interest at variable rates, mainly RITERYIRZEANERAE  TEH
comprising: 15 -

Effective interest rate
per annum

BRFERNR

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF

Loans carrying interest at: BATHEGFTEZERK
— Bank’s cost of funding — RITRAE A
(quoted by bank) plus 1.50% (FRIRIT]ME)
per annum INEFZEA1.50 E 1.94% 1.94%
— London Interbank Offered — BHERTRERE
Rate (“LIBOR’) plus 1.75% ERNZX1.75F
per annum 2.42% —
The Group’s bank loans that are denominated in REBBITERIATXEEBEE
currencies other than the functional currency of the ERNGEEEE N EBETE -

relevant group’s entities is set out below:

2021 2020
—E-—F TE-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

GBP REE 15,858 —

Annual Report 2021 -
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29. DEFERRED TAXATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B A% R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

29. IEFERIE

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax

balances for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets EEMHIBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIBEEE

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities)
assets recognised and movements thereon during the

current and prior years:

VAN A R VEBA 15 BR 3R 2 IR ST B TR 45 84
D

2021 2020
—EB=--F —T_FF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FEr
4,015 5,153
(18,797) (2,864)

UTARRNEERNEFERRAZE
BREERA(AB)EEREES

Distributable
ECL profits of
provision associates  Distributable
of trade and a joint profits of
receivable venture  subsidiaries Others Total
EARUER BEATR
ZRHEE -MAREMNFZ HEBARZ
BEBH A2 KER KRR Eft CH
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT &L AL AT
(note)
(Wit
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NEMA-A - (2,001) - 24 (1,977)
Exchange adjustment i 5 AR (18) - - (1) (19)
Reversal of withholding BOENENH
tax payment = 420 = = 420
Credit (charge) to profit or loss R85t A (31%) 758 (1,127) - 4,234 3,865
At 31 March 2020 R-F-FF=A=+-H 740 (2,708) - 4,257 2,289
Exchange adjustment ERHRE 75 - - - 75
Reversal of withholding BOENENH
tax payment - 1,677 - - 1,677
Credit (charge) to profit or loss R85 A (1%) 358 (1,894) (15,872) (1415) (18,829)
At 31 March 2021 R=F-—F=A=+-H 1,178 (2,925) (15,872) 2,842 (14,782)

Note: The amounts mainly represent temporary differences arising
from impairment on property, plant and equipment, and right-

of-use assets and accelerated tax depreciation.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

Wit ZEeREIBEDE  BERRBRE
REEEREMES 2 TR ZFEARM
REBAYTE
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
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29. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 29. IEERIE ()

At 31 March 2021, the Group had unutilised tax losses
of HK$235,110,000 (2020: HK$122,883,000) available
to set off against future assessable profits. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of these
unutilised tax losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit stream. The tax losses of the Group at 31 March
2021 and 2020 may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax with tax rate of 5%
or 10% is imposed on dividends declared in respect
of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January
2008 onwards. As at 31 March 2021, deferred tax
liabilities of HK$15,872,000 (31 March 2020: Nil) has
been provided for in full in respect of the temporary
difference arising from the undistributed profits earned
by the PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards
as the directors of the Company considered that these
subsidiaries will continue to distribute dividend in the
foreseeable future. As at 31 March 2020, deferred
tax had not been provided for in respect of temporary
differences arising from the undistributed profits earned
by the PRC subsidiaries of HK$168,748,000 as the
Group was able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it was probable that
the temporary differences would not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Annual Report 2021

R-ZZF-_—F=A=+—H " &x5E
B AR B) A E 18 235,110,000 8 7T
T T : 122,883,000 L) A]
HEHRRERBEF - AR KREE
TERI AR HOs F AR - A BBRZE R
PAMEEERREEREBEEE - X
SEER-_E-_—FR_ZE_ZTF=HA
=T —HZHBEE ] RS o

BECERGHRE BZTZENE
—A—HBRB AEWBARMAEIR
BB EUR I 2 B BB 5% =X,
10% 2B - RZTEZ—F=H4
=T—H BRAQAESARTH
B ARKER RAGRERS DK
E - HeEmnzEWNBARIE=ZEZN
E_}EJ —EIE%?HXZ* /)E/ﬁnﬂtljﬁﬁ
EAZEREZRIRBARELERIE
B1&15,872,0008 T (ZE 2 F =
A=+—H: &) RZTE_TF=
A=1+—8  BRASE | #E
o BB /B A B BRE 2 R 5 R i ) BT EE
4 2 B = %8168,748,000 8 T 2 B
M BERERE AR RERA &K
e Y ERERERTIRELER
TE# A o

TE—FER
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. A
Number
of shares Amount
RHEE kx|
HK$'000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREE10B T EEMK
Authorised: 52% :
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 and 31  RZZ—HhFWF—H -
March 2021 i = &
—E—f=fF=1— 1,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRAR
At 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 RZE-NFRA—-HK
“Z-FF#=A=+-H 570,358,224 57,036
Share repurchased and cancelled (note) ~ RR{DEEE K&t 8 (47E) (83,000,000) (8,300)
At 31 March 2021 RZE-_—F=A=+—H 487,358,224 48,736

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company
repurchased a total of 83,000,000 issued ordinary shares on
20 November 2020 at the price of HK$3.00 per share of the
Company under the conditional cash offer which are being
fulfilled in full subsequently. The ordinary shares were cancelled
upon repurchase on 20 November 2020. Further details of this
transaction are set out in the Company’s announcements and
circular. The differences of the price and the nominal amount
of the share is charged to share premium.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

#iaz : E’\%Zi:i—?:—ifﬂ =t+—RBI%F

B ARRAR=_ZE=_FTF+—HA=+H
ﬁE%@ﬁﬂ%ﬁfﬁ B (EBBBEER)
AR BN B 3.0078 7T 2 BIREE
#8254 83,000,000 IR E 1T ERAR © 7%
EEBBRN _E_TFE+—A_1+HE
Bl EEHE ARG ZHE—FFHBHR
KA Z A KB - BGE®RKEE
2 =TI & B 0Bk o
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

BE—F=

—F=—H=+—HIFE

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(@) 2003 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
Company’s special general meeting held on 3
November 2003, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “2003 Share Option Scheme”).
The 2003 Share Option Scheme was valid for a
period of ten years commencing on the adoption
date on 3 November 20083.

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, options
may be granted to any director, employee,
consultant, customer, supplier or advisor of the
Group or a company in which the Company holds
an interest or a subsidiary of such company,
the trustee of the eligible persons or a company
beneficially owned by the eligible persons. The
purpose of the 2003 Share Option Scheme
is to attract and retain quality personnel and
other persons to provide incentive to them to
contribute to the business and operation of the
Group. No eligible persons shall be granted an
option in any 12-month period for such number
of shares (issued and to be issued) which in
aggregate would exceed 1% of the share capital
of the Company in issue on the last day of
such 12-month period unless approval of the
shareholders of the Company has been obtained
in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
exercisable period is determined by the directors
of the Company, which shall not be more than
ten years from the date of grant, and may include
a minimum period for which the options must be
held before it can be exercised. The exercise price
per share payable on the exercise of an option
equals to the highest of:

(@) the nominal value of one share;
(b) the closing price per share as stated in the

Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant; and

Annual Report 2021

31. LR AER 2R

(a)

R 5
—ER=-FREREE

BREXLRR_FF=F1+—H
ZRBTZERENIAS LAB
ZEBRER  NRARRABER
RSl 2T =—F B RE

2) o —TE=FBERETER
RKMEN—_ZET=F+—A=H
AT AR o

RBE-_SZT=—FHEKkETE - B
RETETFAEESARAIFE
- T AN Ti%@ﬂZW%@E
ZEH%% B8 BEH -

- HEESEAA Aé%A
iZEEA&AéﬂAia i
BZRA) s —EE=FHBRHE
SRS RIEBEFALEH
AT ARBREHAEE
¥ REEELER - BRIBELE™
FHA - BRIFCEEAR QAR
B BRI EMR+ =@ A # A
N EBERATTIEERT PR
BROBE(BETERETET)
AHEBBEARRRNZ T —EAH
Mz —HZEBTRA1% 2
B - (THEHBARRESE
E NG BARRE B R
+¢ B BEEREETER

WBRER 2 G HR o TR
IRIERERN 2 BRITEEBASER
NT=FBRzERE :

(@ —HBPEE :

(o) BWHORELE B EB A
BHBREXRMB2EKRIK
mE: &

—B-—EFEH
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(Continued)

(a) 2003 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(c) the average closing price per share as quoted
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

On 6 April 2011, 32,300,000 share options were
granted and on 29 August 2011, 23,000,000
share options were granted under the 2003 Share
Option Scheme. The options may be exercised by
the grantees at any time during the option period
up to the termination of employment or exercisable
period. All share options vested immediately
at the date of grant. The estimated fair values
of the options granted on these dates are
HK$44,855,000 and HK$48,698,000, respectively.
The closing prices immediately before the date of
grant were HK$3.95 and HK$4.38, respectively.

Details of specific categories of options are as
follows:

Number of
share options
Date of grant

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

31. URORER NS (E)

(a)

granted Exercisable period

2&d
R B BREZE [TEHE
6 April 2011 32,300,000 6 April 2011 to
5 April 2021
—Z——FANH “E——FHWAARAE

“E-—FWAAA

29 August 2011

23,000,000 29 August 2011 to

28 August 2021

—E——F

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

“E——FNAZt+AhAE
NB=+AH 2N NA-+N\H

—ER-FRRESE(E)

) BHREERIEEHANR
EEEREBITE AR

EBXRA MRz EBRFHKS
RZE——FHARNBE" R
BE-_ET=-FBRETE

32,300,000 17 fE I iE E &= -
mMR—E——F N \A=+NA8 "
23,000,00017 & IR BEE R T o
EE AR ERERRERERT
FERE BEERIEERNKT
FEHALE - TERBRENE D
ERAKES NZEFAHED
EREZGFAAFES A
44,855,000 7% JT K& 48,698,000
BT BEREREE A ZKME
D HA3.958 LKk 4.388 T °

FrE BB R Z BT ¢

Original Adjusted
exercise exercise
price price
per share per share
RESRKR RAREBR
@ TEE
HK$4.13 HK$3.44
(note i)

41387 3.44 87T
(Kt7#i)

HK$4.80 N/A
4,808 7T TEHA

RAXRTEEBRLQF
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION 31. URGAEERBZNARRZ (E£)

(Continued)
(@) 2003 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The following tables disclose movements of the
Company’s share options granted under the
2003 Share Option Scheme held by directors,
employees and consultants during the years
ended 31 March 2020 and 2021:

Share options granted on 6 April 2011

Categories of participants SHEHEER
Directors of the Company ARAES
Other employees Hfg 8
Consultants (note i) B (Hi)
Total B

Annual Report 2021

(a)

—EE=-FRRETE(E)

TRBEBEDINBE-_S_ZTF
=2 -—F=ZA=+—HLF
ERES - EEMEBATEEIR
BT T - FERETEER D
ZARNEEREEE)

R-F——FHANARLEZME
K

Number

of shares
under option
outstanding
at 1 April 2019,
31 March 2020
and

31 March 2021
R=B—-NF
MA—H -
—BEF
ZA=+-HK
—B--F
=A=t+—H
RTHEERE
ZRBHAE

11,520,000
14,400,000
2,640,000

28,560,000

TEZ—FER
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(Continued)

(a) 2003 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Share options granted on 29 August 2011

Categories of participants SHEEER
Other employees HifE S
Consultants (note ii) BER (A a2 i)
Total KBET

Notes:

(i) The number of shares under the outstanding options and
the exercise price have been adjusted upon the bonus
issue of shares in July 2011 on the basis of one new
ordinary share for every five ordinary shares held.

(if) The share options were granted to consultants for
services rendered in exploring investment opportunities
for the Group.

The 2003 Share Option Scheme expired on 2
November 2013. The options could be exercised
by the participants at any time during the option
exercisable period and notwithstanding that the
2003 Share Option Scheme had expired. During
the year ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, no
options under the 2003 Share Option Scheme
were granted, exercised, lapsed or forfeited.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

31. URORER NS (E)

(a)

—ER-FRRESE(E)

R-E——FNAZ-1+AARH
2R E

Number of
shares under
option
outstanding at
1 April 2019,
31 March 2020
and

31 March 2021
R=F—hE
MmA—AH -
—EB-EHF
=Z=A=+—-HK
—_E-—F
=A=+—H
RITHERE R
ZBRHBEE

18,000,000
5,000,000

23,000,000

HiEE -

() AKROEBREZROHE RITE
EE%:%**@JCHE?%E
TR E BRI — T R 2
EERXAL IR AL TR -

iy ZEBEREDETEBR (EAHE
BAREEBEIEER S TRER
2 B3R ©

—RE-FREREFIER-F
—=F+—HA-HAEm -BE_
T -_FRBEEIEEE W -
W2 B E )R] R B AR T B ]
FERITERBEE RBEE-F
——HRk-F_FF=F=1+—
BIEFE - ﬁﬂﬁkﬁaﬁﬁ

ET-FHEREFERD
{5~ SRR
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(Continued)

(b) 2013 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on
13 August 2013, a new share option scheme was
adopted with effect on 3 November 2013 (the
“2013 Share Option Scheme”) after the expiry of
the 2003 Share Option Scheme.

Under the 2013 Share Option Scheme, options
may be granted to (i) any director, employee
or consultant of the Group or a company in
which the Company holds an equity interest or a
subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”); or (i) any
discretionary trust whose discretionary objects
include any director, employee or consultant
of the Group or an Affiliate; or (i) a company
beneficially owned by any director, employee
or consultant of the Group or an Affiliate; or
(iv) any customer, supplier or adviser whose
service to the Group or business with the Group
contributes or is expected to contribute to the
business or operation of the Group. The purpose
of the 2013 Share Option Scheme is to attract
and retain quality personnel and other persons
to provide incentive to them to contribute to the
business and operation of the Group. The total
number of shares available for issue under the
2013 Share Option Scheme as at the date of
this report is 57,061,022 shares representing
about 11.7% of the issued share capital of the
Company on such date. No eligible persons shall
be granted an option in any 12-month period for
such number of shares (issued and to be issued)
which in aggregate would exceed 1% of the
share capital of the Company in issue on the last
day of such 12-month period unless approval
of the shareholders of the Company has been
obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
exercisable period is determined by the directors
of the Company, which shall not be more than
ten years from the date of grant, and may include
a minimum period for which the options must be
held before it can be exercised. The exercise price
per share payable on the exercise of an option
equals to the highest of:
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(Continued)

(b) 2013 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
(@) the nominal value of one share;

(b) the closing price per share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant; and

(c) the average closing price per share as quoted
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

The 2013 Share Option Scheme will remain in
force until 2 November 2023.

No option was granted, exercised, lapsed or
forfeited under the 2013 Share Option Scheme
since its effective date on 3 November 2013 and
there was no outstanding share option as at 31
March 2021.

No share-based payment expense was recognised for

the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2021 in relation to
share options granted by the Company.
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32. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

33.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group and the other
shareholders of the associates of the Company
issued financial guarantees jointly and severally to
certain banks in respect of banking facilities granted
to associates. The aggregate amounts that could be
required to be paid is NT$ 150,000,000 and equivalent
to HK$39,675,000 (2020: NT$150,000,000 and
equivalent to HK$38,775,000) if the guarantees were
called upon in entirety, of which full amount has been
utilised by these associates. The Group considers the
fair value of the contract is nil at initial recognition and
the loss allowance as at 31 March 2021 and 2020 are
insignificant. Details of the financial guarantee contracts
are set out in note 37.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure in respect e
of the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment
contracted for but not provided
in the consolidated financial
statements

RE2EARX
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34. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group principally operates defined contribution
retirement schemes for all qualifying employees,
including directors. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of independent trustees.

The retirement scheme cost represents contributions
payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in
the rules of the schemes.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in a defined
contribution schemes, of which one scheme is
registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (the “ORSO” Scheme) and the other is
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF”
Scheme) established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance in December 2000. The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of independent
trustees.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions
from both employees and the Group at rates ranging
from 5% to 15% of the employee’s basic salary,
depending on the length of service with the Group.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the MPF
Scheme subject to a maximum monthly contribution
amount of HK$1,500 to an individual, which
contribution is matched by the employee.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries
are members of the state-managed retirement benefits
scheme operated by the PRC government. The
Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$5,796,000
(2020: HK$7,133,000) represents contributions payable

BE—_ T —F=-fJ=+—HIFE
34. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 34. EBIKERFTEI(E)
(Continued)

AREPEMEBARZEE SHPE
BT & BREBRKENGS 2
X - ARE 2 HENE R RARE
BHZET B LRRKENG 2
HH - RRFEMEHRES - A5H
BRARKENGE 2 EERRENE
TEH R EHK

BB 2 5K A& 5,796,000 78 7T
—E-FF 7,133,000 7T ) K

to these schemes by the Group in respect of the current £ 3 lgy*z]& HEAEIFEN 32 a2 2 2
accounting period. During the year ended 31 March cHE_T-_—F=HA=1+—H1E
2021, there had been a reduction in contributions to iﬁ% © R 20197 AKX 7 B R 18 %

the state-managed retirement benefit plan operated P BEBAEH 2 BERERNRIKE
by the government of the PRC due to the outbreak of ﬂ HEip4 1 ?K*ﬁﬁﬁ /)alz Ao ék;‘; =z

COVID-19. For the years ended 31 March 2021 and
2020, there were no forfeitures arising from employees
leaving the Group prior to completion of qualifying
service period.

At 31 March 2021 and 2020, there were no forfeited
contributions which arose upon employees leaving the
retirement plans and which are available to reduce the
contributions payable in the future years.
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35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 35. MMEEHMELEZABZHR
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s TRANMAEBBRETEMELEZE
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both ﬁ%ﬁ%iﬁ BRI S RIEH &) o g
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from BERPMELAZBEAREMECK
financing activities are those for which cash flows were, FARRENEF SN AEE 24E
or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s BeneaXkmoHEARETHELY
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows HERE o
from financing activities.
Lease Interest Bank Dividend
liabilities payable loans payable Total
HEEE EGANE ROER  EGRE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FET FHET FET FET
At 1 April 2019 —hEMA—R 386,075 - 63,367 - 449,442
Financing cash flows REHERE
(note) (H7:z) (134,806) (956) (57,860)  (188,218)  (381,840)
Dividends declared EERKE - - - 188,218 188,218
Interest accrued iapills! 13,254 956 - - 14,210
New leases entered or BV HEXRZHHEE
modified 51,638 - - - 51,638
Termination of leases &Rt (7,419) — - - (7,413)
Exchange adjustment RS (1,312) - 160 - (1,152)
At 31 March 2020 RZZTZF
=R=+—H 307,436 — 5,667 — 313,103
Financing cash flows BERENRE
(note) (K7:z) (123,028) (170) 11,962  (132,630)  (243,866)
Dividends declared EERKE - - - 132,630 132,630
Interest accrued iapills! 10,033 170 - - 10,203
New leases entered or BV HEXRZHHEE
modified 167,577 = = = 157,577
Termination of leases MERLE (2,729) - - - (2,729)
Exchange adjustment i 3% 2,073 - (104) - 1,969
At 31 March 2021 RZTZ—%F
=R=+—H 351,362 — 17,525 — 368,887

Note: The cash flows represent dividends paid, repayment of bank
loans, new bank loan raised, repayments of lease liabilities and
interest paid in the consolidated statement of cash flows.
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36. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

37.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchange from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes bank loans disclosed in note 28 and lease
liabilities in note 27, net of cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves including
retained profits. The directors of the Company review
the capital structure on an annual basis. As part of this
review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as issue of new debts or
redemption of existing debts.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

36.

37.

Financial assets TREE
Financial assets at amortised REHEKAFTEC SR
cost BE
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BAFEFAEMEER
Wz EBTA
Financial assets at FVTPL EAFEFAEBRZ
TREE
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BAFEFAERMER
W zBATE
Loan receivable at FVTPL BERFEFABRZ
FEWE K
Financial liabilities cHaE
Amortised cost DN

Derivative financial instruments

at FVTPL PTESMIA
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
instruments at FVTOCI, debt instruments at FVTOCI,
equity investments at FVTPL, loans receivables, trade
and other receivables, refundable rental deposits,
bank balances, trade and other payables, lease
liabilities, derivative financial instruments at FVTPL and
bank loans. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and impairment assessment and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure that appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are denominated in
either US$, HK$, NT$, Renminbi and GBP.

The Group has limited currency exposure as the
majority of the sales were denominated in functional
currency of the relevant group entities except exposed
to foreign currency risk in relation to US$ arising from
debt instruments at FVTOCI| and the US$ and GBP
denominated loan receivables.

The carrying amount of the major foreign currency
denominated monetary assets at the reporting date is

as follows:
uss$ X7T
GBP g
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amount of the major foreign currency
denominated monetary liabilities at the reporting date is
as follows:

GBP g

Under the pegged exchange rate system, the financial
impact on exchange difference between HK$ and
US$ will be immaterial as US$ denominated monetary
assets are held by group entities having HK$ as their
functional currency, and therefore no sensitivity analysis
has been prepared.

The Group currently does not have a foreign exchange
hedging policy. However, the management conducts
periodical review of exposure and requirements of
various currencies, and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposures should the need arise. No
sensitivity analysis was prepared since the directors
of the Company consider the amount involved is not
significant.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to debt securities with fixed coupon interest,
loans receivables and lease liabilities (details of which
are set out in notes 20, 23 and 27). The management
monitors interest rate exposure when significant interest
rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank loans and bank
balances (details of which are set out in notes 28 and
25). The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.
The fair value interest rate risk on bank deposits is
insignificant as the fixed deposits are short-term.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of bank’s cost of
funding and LIBOR arising from the Group’s bank
loans.

No sensitive analysis is performed as the exposures to
fair value and cash flow interest rates risks for these
items are considered as insignificant.

Other price risk

The Group’s debt instruments at FVTOCI, equity
investments at FVTPL, equity instruments at FVTOCI,
loan receivable at FVTPL and derivative financial
instruments at FVTPL at the end of the reporting period
exposed the Group to other price risk.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

37. $WMIT A(E)

BEREEREREE(E)

AR ()

AEEEHEREESENEEEE
7 BUWERMEEREZ X FER
KRk BEAFBHNHE20- 23
K27 ETHAAEAFERRE @ &
BECERFRAR

AEBNTEE BT BRITERKLIE
TEBRZAeRENXRER - BEF
BE K E28 K225 c AE BRI
R EERECK - AT - ERESH
RFERR YN ETEREEY
RERFERR - AN ERTREE
HEH  BURTTERZ AFEMNERE
SR o

AEEZRERENXREREIEES
RIRITRE A R mBIRITREERE
KE) o DRAKEEZRVRITERME
&£ o

HRZFRB 2 A FERBEEZR
K E b B TR
1T e

=i

g5

A (B E

AEEREHMBPRZIZ A FEFAE
fhemlE BB TA  BAFER
AR ZBAKRE - WAFEFAR
fhEEW R RATA - BAFER
AfEgE 2 BWE R MIZNFER AR
BZTESRIASCAEERE Hi
EREL -

RAXRTEEBRLQF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

lI\Ii\

BB R KM

For the year ended 31 March 2021

BE—F=

37.

—F=—H=+—HIFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk in relation to
the equity investments at FVTPL and equity instruments
at FVTOCI at the reporting date. For sensitivity analysis
purpose, the sensitivity rate of 10% is applied in current
year.

If the prices of the respective equity securities has been
10% (2020: 10%) higher/lower:

° post-tax profit for the year would increase/
decrease by HK$504,000 (2020: increase/
decrease by HK$1,325,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of equity investments at
FVTPL; and

° asset revaluation reserve would increase/decrease
by HK$453,000 (2020: increase/decrease by
HK$321,000) as a result of the changes in fair
values of equity instruments at FVTOCI.

For debt instruments at FVTOCI, loan receivable at
FVTPL and derivative financial instruments at FVTPL,
no sensitive analysis is performed as the exposure is
considered as insignificant.

In management’s opinion, the above sensitivity analysis
is for illustrative purpose only and is unrepresentative
of the inherent equity price risk facing by the Group as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group’s
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to
trade receivables, loan receivables, bank balances,
refundable rental and other deposits and other
receivables and debt instruments at FVTOCI. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with
its financial assets and financial guarantee contracts
as disclosed in note 32, except that the credit risks
associated with loans receivables is mitigated because
of the collateral provided to the Group.

Except for loan receivable at FVTPL, with carrying
amount of HK$17,095,000 as at 31 March 2021, the
Group performed impairment assessment for financial
assets and other items under ECL model. Information
about the Group’s credit risk management, maximum
credit risk exposures and the related impairment
assessment, as applicable, are summarised as below.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

BB R KM

For the year ended 31 March 2021

—F=—H=+—HIFE

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

comprises the following categories:

Internal

credit rating Description

AR EERR i

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default
and does not have any past-due
amounts

B HFH 2 #NRBREIE R EEFHEARIE

Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates
but usually settle in full

BEREAE BEBARERIPRRERTE
@L%ﬁ%ﬁg

Doubtful There have been significant increases
in credit risk since initial recognition
through information developed internally
or external resources

a2 AESINEERIRRFI R EEBTREE

B B iR TR A R EEE L AN

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is
credit-impaired

B8 BREBETNAHAECRERERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the
debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
the Group has no realistic prospect of
recovery

i sH ARBRTERABARENBREER
AEEARRBBEAREABRIE
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37. $MIT AE(£E)

BHEREEREREE(E)

=EE R EFG(E)

AEBERFEERR

SI3E R

Trade receivables

B 5 BN

Lifetime ECL —
not credit-impaired

FEHEHESERE —
FEERE
Lifetime ECL —
not credit-impaired
FENEHEEESE —
FEERE
Lifetime ECL —
not credit-impaired

FEHMEHEEESE —
FEERE

Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired
REDEHEEER —
FERE

Amount is written off

MHBRAEE

Other financial
assets/other items

HttemEE HitER

12m ECL

12EARHEEER
12m ECL
12 ABRBEEEE

Lifetime ECL —
not credit-impaired

REDRBEEHE —
FEERE

Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired

REREHEEER —
FERIE

Amount is written off

WHEEEE

TE—FER

e RAIFHERRET
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposure of

the Group’s financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts, which are subject to ECL assessment:

37. SMITA(E)
BREAREERERBE(E)

EEmbERBETFE(E)
TRAVNARE 2 S BEE LW BE

External credit rating

MEERA
2020
a3
Notgs
il
Debt instruments at RAVEFARMEE
FVTOCI hEzEEIA
Investments in fisted debts ~ FEHERE 20 Ba2-Aa2  Ba2-Aw
(Note ¢) (Hite)
Investments in unlisted L TEHRE 2 Bad (a2 — Aaf
debts
Financial assets at g Ly
amortised cost tREE
Bank balances (Note o)~ HiTés(Hita) % B2-Aal B2 - Adf
Refndable rentaland ~ TREOBEREMEE 4 N/A N/A
other deposits and R AR TER ¥l
other receivables
Trade receivables BHRNER L N/A NA
TER il
Loan receivable at BAEAEZ 2% N/A NIA
amortised cost EUER TER iR
Other item HiER
Financial quarantee BBERaD 32 N/A N/A
contracts TER NER

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

RANEL 2 FERR - EERRE
HiE BB EaT
Internal 12m or
credit rating  lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
1285
NBEETR HRAGEES BRAE
2020
5 %E
HK$000
FAT
/A 12m ECL 7,330 10,926
MR 12fRE
FEFR
N/A 12m ECL 1,315 6,240
MR 1EREY
REBR
8,645 17,166
N/A 12m ECL 1,059,388 935,803
oyl (not credit
impaired)
1lﬂfﬁﬁﬁ
b,
(EHEERE)
}No } 12m ECL 42,904 43,740
/]/fﬁ}rﬁ 12{)%@%
FERR
Credit- mgawed 16,467 16,467
;Nofg ty fetime ECL 265,217 83,569
Hith (no t credit-
impaired)
raEE
EEER
(GHEERE)
Credit mgmed - 266
)Nope ? 12m ECL 41,957 -
i) 12ERES
-4
)Nof\ey 12m ECL 39,675 38,775
Wite)  1AREH
FEBR
RAKTEBERLD A
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes:

(a) In determining the ECL for other receivables, the management
of the Group makes periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables based on the historical
default experience and forward-looking information, as
appropriate. For the individual balances of HK$16,467,000
comprising the earnest money paid, after considering the
deteriorating financial position of the counter party, the
management of the Group considered that there is a significant
increase in credit risk on that balance since the initial
recognition. The balance is considered as credit-impaired and
fully impaired during the year ended 31 March 2020. Except
for that earnest money paid, the management of the Group
has considered the consistently low historical default rate in
connection with other general payments, and concluded that
credit risk inherent in the Group’s remaining balance of other
receivables is insignificant.

(b)  The sales of the Group are mainly on cash-basis and the
trade receivables of the Group mainly represents those retail
sales in department stores in which those are reputable
department stores and wholesale customers in the PRC. The
Group uses an internal credit scoring system to assess the
potential counterparty’s credit quality and defines credit limits
individually. Limits and scoring attributed to the department
stores are reviewed twice a year. Other monitoring procedures
are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 21% (2020:
20%) and 51% (2020: 49%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group’s largest trade receivables and the five
largest trade receivables respectively. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits and credit
approvals.

In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under
ECL model on trade receivables individually. The management
is of the opinion that there has no default occurred for trade
receivables past due 90 days or more and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable due to long term/on-going
relationship and good repayment record from these customers.

The estimated loss rates are estimated by reference to the
external credit rating and internal information, and are adjusted
for forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort. Such forward-looking information is used by the
management of the Group to assess both the current as well
as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.
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37. €T AE)

BHEREEREREE(E)

=EE R EFG(E)

(a)

RETHEMEKER 2 BHEEEIE
ﬁ AEEERERBBTENLER K
e Es (@) S EKEER 2
TW@&W&E%M%%%o%@m
HmﬁéZIﬂ %% 16,467,000 78 7T M
AEBEEEERARGEHZEER
Em%%wuxﬁgﬁmoaﬁﬁw
ﬁ%f&ﬁﬂﬂﬁ BERBE=_Z=
TEZA=Z+—RAUEFEZERE - K
ZEMNHESI  AEEEERECDEE
BESRMNREBZEBATENR X5
LR AR EBEAMEWERGEZEH
BEERRITTEKX -

AREBEZHETEURSR/ER  MA
EEzEHRBEREERET RTE
AEABERARMERTFPZBERAN
TEHE AEBERAIEEFTDF
BAREEEH T I 2 EEE R RES
AEEERE - LATHERARAZEEL
BREFOSFEHMA - LB EHRZ
EREFr A AR R ERER A 1T B U (78 2R
B UM E  ARAREFTRA/AE
Bz EERBRE ARRFE -

AR21%(ZZE =T F : 20%) &51%
—ETF 49%) 2B SRR
BESRREAEBMHEARNE HERER
MAIAXESEBER A ASE®
REERBREFTZER - BB EERK
BREREK A5EEREEEZE—XE
B BEETEEEEREESEM -

AN AEEZRRREEBEERE R
2 MRS E R ETRER G - ER/E
RE BREZZSEF2RE/FHEH
BERER I Z R HCH - BHI90 Rk A
E2ESREERRA|BEEELN - AR
BRADRAR A 2BRE -

ETEEETD2ZINBEEFT R KA
BRHEE - YRBANHBEZRALS
NAFZAEEERERREE - AEE
EREEAAAAEENTH2RAH
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that
has been recognised for trade receivables under the simplified

approach.

As at 1 April 2019

Changes due to financial instruments
recognised as at 1 April 2020:
— Transfer to credit-impaired
— Impairment losses reversed

during the year

New financial assets originated or
purchased

Exchange adjustment

As at 31 March 2020

Changes due to financial instruments
recognised as at 1 April 2020:
— Impairment losses reversed

during the year

— Write-offs

New financial assets originated or
purchased

Exchange adjustment

As at 31 March 2021

R=ZZT—-—NAFMHWA—H

HemI AR T -FF
WA—BRERmES) :
— BRESEERE
— FRREEIERE

EEANBEENCMEE
IE 5%
R-ZE-_ZTF=HA=+—H
eI AR T -TF

WA —BRERmES :

— FAREEIERED

— s
EELSBETCREE

37. $MIT A(E)

BREREERERERE(E)

Hiet : (&)

(o) (%)

-

EEE R EFE(E

TRETBRBECHZEEAEZHEW

Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
FEBEY FEHESD
FEBE FEBE
(FEERE) (ESERME) wE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET
3,839 — 3,839
(266) 266 —
(3,364) — (3,364)
2,693 — 2,693
(209) — (209)
2,693 266 2,959
(2,693) — (2,693)
— (266) (266)
4,405 = 4,405
285 — 285
4,690 - 4,690

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

A BB REBARNEEN % RE
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

For financial guarantee contracts, the gross carrying amount
represents the maximum amount that the Group has
guaranteed under the respective contracts was approximately
HK$39,675,000 (2020: HK$38,775,000) as at 31 March
2021. At the end of the reporting period, the directors of
the Company have performed impairment assessment, and
concluded that there has been no significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition of the financial guarantee contracts.
Accordingly, the loss allowance for financial guarantee
contracts issued by the Group is measured at an amount equal
to 12m ECL. The management of the Group considers the
probability of default is low and accordingly, loss allowance
was considered as insignificant.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on bank balances.
The credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

For the purpose of ECL assessment, the Group considers
the gross principal assessment and the related contractual
interests of the debt instruments. As at 31 March 2021, the
gross principal amount of these debt instruments amounted
to HK$8,434,000 (2020: HK$17,380,000). The Group’s
debt instruments at FVTOCI mainly comprise instruments
that have a low risk of default and the counterparties have
a strong capacity to repay (e.g. financial instruments that
are of investment grade or issuer with good credit history
and capacity to repay), and accordingly, loss allowance was
considered as insignificant.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management has
reviewed the recoverable amount of the loan receivable at
amortised cost regularly to ensure that adequate impairment
is made for irrecoverable amounts. The management assesses
the ECL under 12m-ECL model as there is no significant
increase in credit risk since the initial recognition.

The management estimates the estimated loss rates of
loans receivables based on the collateral and personal
guarantee provided to the Group. Based on assessment by
the management, the loss given default is low in view of the
collateral provided by the counterparties and the management
considers the ECL for loan receivable at amortised cost is
insignificant and therefore no loss allowance was recognised
during the year ended 31 March 2021.
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37. €EmIA
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BHEREEREREE(E)

=EE R EFG(E)

Hiet - (&)
© HUMBERANMS @ FREAERELSE

BR-_ZE-_—F=A=1+—HBEELKS
RETEIR 2 = & F8 40 4 39,675,000 7
7t(= & — T 4 : 38,775,000/ 7T ) °
REFRBK - XABEECETRET
- REMBERAHWZEERREY
TARERR DA SR £ KiR3E 0 - H itk - A%
B2 2 S ERE KN 2 BEBEIZE
ER12E AR EEEEE - A58
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless
of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise
their rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. The amounts included below for variable
interest rate bank loans are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ from those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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37. $MIT A(E)

BREREERERERE(E)

B E LR

REERDHECERE  AEESE
RLEREEBRIFRAZRE MF
FIREEEKF - URRNEEZLER
HECRBERSRERDZFE -
ERERERRITEEZERBR
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. EMIA(#Z)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

BHEREEREREE(E)

mEBELEE(E)

RBE D KT ERE R

Over 1year  Over 2 years
Weighted On demand but not but not Total
average effective or less than more than more than Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years Syears  cash flows amount
it 33 REXY 184k LD FERRS
ERAZ HME {2 m {B5%Mm SENL HEAE i
HKk$'000 HKk$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000
TEr TEr TEr TEr Tr Tr
2021 Z8-f
Non-derivative financial HiEenak
liabilities
Trade and other payables B REHENER NIA AER 159,775 - - - 159,775 159,775
Bank loans RiTER 237% 17,826 - - - 17,826 17,525
177,601 - - - 177,601 177,300
Leass liabilties HERE 3.11% 93,461 75,959 186,151 17,710 312,211 351,362
Financial quarantee contracts  EBHEERAH NIA TR 39,675 - - - 39,675 -
2020 - - 3
Non-derivative financial HiEenas
liabilities
Trade and other payables B REHENER NIA AER 60,056 - - - 60,056 60,056
Bark loans RirER 1.94% 5,667 - - - 5,667 5,667
65,723 - - - 66,723 66,723
Lease liabilties HERR 3,99% 110967 76,868 100,284 48,070 336,200 307,436
Financia quarantee contracts  EHEERAH NIA i8R 38,775 - - - 38,775 -
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could
be required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations
at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers
that it is more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subject to change depending on the probability of
the counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is
a function of the likelihood that the financial receivables
held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer
credit losses.

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 1 year” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 March
2021, the aggregate undiscounted principal amount
of the bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
amounted to HK$1,667,000 (2020: HK$5,667,000).
Taking into account the Group’s financial position,
the directors of the Company do not believe that it is
probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors
of the Company believe that the bank loans will be
repaid in 1 year (2020: 1.5 years) after the reporting
period in accordance with the scheduled repayment
period set out in the loan agreement. At that time,
the aggregate undiscounted principal and interest
cash outflows will amount to HK$1,680,000 (2020:
HK$5,817,000).
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

—FZA=t—AILFEE

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial assets are determined.

Financial assets

SHEE

Financial liabilities

TRAR

i

(i)

Equity instruments at FVTOCI — listed
investments, equity securities listed in
Hong Kong
RATEALME ARG RATA
- IRE - REE LW 2 BAES

Equity instruments at FVTOCI —
unlisted investments
BATES AR 2 ARG RALA
- kETRE

Debt instruments at FVTOCI — listed
debt securities in overseas
BATEG AR 2 AN BHIE
- R Lz BHES

Debt instruments at FVTOCI —
unlisted debt securities
EATES AR 2 AN BHIA
- kETEHES

Annual Report 2021
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21

4,498

1,330

1,315

2020

“E°%F
HK$'000

TET

36

10,926

6,240

37. €T AE)

BREEMEENAFEFEZAEE
EMEEZNTE

REBBKR - AEELSSHEEN
NFERFE - PTRIEHBBOAETE
HEEBEEZATFEZER

Fair value
hierarchy  Valuation techniques and key inputs

AYERR GERDRIZRARE

Level 1

S
=

Level 2

¥
o
=y

Level 2

FHF
o
T

Quoted bid prices in an active market

RETEHELEAE

Quoted market prices provided by brokers which are financial
institutions (note 1)

fERlEz cRRRRIE TERE WL 1)

Quoted bid prices in an active market
ERMGH#REAE
Quoted market prices provided by brokers which are financial

institutions (note 1)

fERRE SRRRRIE TEREWE 1)

A

Z—FEER
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. e@MIT A(Z)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

(Continued)
Fair value
Financial assets Fair value hierarchy
LREE AYE ATERE
2021 2020
ZERI-F bkl
HK$'000 HK$'000
7 AT
(v)  Equity investmentsat FVTPL — 6,036 15,871 Level 1
listed investments, equity securities
listed in Hong Kong and overseas
RATES ARG BARE 14
- [TRE  NERREN LT
RAES
(iv)  Loan receivable at FVTPL 17,095 — Level 2
BATE ARG ERER £2
Financial liabilities
tRER
(i) Derivative financial instruments at 14,000 10,991 Level 3
FVTPL
BATE ARG (TEEBIA £34
Note:

(1)  Quoted market prices provided by brokers which are financial
institutions represent the fair values of the respective funds,
based on the observable quoted prices of the underlying
investments in active market.

(2)  The higher the applied multiples, the higher the fair value. In

the opinion of the directors of the Company, no sensitivity
analysis is prepared as the effect is considered insignificant.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

REEMEENUATEFAEZEAER
ERMEEZAVEGE)

Valuation techniques and key inputs

HERNRTERAHE

Quoted bid prices in an active market

RETEHELEAE

Discounted cashflow. Future cashflow is estimated based
on the contract interest rates, discounted at a rate that
reflects the credit risk of counterparty.
BRAERE - AAALRENRES DMK LRRHY
FhRERRNMERREL -

Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following multiples:
Price to earning ratio and price to book value of selected
comparable listed companies in similar business (note 2)

AhR-SESREERES ERETARRERNTLRL

AT ABE(MRXRMERE)HZ2)

Wizt -
(1) (EARLEzeBEBRHZTISRER

BESZAVE DERNHEBREER
BH%H 2 A ERERE

(2 ARLXED AFEABS - AAF
E=ZRR ARFERRRBHRIR
B A EERSEE DN -

RAXRTEBEBRQA
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. EMIT A(Z)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their fair values.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

The only financial liability subsequently measured at
fair value on Level 3 fair value measurement represents
buy back option granted to the seller of the associates
in relation to the acquisition of additional 20% interest
over H#T, ;k¥ and #5#1 (see note 17). During the year
ended 31 March 2020, the Group initially recognised
the call option derivative at fair value of HK$10,991,000
as part of the consideration of additional interests in
the associates upon the completion of transaction.
During the year ended 31 March 2021, fair value loss
of HK$3,009,000 relating to this buy back option has
been recognised in profit or loss (2020: Nil). As at 31
March 2021, the fair value of the derivative financial
instruments at FVTPL is HK$14,000,000 (2020:
HK$10,991,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B A% R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38. T EMEB AT

R_E - FRER_ZTE-_FTF=AH
=+wm B Z2FIEEMERE A FGE
BERAT) ZFBOT :

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of
which are limited liability companies, at 31 March 2021
and 2020 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid
registration/ share capitallregistered Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary operations and paid-up capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
i/
HRARER R ERARARES/ HRRCHES RAARHERARAEE/REL LN 2t
Directly Indirectly
B B
2020
5%
%
La Suisse Watch Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 100 100 - - Watch trading
HK$1,000 HK$1,000
Wt&AERAR it ZER1000E7 S8R 00%T Fly
Oriental Watch (Ching) Company ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares - - 100 100 Watch trading and
Limited HKS1,000 HKS1,000 investment holding
RAEA(PE)ERAT Bk ERR100ET  EERI00ET FREHRRRAR
Oriental Watch Company Limted ~Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 100 100 - — Watch tracing
HK$2,000 HK$2,000
R&TRRAT B EER200ET  BER200ET Fiis
Oriental Watch (Macau) Company ~ Macau Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 5 5 50 50 Waich tracing
Limited MOP$25,000 }OP§25,000
R (R BRAR 1y EERB00AMT SRR 00877 Fhils
Gathay Watch Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 100 100 - - Watch trading
HK$2,000 HKS$2,000
BRRTRROT Bk EER2000%T  EAR200ET Tl
Sharp Beauty Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share Ordinary share - = 100 100 Investment holding
HKSt HKS1
ERRRAT {3 LR 1%7 BERER REMR
Unex Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares - - 100 100 Property holding
HKS2 HKS2
FUERERAA {3 LaRoEn ERR2ET A
Fully Field Development Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 100 100 - — Property holding
HKS8 HKSB
RERRARAT 3 ERRekR ERReET il

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHEZ_E_—F=F=1—HILFE

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid
registration/ share capital/registered
Name of subsidiary operations and paid-up capital
i/
HEARER B3/ meny ERARARES/HRRCHES
2020
CRIEE
LEENRAARERERAT  ThePRC fote) Registered and Regisered and
(Shanghai Oriental Watch paid-up capital paid-up capital
International Trading Co,, Ltd) S5200,000 US$200,000
LERBRAAREARRAT  wEY) BG4 it REdER
0000%7 0000ETT
RA&{(4E) B RERAT The PRC fnote Registered and Regisered and
(Origntal Watch (Ching) paid-up capital paid-up capital
Trading Co., Ltd) US854,000,000 US$54,000,000
R (48 BRRRAT HEkz) RIGE -0 DG
54,000,000 %7 54000,000%7C

Note: These companies were established in the PRC in the form of
wholly foreign-owned enterprise.
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Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/

registered capital held by the Company Principal activities

RAARAERARAEE/SRELZLH 1ERE
Directly Indirectly
E& &
200 20
ot 2 ot
% %
- 100 100 Watch trading
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B A% R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. T EMB AT (&)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year, or at any time
during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group.
A majority of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong,
the PRC and Taiwan. The principal activities of these
subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activity

FEXE® EREHKME

Watch trading Hong Kong
FIRAL 1 i

Taiwan
Investment holding Hong Kong
REER S

The PRC

[
Inactive Hong Kong
EEax BB

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

Principal place of business

EREIARBEERREBRER
SEXESEEZARAMBRA -
EERR - MBI EMBHERRZF
5 MEBHENEHIIE -

E M B A AR AR S AR R PR L
BAERKEERERHES

REREKR - XRARFHAEEMS
WIEBRZHMMMBERR - KEHZ
EMBRARARERE FREEKAER
o ZENMB ARz EEXBHutm
T

Number of subsidiaries

U= NGIE- 4
2021 2020
—E-—F a3
1 1
1 1
2 2
6 6
1 1
7 7
8 8
17 17
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R 2R B

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHEZ_E_—F=F=1—HILFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Compensation of key management personnel
The key management personnel are the directors of

the Company. The remuneration of directors during the
year was as follows:

Short-term benefits %2 HAtE 7
Post-employment benefits BEER 1218 A

The remuneration of directors is determined by
the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

Annual Report 2021

39. FHEALRS
TEEBEARCHM

TEEREABRARRIZES - F
NZEZMEWT

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
92,942 21,673
854 1,067
93,796 22,740

ESFHaTMEZEeREREAKX
BEMZBERETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B A% R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 40. A28 2 &R R T

THE COMPANY

2021 2020
—EB-—-F —T_FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment YIZ - HES R 284 355
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIKE 619,279 619,279
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BAVESAREMEE
ez RART A 4,498 3,175
624,061 622,809
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries ~ FEULHIE A T B 334,361 447,658
Bank balances and cash IRITHERREIR S 659 267
335,020 447,925
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables H A FER RN 68,451 10,470
Amounts due to subsidiaries NS NGIE S 102,459 100,587
170,910 111,057
Net current assets RBEEFE 164,110 336,868
Net assets EEFE 788,171 959,677
Capital and reserves BARR#E
Share capital A& A 48,736 57,036
Reserves (note (a)) &M (a) 739,435 902,641
Total equity A 788,171 959,677

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar B3 R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHEZ_E_—F=F=1—HILFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note:

(@)

Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current and
the prior years are as follows:

At 1 April 2019

Profit for the year

Change in fair value of
equity instruments at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
(expense] for the year
2019 final dividend paid
2019 special dividend paid
2020 interim dividend paid
2020 interim special dividend
paid
2020 final dividend proposed
2020 special dividend
proposed

At 31 March 2020

Profit for the year

Change in fair value of
equity instruments at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
for the year

2020 final dividend paid

2020 special dividend paid

2021 interim dividend paid

2021 interim special dividend
paid

2021 final dividend proposed

2021 special dividend
proposed

Repurchase and cancellation
of shares

Transactions costs attributable

to repurchase and
cancellation of shares

At 31 March 2021

Annual Report 2021
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RATEH\ R TR
IBEIR207E
)

EniEkE

(R
BEE-F-NERERS
BRE_E-NERARE
BifE-E-EEmiRe
BRE -2 2E0Y

GHGS
RRE-E-TERERE
BRE-SERIRE

RB-E2E=R=1-0

R

BATEIALMRTRE
JRATEY
ey

ERRENSUE

BREZ-RERIRE
BRE-Z-RERARS
BRE-S--FhHRe
B Sk
BRa
RRE-E--FRERE
BRE-3--ER7kRS

BEREERD

BOREERNER
R

40. AR B 2 HBMRRK(E)

Hiet -
(@ ARABERAEFERBEFEZE
LI
Share Capital Asset

Share option  redemption  Contributed revaluation Retained Dividend
premium reserve reserve surplus reserve profits reserve Total
BftaE  BRERE EAEERRE gAB%  BEBMERE RERA RefE At
HKS:000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK$'000
TAT FET AT TAT FEL TET FEL V743
548,969 79,388 425 122,183 1,919 34,621 122,621 910,138
= = = = = 181,411 = 181,411
= = = = (690) = = (690)
- - - - (690) 181,411 - 180,721
- - - - - - (45,629) (45,629)
- - - - - - (76,99) (76,998)
- - - - - (15,970) - (15,970)
- - - - - (49,621) - (49,621)
_ - - = = (45,629) 45,629 -
_ - = - - (28,518) 28,518 =
548,969 79,388 425 122,183 1,229 76,300 7447 902,641
- - - - - 213,820 - 213,820
- - - - 1323 - - 1328
- - - - 1323 213,820 - 215,143
- - - - - - (45,629) (45,629)
- - - - - - (28,518) (28,518)
- - - - - (13,646) - (13,646)
- - - - - (44,837) - (44,837)
- - - - - (68,483) 58,483 -
- - - - - (131,587) 131,587 -
(240,700) - - - - - - (240,700)
(6,019) = = = = = = (6,019)
303,250 79,388 425 122,183 2,552 41,567 190,070 739,435

“TE--FFR

233



234

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEZ—B_—F=-F=1—HIFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: (Continued)
(@)  (Continued)

The contributed surplus arose as a result of the difference
between the aggregate net tangible assets of the subsidiaries
by the Company and the nominal amount of the Company’s
shares which were issued to acquire those subsidiaries under
the group reorganisation in 1993.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

40. AR B 2P BMRK(E)

Hret - (&

(a)

(&)

BABKBRREAARRMBARFENEE
BEER-NAN=FREEEEALK
BZENBRRMBETZARARKMN
FHRCEME L EEMELE -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MERE
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLFE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
ZE—tF ZTE-N\E ZZT-NF ZZTTF il
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FETT FETT FET
(Note 1) (Note 2)
K1zt 1) (K1zt2)
RESULTS E4
Revenue g 3,142,295 2,891,692 2,437,184 2,352,683 3,504,022
Profit before B EH AT A
taxation 25,449 164,691 159,975 127,433 355,736
Income tax Frig i X
expense (9,352) (26,0006) (21,936) (28,324) (123,112)
Profit for the year & A& 16,097 138,685 138,039 99,109 232,624

Attributable to: AT AT AL :
Owners of the ZiN/NEIEZ Z =N

Company 16,383 138,763 138,099 100,301 233,256
Non-controlling FEFEAR HE R

interests (286) (78) (60) (1,192) (632)

Profit for the year & A} Fll 16,097 138,685 138,039 99,109 232,624
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBRE

At 31 March
W=RA=+—~H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

—TEtF ZTE-N\F ZE-NEF ZZTTF ==t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FrET FET FET FET FET
(Note 1) (Note 2)

(Htat 1) (Htat2)

ASSETS AND EEREE
LIABILITIES

Total assets BERE 2,364,738 2,639,937 2,408,229 2,513,621 2,727,530
Total liabilities BfERRE (207,724)  (222,985) (194,628) (430,335) (736,981)

2,147,014 2,316,952 2,213,601 2,083,286 1,990,549

Equity attributable ZAAGHEAE A
to owners of the  FE{h#Ezs

Company 2,146,006 2,315,977 2,212,733 2,083,611 1,991,495
Non-controlling e AR fE 2
interests 1,008 975 868 (325) (946)

2,147,014 2,316,952 2,213,601 2,083,286 1,990,549

Notes: Bt -

(1)  On 1 April 2018, the Group had applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15. 1) MZZE—N\FWNA—B A&EEEREFSHE
Accordingly, certain information for the years ended 31 March 2017 WAEER|E QSN BEM IS REERFE 155 o
and 2018 which was prepared under HKAS 39 and HKAS 18 may Bt EFHREBEEESSHERNEIORLEE
not be comparable to the years ended 31 March 2019, 2020 and et EAEI18EGH B E S —t+tFE R
2021. E-N\F=A=+—BILFEZEHATREZL

HEE-_T—NF —T_TFER_FT-_—F
ZA=+—BLFELE -

(2)  On 1 April 2019, the Group has applied HKFRS 16. Accordingly, 2 R-ZE-—AFWA—B A&EEEAEBH

certain information for the years ended 31 March 2017, 2018 and BHRELEAEI65 - At ETHREF S
2019 which was prepared under HKAS 17 may not be comparable to STEAFI7TRENZBHE S —+tF - = F
the year ended 31 March 2020 and 2021. —NEFRZZE-NF=ZA=+—HIEFEZE

BT AR E S FFR-F=—F=
A=+—BILEELH -
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